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Disclaimer

Statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this document, including competitive strengths; business strategy; future
financial position or operating results; budgets; projections with respect to revenue, income, earnings (or loss) per share, capital expenditures,
dividends, liquidity, capital structure or other financial items; costs; and plans and objectives of management regarding operations and products,
are forward-looking statements. These statements may include terminology such as “may”, “will", “expect”, “could”, “should”, “intend”, “estimate”,
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“anticipate”, “believe”, “outlook”, “continue”, “remain”, “on track”, “design”, “target”, “objective”, “goal’, “forecast’, “projection”, “prospects”, “plan”,
or similar terminology. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. Rather, they are based on current views and
assumptions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which are difficult to predict and/or are outside the
Company's control. If any of these risks and uncertainties materialize (or they occur with a degree of severity that the Company is unable to
predict) or other assumptions underlying any of the forward-looking statements prove to be incorrect, including any assumptions regarding
strategic plans, the actual results or developments may differ materially from any future results or developments expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. Factors, risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the
forward-looking statements include, among others: the continued uncertainties related to the unknown duration and economic, operational and
financial impacts of ongoing and/or threatened international conflicts and geopolitical tensions; supply chain disruptions and global logistic
constraints, including, industry capacity constraints, supplier viability issues, material availability and relevant price volatility; increased
vulnerability to cybersecurity or data privacy incidents, also due to potential massive availability of Generative Artificial Intelligence; the many
interrelated factors that affect consumer confidence and worldwide demand for capital goods and capital goods-related products, including
demand uncertainty caused by current macroeconomic and geopolitical issues; changes in government policies regarding banking, monetary
and fiscal policy; legislation, particularly pertaining to capital goods-related issues such, the environment, debt relief and subsidy program
policies, trade and commerce and infrastructure development; government policies on international trade and investment, including sanctions,
import quotas, capital controls and tariffs; volatility in international trade caused by the imposition of tariffs, sanctions, embargoes, and trade
wars; actions of competitors in the various industries in which we compete; development and use of new technologies and technological
difficulties; the interpretation of, or adoption of new, compliance requirements with respect to engine emissions, safety or other aspects of our
products; production difficulties, including capacity and supply constraints and excess inventory levels; labour relations; interest rates and
currency exchange rates; inflation and deflation; energy prices; our ability to obtain financing or to refinance existing debt; price pressure on new
and used vehicles; the resolution of pending litigation and investigations on a wide range of topics, including dealer and supplier litigation, follow-
on private litigation in various jurisdictions after the settlement of the EU antitrust investigation of the Iveco Group announced on 19th July 2016,
intellectual property rights disputes, product warranty and defective product claims, and emissions and/or fuel economy regulatory and
contractual issues; security breaches, cybersecurity attacks, technology failures, and other disruptions to the information technology
infrastructure of Iveco Group and its suppliers and dealers; security breaches with respect to our products; further developments of geopolitical
threats which could impact our operations, supply chains, distribution network, as well as negative evolutions of the economic and financial
conditions at global and regional levels; political and civil unrest; volatility and deterioration of capital and financial markets, including other
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pandemics, terrorist attacks or acts of war in Europe and elsewhere; our ability to realise the anticipated benefits from our business initiatives as
part of our strategic plan; our failure to realise, or a delay in realising, all of the anticipated benefits of our acquisitions, joint ventures, strategic
alliances or divestitures and other similar risks and uncertainties, and our success in managing the risks involved in the foregoing.

Forward-looking statements are based upon assumptions relating to the factors described in this report, which are sometimes based upon
estimates and data received from third parties. Such estimates and data are often revised. Actual results may differ materially from the forward-
looking statements as a result of a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Iveco Group’s control. Except as otherwise
required by applicable rules, Iveco Group expressly disclaims any intention to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements in this
document to reflect any change in expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which these forward-looking statements
are based. Further information concerning Iveco Group, including factors that potentially could materially affect Iveco Group’s financial results, is
included in Iveco Group's reports and public filings under applicable regulations.

Additional factors which could cause actual results and developments to differ from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements are included in the section “Risk Factors” of this Report.

All forward-looking statements by Iveco Group or persons acting on the behalf of Iveco Group are expressly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary statements contained herein or referred to above.
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIR AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

2023 was Iveco Group’s second year as an independently listed company. Building on the solid foundations we laid in 2022, we launched ground-
breaking products, enhanced our partnership landscape and further reinforced our sustainability efforts, in line with our strategic pillars of
innovation, partnerships and sustainability.

Our lean and agile approach, coupled with the diligent efforts of our brands and functions, enabled us to navigate challenges and conclude the
year on a positive note. It is with great pleasure that we can announce that, by year-end 2023, we had met the key targets for 2026, three years
ahead of the plan announced at our first Investor Day in November 2021. We extend our sincere gratitude to all Ilveco Group employees
worldwide and you, our valued shareholders, for your continued support and trust.

Financial Highlights

Iveco Group concluded 2023 with strong results. Consolidated Revenues came in at €16.2 billion, up almost 13% compared to 2022, and the
Consolidated Adjusted EBIT margin”’ was at 5.8%, up 210 basis points versus full year 2022. Net Income was €234 million, an increase of
€75 million compared to the previous year, with an Adjusted Diluted EPS" at €1.23 per common share at the end of the year, which is 45 cents
more than full year 2022. We achieved consistent profitability improvements across segments and an Adjusted EBIT Margin for Industrial
Activities” at 5.2%, 2.2 percentage points above full year 2022. Yearly Free Cash Flow"” generation was at €412 million, with investments up 25%
year-over-year. Compared to last year, if normalised by the positive one-offs registered in 2022, this figure represents an almost flattish Free Cash
Flow performance.

Our Net Industrial Cash" position, if adjusted by the extraordinary Argentine peso devaluation that occurred in December, was slightly above
€2 billion at year-end 2023. Counting this extraordinary foreign exchange devaluation, we closed 2023 at €1.9 billion of Net Industrial Cash.

Our share buy-back programme commenced in 2023 and, during the year, about 6.8 million of lveco Group’s common shares were bought back,
for a total net consideration of about €55 million. A large portion of these shares are being deployed to our Long-term Management Incentive
Programme, aligning incentives with long-term shareholder value creation. Lastly, according to our dividend policy, the Board of Directors
announced the intention to recommend an annual cash dividend of 22 cents per common share to the 2024 Annual General Meeting, totalling
approximately €59 million of dividends to be distributed.

Our Business Approach

With our strong diversified business portfolio across commercial and specialty vehicles, comprehensive powertrain offering, and commitment to
sustainable solutions, we retain our position as a global leader in the transport industries. In 2023, all our operations continued to be guided by
our focus on innovation, partnerships and sustainability.

(*) This is a non-EU-IFRS financial measure. Refer to the Board Report, section “Operating and Financial Review” for information regarding the non-EU-IFRS
financial measures used by the Group and the reconciliation between the non-EU-IFRS financial measure and the most comparable EU-IFRS financial
measure.
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Innovation

We have made innovation the cornerstone of our strategy because it is essential to gaining further market share across all our segments. In 2023,
we launched many cutting-edge products, including FPT Industrial’s all-new 13-litre Cursor multi-fuel engine and our new IVECO BUS E-WAY H2
hydrogen-powered city bus developed in partnership with Hyundai Motor Company. In the fourth quarter of 2023, IVECO unveiled a completely
renewed model range in our truck segment, the Model Year 2024, further reinforcing our ability to compete head-to-head with the competition. At
a cost of one billion euros, this was the company’s biggest-ever investment cycle.

In addition, in 2023, we assumed full ownership of our European joint venture with Nikola, bringing in-house the development, manufacture and
commercialisation of battery electric and fuel cell electric heavy trucks. This will consolidate our position as a European leader in clean, alternative
fuel commercial vehicles.

In 2023 we were delighted to open our new IVECO BUS manufacturing plant in Foggia, heralding the return of Iveco Group bus production to
Italy. With the increased focus on clean air in urban centres by local and regional Italian authorities, the decision to produce zero and low-
emission buses in the country has proved decisive. In 2023, IVECO BUS won orders for 2,200 electric buses from municipalities and regional
authorities from all around the world, including those from Italy. This strong order book reflects the strength of our bus technologies and the
attractiveness of our vehicles both to governments and to transport users.

In July, GATE - Green & Advanced Transport Ecosystem — launched its innovative pilot programme in ltaly, supporting customers in the transition
to zero emission vehicles, by offering digital solutions with a pay-per-use formula for the long-term rental of hydrogen and electric commercial
vehicles.

Our innovation investments remain firmly focused on delivering long-term profitability, increasing performance across our business units and
optimising processes, as exemplified by the following initiatives. DRIVE, our company-wide transformation programme, saw the implementation of
175 projects designed to unlock potential and creativity within our organisation and boost our market positioning. Our continuous improvement
programme, DOT - Driving Operations Together — ensured our operational excellence in our manufacturing processes to further step up. The
new Platform Business Model, based on cross-functional working groups, evolved to integrate the Product Management Function, creating a
more unified approach to product and service development and optimising our ability to bring products to market quickly and more efficiently.
Furthermore, we took concrete steps to optimise our supply chain to minimise the adverse effects of material slowdowns or disruptions stemming
from external factors.

Partnerships

We continue to deepen mutually beneficial relationships with existing partners while actively pursuing collaborations with new, like-minded
organisations.

In 2023 our partnership with Hyundai Motor Company produced further results with the launch of the IVECO BUS E-WAY H2 hydrogen-powered
city bus. Our collaboration with Amazon Web Services (AWS) continues to thrive, resulting in a more intuitive interface for IVECO’s Driver Pal, our
vocal driver companion embedded with Alexa technology. Another significant milestone was the commencement of on-road autonomous driving
testing for the IVECO S-WAY truck equipped with PlusDrive.

We expanded our partnership landscape by signing a Memorandum of Understanding with Shell to develop low-carbon solutions and inaugurating
the first high-pressure hydrogen station for long-haul trips in Europe with AirLiquide. IVECO CAPITAL announced a new partnership with
Eurowag, to add integrated payment solutions to the brand’s service offering for commercial and industrial vehicles. Additionally, GATE partnered
with Bridgestone for tyre management and Wefox to offer digital insurance solutions to clients.

During the same period, FPT Industrial unveiled the first hydrogen-powered snow groomer with PRINOTH, signed a deal with GoodSense in
China to provide engines to power forklift products, and collaborated with Maserati on the creation of the new Gran Turismo Folgore, the first car
in the brand’s history to adopt a 100% electric powertrain.

In a strategic move to expand IVECO’s Nordic distribution network, Iveco Group and Hedin Mobility Group announced the signing of a Share
Purchase Agreement by which Hedin is acquiring Iveco Group’s distribution and retail operations in Sweden, Norway, Finland and Denmark.

Sustainability

We have made substantial progress in our sustainability journey and, in 2023, this was recognised when we were accepted as a member of the
United Nations Global Compact. We secured placements on the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices World and Europe and the S&P Global
Sustainability Yearbook, ranking in the top 5%, and obtained CDP scores of A- and B for Climate Change and Water Security respectively.
Furthermore, we released our inaugural Sustainability Report, outlining our path to achieving net-zero carbon emissions by 2040 and highlighting
our Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) accomplishments.

We also furthered our commitment to sustainable practices in our plants. Notably, the aforementioned IVECO BUS plant in Foggia, inaugurated in
2023, emits zero net CO, emissions and derives 100% of its energy from renewable sources, including over 1,000 photovoltaic panels that
produce 640 MWh per year. The entire project focuses on reducing energy consumption and recycling, making use of high-performance
construction materials, intelligent LED lighting and rainwater reuse.

Our dedication to Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion was exemplified by the announcement of our DEI Manifesto and the publication of our DEI
Playbook, while our Diversity Council continue to run initiatives focused on talent mobility, career development, gender pay gap, work-life balance,
employer branding and communications. Notably, we surpassed our ESG target for gender balance for the second consecutive year, with a 31%
increase in the number of women in management positions since the establishment of lveco Group.
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2024 Outlook

The outlook for 2024 appears challenging, with worldwide projections indicating a flat year-over-year forecast for both light-duty trucks and buses,
while heavy-duty trucks are expected to be down between 10% to 15%. Despite this, we expect our diversified set of businesses to
counterbalance these challenges, allowing us to maintain the level of Industrial Activities Adjusted EBIT margin achieved in 2023.

As disclosed in the 2024 full year and fourth quarter press release, our 2024 preliminary financial guidance for the year is as follows:
= Group Adjusted EBIT, at a consolidated level, at between €900 and €950 million;

= Net Revenues of Industrial Activities (including currency translation effects) to be down around 5% versus full year 2023;

= Adjusted EBIT of Industrial Activities at between €770 and €820 million;

= Industrial Free Cash Flow at between €350 and €400 million;

= Investments of Industrial Activities in property, plants and equipment, and capitalised intangible assets at around €1 billion.

We are now in our third year as an independent company. This, our year of Acceleration, has clear objectives to prioritise faster and leaner ways
of working, advance our electrification and multi-fuel strategy and further develop our partnerships to launch innovative products and services. We
remain steadfast in our commitment to driving growth, technological advancements and sustainability across all areas of our operations.

On the back of our solid performance, our Capital Markets Day in Turin in March is meant to illustrate our revised ambitions for the period 2024 to
2028, with our former reporting segment Commercial and Specialty Vehicles split by its comprising business units.

We appreciate the ongoing support of our valued Shareholders, and we reaffirm our duty to deliver innovative solutions for sustainable mobility
that will ensure positive returns for everyone.

Best regards,

Suzanne Heywood Gerrit Marx
Chair, lveco Group Chief Executive Officer, Ilveco Group
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BOARD REPORT
INTRODUCTION

Iveco Group N.V. (the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries the “lveco Group” or the “Group”) was incorporated as a public limited
company (naamloze vennootschap) under the laws of the Netherlands on 16 June 2021. The Company’s corporate seat is in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, and its principal office and business address is Via Puglia n. 35, Turin, Italy. The Company is registered with the trade register of the
Chamber of Commerce of the Netherlands (Kamer van Koophandel) under number 83102701. The Netherlands is the Company’s home member
state for the purposes of the EU Transparency Directive (Directive 2004/109/EC, as amended by Directive 2013/50/EU). Unless otherwise
indicated or the context otherwise requires, the terms “we”, “us” and “our” refer to lveco Group N.V. together with its subsidiaries.

The Company was formed in the context of the separation ("the Demerger") of the Commercial and Specialty Vehicles business, the Powertrain
business as well as the related Financial Services business from CNH Industrial N.V. The Demerger became effective on 1 January 2022 (the
“Effective Date”), and the Company ultimately began to act as a holding for the Iveco Group, also providing for central treasury activity in the
interest of Group’s subsidiaries.

On 3 January 2022, the Company’s Common Shares started trading on Euronext Milan (previously named the Mercato Telematico Azionario), a
regulated market operated by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. in Milan, Italy. As a result of the listing, the Company became a Dutch Public Interest Entity
(OOB) on 3 January 2022.

Iveco Group N.V. is a global automotive leader that, through its various businesses, designs, produces and sells trucks, commercial vehicles,
buses and specialty vehicles, in addition to a broad portfolio of powertrain applications. In addition, Iveco Group's Financial Services segment
offers a range of financial products and services to dealers and customers.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND CERTAIN
OTHER INFORMATION

Iveco Group reports quarterly and annual consolidated financial results prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (*IASB”) and adopted by the European Union (“EU-IFRS”), and with the euro
as the presentation currency. The tables and discussion related to the financial results of the Company and its segments shown in this Report are
prepared in accordance with EU-IFRS and, unless otherwise indicated, all financial data set forth in this Report are expressed in euro.

As of 31 December 2023, Iveco Group reports its operations under three segments: Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, Powertrain, and
Financial Services. The activities carried out by Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, and Powertrain, as well as corporate functions, are
collectively referred to as “Industrial Activities”.

Certain financial information in this report has been presented by geographic region. Our geographic regions are: (1) Europe; (2) South America;
(3) North America and (4) Rest of World. The geographic designations have the following meanings:

= Europe: member countries of the European Union, European Free Trade Association, the United Kingdom, Ukraine and Balkans;
= South America: Central and South America, and the Caribbean Islands;
= North America: United States, Canada and Mexico; and

= Rest of World: Continental Asia (including Ttirkiye and Russia), Oceania and member countries of the Commonwealth of Independent States,
the African continent and Middle East.

Certain industry and market share information in this report has been presented on a worldwide basis which includes all countries. In this Report,
management estimates of past market-share information are generally based on registrations of equipment in most of Europe, Brazil, and various
Rest of World markets, and on retail and shipment unit data collected by a central information bureau appointed by equipment manufacturers
associations, including the ANFAVEA in Brazil, as well as on other shipment data collected by an independent service bureau. Commercial
Vehicles regions are defined as follows: Europe (the 27 EU countries where Commercial Vehicles competes and for which market data are
available, excluding the United Kingdom and Ireland, for market share and total industry volume (“TIV") reporting purposes), South America
(Brazil, Argentina), and Rest of World (Russia, Tirkiye, South-East Asia, Australia, New Zealand). Iveco Group Light Commercial Vehicles
("LCV") Professional Cab-Chassis only considers the major 15 European markets. Professional Cab-Chassis TIV is based on estimates subject to
ongoing review and improvement; this supervision approach may lead to changes in Iveco Group market share, even in past periods. In addition,
there may be a period of time between the shipment, delivery, sale and/or registration of a unit, which must be estimated, in making any
adjustments to the shipment, delivery, sale, or registration data to determine our estimates of retail unit data in any period.
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OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY

We are committed to put sustainability at the heart of our strategy, making it an integral part of our day-to-day activities to ensure business is
conducted in an economically sound, environmentally friendly, and socially beneficial way.

By fully integrating environmental and social considerations with economic objectives, we are able to identify potential risks and seize additional
development opportunities, creating a process of continuous — and above all sustainable — improvement that creates value over the long-term.

In 2023, we became a member of the UN Global Compact, the world’s largest corporate sustainability initiative with more than 18,000 companies
and 3,800 non-business signatories in over 160 countries. We thus joined thousands of other companies worldwide that are committed to taking
responsible business action to create a sustainable future. The initiative calls on companies to align their operations and strategies with
universally accepted principles in the areas of human rights, labour, the environment, and anti-corruption. It also encourages action in support of
the goals and issues addressed in the UN’s Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

This integrated approach — environmental, social, and economic - allows us to meet the demands and expectations of our stakeholders:
customers, employees, investors, suppliers, NGOs, and society as a whole.

For details on our commitments, processes, projects, and results, please refer to the 2023 Iveco Group Sustainability Report.

STRATEGY

Iveco Group has defined and fine-tuned its sustainability priorities so as to ensure better alignment with its core business. The 4 strategic
sustainability priorities that underpin its sustainability strategy are:

= Carbon Footprint: to reduce CO, emissions from manufacturing processes along its entire value chain (supply and logistics) and from its
product range, aiming at net zero carbon emissions by 2040;

= Workplace and Product Safety: to minimise the risk of workplace injuries through effective preventive and protective measures, and to
ensure Company products have the highest safety standards;

= Life Cycle Thinking: to implement solutions that efficiently minimise the impact of products and processes through a circular product life
cycle approach;

= Inclusion and Engagement: to build ever-stronger relationships with stakeholders, continuing to work proactively and effectively to create
an inclusive work environment.

To strengthen efforts on its journey towards a sustainable future, the Company has mapped out the path to achieving these four strategic priorities
by setting clear objectives, with specific reference to its people, direct operations, products and services, and valued partners. These targets are
part of lveco Group’s Strategic Business Plan, and progress is regularly reported to both the ESG Committee and Senior Leadership Team
(“SLT”) Sustainability Committee. They are also incorporated into the Sustainability Plan, which includes both short- and long-term targets and
reflects the Company’s commitment to contributing to development, in harmony with people and the environment. Clear responsibilities are
defined for each target to ensure they are consistently monitored and achieved.

In this regard, in 2023 executive compensation is linked, among other things, to the achievement of two strategic sustainability targets:
specifically, the long-term incentive plan is linked to the reduction in CO, (Scope 1 and 2) emissions vs 2019, and the short-term incentives to the
increase in women in management positions (see Remuneration Report).

In general, the long-term incentive plans awarded by the Company to Executive Directors, officers and other employees are aimed to create a
sustainable and lasting value over time. In particular Adjusted EBIT Margin®’ (profitability metric) is aligned with the Company’s goal of economic
and financial sustainability in the long term; Relative TSR"™ (value creation metric) is able to create a sustainable and lasting value over time for
shareholders vis-a-vis peers; and CO, emissions reduction (Environment & Diversity metric) is consistent with the Company’s ESG strategies to
reduce CO, emissions from manufacturing processes along the entire value chain (supply and logistics) and from the product range, aiming for
net zero carbon emissions by 2040.

During 2023, the Company made good contributions in achieving such goals. In particular, the Company closed the year with continuous margin
improvements across segments on the back of solid positive price realisation. Repositioning of net pricing in Trucks was the major catalyst for the
profitability uplift in 2023, with positive contribution also from favourable volumes in Europe and a positive product mix, all of which more than
offset higher production costs in the year, due to still not stabilized raw materials and energy prices, increased R&D spending linked to the launch
of our new Model Year 2024 and the EVCO (ex-Nicola JV) consolidation, soaring inflation, and an adverse foreign exchange rate scenario. As a
result, the Consolidated Adjusted EBIT margin was up 210 bps, compared to 2022, to 5.8% and the Industrial Activities Adjusted EBIT margin
was up 220 bps, compared to the previous year, to 5.2%, with Commercial and Specialty Vehicles margin up 220 to 5.6% and Powertrain margin
up 120 bps to 5.9%.

(*) This is a non-EU-IFRS financial measure. Refer to the Board Report, section “Operating and Financial Review” for information regarding the non-EU-IFRS
financial measures used by the Group and the reconciliation between the non-EU-IFRS financial measure and the most comparable EU-IFRS financial
measure.

(**) Refer to the Annex of the Remuneration Report for the definition of this metric.
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According to Bloomberg, in 2023 the Company reached 33.2% TSR, using a 30 calendar days average, and 46.6% TSR using one trading day
average. In relation to Relative TSR, the average within the peer group was 21.4% and 27.8%, respectively. The Company ranked 5" out of 9 in
2023. Starting from its listing, the Company ranked 7™ out of 9 within the peer group.

Referring to CO, emissions reduction, a comprehensive description of the goals achieved in the year is following provided in this section.

CARBON FOOTPRINT
+ 2040: net zero carbon emission

+ 2030: -50% vs 2019 in absolute
CO, emissions (Scope 1 & 2)

Our People &
Operations

+ 2026: 100% of total electricity
consumption derived from
renewable sources

Our Products & |+ 2030: -38% vs 2022 in Scope 3

Services CO, emissions from the use of
sold vehicles® per vehicle/km

Our Valued + 2026: -7% vs 2022 in kg of CO,

Partners emissions per ton of goods

shipped

+ 2026: -30% vs 2022 in absolute
CO, emissions generated by
key supplier of purchased
goods, services and capital
goods

WORKPLACE AND PRODUCT
SAFETY

+ 2026: -40% vs 2019 in injury frequency | *
rate

= 2026: 100% of new vehicles in Europe
equipped with Advanced Driver
Assistance Systems ("ADAS") and
additional advanced functions, such as
Adaptive Cruise Control ("ACC"), ACC
Stop & Go, Corrective Steering
Function ("CSF"), and Lane Centering
('LC")

+ 2026: 100% of dealership staff
involved in safety training on our
electric product portfolio

INCLUSION AND

LIFE CYCLE THINKING ENGAGEMENT

2026: 75% of industrial
water recycled at
Company plants
worldwide

+ 2026: to maintain gender pay
equity® across the organisation
and have it certified by a third
party

2026: 100% of new
products developed
using sustainability/
recyclability design
criteria

+ 2026: collaborations with 100%
of key partners to improve the
working conditions and work-life
balance of drivers

* 2026: +25% vs 2021 in Net
Promoter Score (IVECO Trucks)

2030: 100% recoverable |+ 2026: 100% of Tier 1 suppliers
cores from spare parts involved in sustainability self-
sold to be returned to assessment

the Company

2026: 15% of net sales
from spare parts

+ 2026: +100% vs 2021 in number
of collaboration projects with

generated by suppliers to improve products’
remanufactured sustainability performance
components

+ 2026: +50% vs 2019 in number
of students involved in
educational activities, focusing
on the jobs of the future

@ veco Group assesses gaps in gender pay equity using multilinear regression. This analysis is performed in the countries of operation with a headcount of 100 or

more.
®) Target refers to vehicles manufactured in Europe.
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2023 RESULTS AND PROGRESS RELATED TO OUR STRATEGIC SUSTAINABILITY TARGETS

Targets
2040: net zero carbon emissions

2030: -50% vs 2019 in absolute CO, emissions (Scope 1
&2)

2026: 100% of total electricity consumption derived from
renewable sources

2030: -38% vs 2022 in Scope 3 CO, emissions from the
use of sold products per vehicle/km

2026: -7% vs 2022 in kg of CO, emissions per ton of
goods shipped

2030: -30%e vs 2022 in absolute CO, emissions
generated by major suppliers of purchased goods,
services, and capital goods

2023 Results

Progress towards CO, emissions
reduction targets (Scope 1, 2, and 3) in
line with plan

'-19.9% vs 2019 in absolute CO,
emissions achieved at Company plants
worldwide

98% of total electricity consumption
derived from renewable sources

"-6.1% vs 2022 in Scope 3 CO,
emissions from the use of sold products
per vehicle/km

'1.4% vs 2022 in kg of CO, emissions
per ton of goods shipped

'-3% vs 2022 in absolute CO, emissions
generated by major suppliers of
purchased goods, services, and capital
goods

2026: -40% vs 2019 in injury frequency rate

-35.6% vs 2019 achieved in employee
injury frequency rate

Achievement at 31 December 2023

Target in line with plan

Target in line with plan

Target in line with plan

Target in line with plan

Target in line with plan

Target in line with plan

2026: 100% of new vehicles in Europe equipped with
advanced driver assistance systems ("ADAS") and
additional advanced functions, such as adaptive cruise
control ("ACC"), ACC Stop & Go, corrective steering
function ("CSF"), and lane centring ("LC")

Ongoing development of Level 2 ADAS
for new vehicle models

Target in line with plan

2026: 100% of dealership staff involved in safety training
on our electric product portfolio

27% of dealership staff involved in safety
training on our electric product portfolio

Target in line with plan

2026: 75% of industrial water recycled at Company
plants worldwide

68.4% of industrial water recycled at
Company plants worldwide

Target in line with plan

2026: 100% of new products developed using
sustainability/recyclability design criteria

New design criteria for product launches
being defined with the involvement of the
supply chain

Target in line with plan

2030: 100% of recoverable cores from spare parts sold
returned to the Company

30% of recoverable cores from spare
parts sold returned to the Company

Target in line with plan

2026: 15% of net sales from spare parts generated by
remanufactured components

7.7% of net sales from spare parts
generated by remanufactured
components

Target in line with plan

2026: 23% of management positions held by women

24% of management positions held by
women

Target already achieved in 2023 and
replaced by the following new target

2026: to maintain gender pay equity across the
organisation, and have it certified by a third party

New target

2026: collaborations with 100% of key partners to
improve the working conditions and work-life balance of
drivers

50% of key partners involved in initiatives
to improve the working conditions and
work-life balance of drivers

Target in line with plan

2026: +25% vs 2021 in Net Promoter Score ("NPS") for
IVECO Trucks

+20% vs 2021 in the NPS for IVECO
Trucks

Target exceeded and made more
challenging by increasing its level of
ambition from +20% to +25%.

2026: 100% of Tier 1 suppliers involved in sustainability
self-assessment

82% of Tier 1 suppliers involved in
sustainability self-assessment through
the Open-es platform

Target in line with plan

2026: +100% vs 2021 in number of collaboration projects
with suppliers to improve products’ sustainability
performance

+33% vs 2021 in number of collaboration
projects with suppliers to improve
products’ sustainability performance

Target in line with plan

2026: +50% vs 2019 in number of students involved in
education activities, focusing on the jobs of the future

+33% vs 2019 in number of students
involved in education activities

Target in line with plan
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BUSINESS MODEL

Iveco Group is the home of unique people and brands. The Company’s business model focuses on product and service design, production, sale,
and after-sale support, delivering sustainable and technologically innovative mobility solutions, so as to meet the ever-changing needs of end
customers.

Each of Iveco Group’s eight brands is a major force in its own specific line of business: IVECO, a pioneering commercial vehicles brand that
designs, manufactures, and markets heavy, medium, and light-duty trucks; FPT Industrial, a global leader in advanced powertrain technologies
offering a vast array of solutions in the agriculture, construction, marine, power generation, and commercial vehicles sectors; IVECO BUS and
HEULIEZ, both premium mass-transit bus and coach brands; IDV, for highly-specialised defence and civil protection equipment; ASTRA, a leader
in large-scale heavy-duty quarry and construction vehicles; MAGIRUS, industry-renowned firefighting vehicle and equipment manufacturer; and
IVECO CAPITAL, the finance arm supporting them all.

When Iveco Group launched the Voice engagement campaign and related survey in 2022, it involved every employee in defining its purpose and
5 corporate Values that truly reflect the way the Company wants to do business.

The Company's purpose and values are applied every day and in everything it does, with the support of:
= asystem of principles, rules, and procedures in which roles and responsibilities are clearly defined (see Corporate Governance section);

= a process that anticipates and manages current and future economic, environmental, and social risks and opportunities (see Risk
Management and Internal Control System section);

= aset of strategic business and sustainability priorities that help steer everyone’s efforts.

Iveco Group believes that innovation and the design of products and services tailored to its customers’ needs are fundamental aspects of its
competitive advantage, integral to all its activities and processes in the creation of value, enabling the Company to compete with other market
players and to be seen by its customers as a true partner.

The main goal of lveco Group’s business is to create value for stakeholders, which are classified based on the pillars identified by the World
Economic Forum ("WEF"):

= Planet: representing the commitment to not underestimate the risks the planet is facing. Building a safer and more sustainable world
requires the balance between humanity and nature, and pursuing the necessary targets can no longer be postponed;

= People: representing the commitment to consider the different perspectives of those who are impacted by our business, while actively
encouraging them to join us on our path towards a positive change;

= Prosperity: representing the commitment to ensure more prosperity for all, through the adoption of new technologies and the transition
towards a more inclusive and digital society.

The key points of Iveco Group’s value chain can be summarised as follows:

= People & Operations: representing the people who apply their skills to develop products and services with the utmost dedication in all
Company areas, supported by production processes that are efficient, technologically innovative, and environmentally friendly;

= Product & Services: representing the Company’s product offering ensuring customers enjoy lower operating and maintenance costs,
superior performance, maximum profitability, lower total cost of ownership ("TCQ"), and technological innovation;

= Our Valued Partners: representing those who make up Iveco Group’s ecosystem (mainly the dealerships, service network, and suppliers),
with whom the Company shares a common understanding and works to map out a path through the current challenging transition; and who
make Iveco Group an efficient Company able to give its utmost to customers, the ultimate and most valued partners.

Iveco Group believes that long-term success is achieved by pairing innovation with resource efficiency, and financial prosperity with ESG
performance. For this reason, the organisational model implemented at Iveco Group was designed to strengthen:

= the entrepreneurial agility of business units;

= the focus on new technologies and digital solutions;

= customer centricity;

. clear accountability;

= synergies between business units to achieve global consistency;
= the Company’s efficiency and effectiveness;

= Governance.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

OUR

PURPOSE OUR

Home of unique people and
brands that power

your business and mission
to advance a more
sustainable society

Product Range & Positioning
Operational Performance
Alternative Powertrains
Collaborations & Partnerships
Life Cycle Services

OUR OUR

We go beyond the obvious
We contribute diverse strengths

We take ownership Carbon Footprint
We do what is right Workplace and Product Safety

Life Cycle Thinking
Inclusion and Engagement

We collaborate to win

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

Iveco Group'’s organisational structure comprises global and regional sustainability committees as well as the Sustainability Team, so as to
optimise the management of sustainability aspects within the Company.

The highest responsibility for sustainability matters lies with the Board of Directors’ ESG Committee, which is responsible, among other things, for
assisting the Board in: overseeing the Company’s significant environmental, social, and governance risks, strategies, policies, programmes, and
practices to further its business purpose, strategy, culture, values, and reputation in the best interest of all Iveco Group stakeholders; overseeing
the Company’s ongoing commitment to environmental stewardship and corporate social responsibility; overseeing and evaluating the policies,
procedures, and practices related to the health and safety of Company employees; and globally monitoring, evaluating, and reporting on the
sustainability strategy, governance, policies, procedures, practices, management standards, and performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The ESG Committee helps the Board develop its collective knowledge on sustainability, and provides guidance on key global
environmental, social, and governance issues (see the Governance section).

The SLT Sustainability Committee is made up of the members of the Senior Leadership Team ("SLT"), and is responsible for providing
visionary leadership, identifying the sustainability strategy, integrating that strategy with business needs, adopting a medium- to long-term vision,
and facilitating continuous improvement by identifying and supporting global actions and initiatives. It meets once a month to ensure regular
updates on Iveco Group’s sustainability performance while maintaining its focus on shared priorities and targets. It is also in charge of approving
major local community development projects.

The Company has also appointed specific Sustainability Regional Committees to better manage local initiatives. They include representatives
from the Sustainability Department, Public Affairs, HR, and Legal and Business.

The Sustainability Team is a network of experts responsible for incorporating sustainability criteria more effectively into Company strategy and
ensuring the necessary support for sustainability planning and reporting. The Team comprises the Chief of the Public Affairs & Sustainability
function ("PA&S"), the Sustainability Department, and the Sustainability Representatives.

The Sustainability Department is responsible for:

= monitoring external trends and incorporating them into the Company’s activities in line with stakeholder requirements;

Board Report Our Commitment to Sustainability 12



= proposing projects and promoting the adoption of good practices to encourage their integration into Company processes, supporting and
stimulating the corporate functions worldwide;

= managing sustainability planning and reporting;

= completing questionnaires required by sustainability rating agencies and interacting with ESG investors;

= promoting a culture of sustainability throughout the Company, engaging all levels of the organisation;

= interacting regularly with executive teams and the Board of Directors, providing updates on sustainability performance;
= managing initiatives in support of local communities.

The Sustainability Representatives represent all of lveco Group’s operating areas. They are responsible for:

= ensuring the support and alignment required across the Company;

= bringing expertise to specific issues relating to the Company’s reporting process;

= formulating proposals for continuous improvement.

They provide a direct link between the Sustainability Department and the various operating areas, ensuring both technical and organisational
support.
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Iveco Group’s sustainability management system consists of the following tools:

= the Code of Conduct, approved by the Board of Directors, and related policies that set out the Company’s approach to key issues;
= our Supplier Code of Conduct;

= asetof Company policies to manage specific issues;

= stakeholder engagement on material topics;

= the materiality analysis, which defines social and environmental priorities;

= a set of approximately 200 sustainability related KPIs, designed to provide maximum coverage of all the key environmental, social, and
governance aspects, in line with the GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards ("GRI Standards"), the Sustainability Accounting Standards
("SASB Standards"), the Guidelines of the World Economic Forum ("WEF") and those of the major sustainability rating agencies;
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= the Sustainability Plan, also including the strategic sustainability targets, which identifies action priorities and tracks the commitments
undertaken;

= the annual Sustainability Report, which discloses the Company’s sustainability performance;

= this sustainability summary in the Annual Report, supplementing the financial data as per the requirement of the Dutch Decree on Non-
Financial Information, which incorporated Directive 2014/95/EU into Dutch law. It also reports on the Company’s climate change mitigation
actions as per both the framework and recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD")" and the
requirements of the EU Taxonomy Regulation, which establishes a list of environmentally sustainable economic activities in support of the
EU Green Deal objectives.

(1) Task force of thirty-two international members (including providers of capital, insurers, large non-financial companies, accounting and consulting firms, and credit rating agencies)
established by the Financial Stability Board ("FSB") in 2015 to develop recommendations for more efficient and effective climate-related disclosures. In 2023, the responsibility for
monitoring the progress of companies’ climate-related disclosures was transferred from the TCFD to the IFRS Foundation (effective as of 2024), following the release of the new IFRS
Sustainability Disclosure Standards. As a result, Iveco Group has already started to incorporate the contents of the IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures, with full alignment expected by
2024.

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

Iveco Group carried out a materiality analysis applying the revised approach to materiality introduced by the GRI Universal Standards® published
in 2021. This new approach focuses on the identification of topics that are likely to be material for an organisation based on the latter's most
significant impacts (whether positive or negative, actual or potential) on the economy, the environment, and people, including impacts on human
rights. This inside-out perspective, which considers the impacts that are or could be generated by a company, was adopted when performing
Iveco Group’s impact materiality analysis, as per the GRI requirements.

Acting proactively and anticipating the requirements of the EU’'s Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive ("CSRD"), the Company also
performed a second materiality analysis, implementing, for the first time, a double-materiality approach, which integrates a financial materiality
perspective with the aforementioned impact materiality perspective. The former entails an outside-in approach, identifying topics that are likely to
be material for an organisation due to the sustainability risks and opportunities associated therewith that have or could have a significant impact
on future cash flows, with potential financial repercussions for company development, performance, and positioning in the short, medium, and
long term.

(2) The Global Reporting Initiative ("GRI") is a multi-stakeholder association for the development and disclosure of standards for reporting on an organisation’s economic, environmental,
and/or social impacts.

The following are the main steps involved in identifying Iveco Group’s material topics

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS PROCESS

STEP STEP STEP STEP
Analysis and Identification of Assessment of the Definition and
understanding of impacts, risks, and significance of impacts, prioritisation of the
the organisational and opportunities risks, and opportunities material topics based on the
business context significance of impacts, risks,

and opportunities

1. Analysis and understanding of the organisational and business context

Understanding Iveco Group’s activities, business relationships, and stakeholders, as well as the sustainability context in which it operates,
was the first step towards identifying the Company’s impacts, risks, and opportunities. To this end, a benchmark analysis was performed
against comparable sector enterprises and according to the requirements of the main international sustainability standards. An analysis of
the external context was performed as well, to identify the main sustainability-related trends and aspects of the industry in which the
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Company operates.
2. ldentification of impacts, risks, and opportunities
To obtain an exhaustive list of Iveco Group’s main impacts, risks, and opportunities according to both impact and financial materiality

perspectives, the analysis performed in Step 1 also took into consideration the risks identified through the Company’s Enterprise Risk
Management ("ERM") risk assessment process, which is conducted on a regular basis.

3. Assessment of the significance of impacts, risks, and opportunities
The significance of the identified impacts was assessed based on their severity, extent, irreparable nature (only for negative impacts), and
probability. The significance of the identified risks and opportunities, on the other hand, was assessed based on the severity and probability

parameters employed by the ERM system, and on their extent in terms of potential to create or diminish corporate value — and therefore to
impact the Company’s development, performance, and positioning in the short, medium, and long term.

The above impacts, risks, and opportunities were duly assessed (on a scale of 1-4) by the members of Iveco Group’s Sustainability
Leadership Team ("SLT") during a day-long workshop, after in-depth discussions on emerging ESG trends led by external experts attending
the event. The assessment process also involved online interviews with sustainability experts and some of the Company’s main
stakeholders.

4.  Definition and prioritisation of the material topics based on the significance of impacts, risks, and opportunities

As per the requirements of the 2021 GRI Universal Standards, the outcomes of Iveco Group’s impacts assessment was used to create a
priority list of material topics (14 in total), classified according to the 4 priorities® of the Company’s sustainability strategy. This list was
submitted to and approved by the ESG Committee of Iveco Group’s Board of Directors.

(3) Iveco Group’s four strategic sustainability priorities are: carbon footprint, workplace and product safety, life cycle thinking, and inclusion and engagement.

IMPACT MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

Position Material Topic

Strategic Sustainability Priority

1 Product quality and safety Workplace and product safety
2 CO, emissions from vehicles Carbon footprint

3 Human rights Inclusion and engagement

4 Occupational health and safety Workplace and product safety
5 Diversity, equity, and inclusion Inclusion and engagement

6 Sustainable supply chain Life cycle thinking

7 Dealer and customer management Inclusion and engagement

8 Circular product life cycle Life cycle thinking

9 CO, emissions from logistics Carbon footprint

10 Employee development and training Inclusion and engagement

1 CO, emissions from operations Carbon footprint

12 Responsible management of natural resources Life cycle thinking

13 Digitalisation and connectivity Workplace and product safety
14 Local communities Inclusion and engagement

All topics submitted for assessment within the impact materiality analysis were found to be material to Iveco Group. It should be noted that,
within the scope of the analysis, aspects related to Corporate Governance, business ethics, and regulatory compliance were considered
prerequisites, and therefore were not examined individually.

The two most material topics, product quality and safety and CO, emissions from vehicles, reflect the importance to Iveco Group’s brands of
offering customers products that have low environmental impact, are safe and reliable, and comply with high quality standards.

By integrating the outcomes of the two assessments (risks and opportunities with impacts), the material topics were positioned on a materiality
matrix to provide a visual representation of both impact materiality and financial materiality perspectives.

In 2023, a further step in the materiality analysis was made by evaluating the relevance of our current material topics (and their associated
impacts, risks, and opportunities) in South America, taking into account the local context and specific needs. The analysis was performed on site,
directly involving the local management team through a dedicated workshop. It confirmed the same positioning on the Materiality Matrix of our top
three material topics (Product quality and safety, CO, emissions from vehicles, and Human rights). It also showed the greater significance at local
level of three material topics in terms of financial materiality (CO, emissions from logistics, CO, emissions from operations, and Sustainable
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supply chain) and of a material topic from an impact materiality perspective (Local communities).

IVECO GROUP MATERIALITY MATRIX

2023 MATERIALITY MATRIX

)
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY ’

IMPACT MATERIALITY
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FINANCIAL MATERIALITY >
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Q Carbon Footprint
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RELEVANT ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
CO, emissions from operations

This material topic is related to the implementation of measures to reduce CO, emissions, through the use of renewable sources and energy
efficiency initiatives within lveco Group’s operational processes.

As stated in its Environmental Policy, which provides the framework for the management of this material topic, Iveco Group is committed to
reducing: the use of fossil fuels in favour of renewable energy sources; energy consumption through more efficient products and processes; and
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GHG emissions by cutting energy consumption while adopting both conventional and innovative technical solutions. The Company’s aim is to
reduce the energy impact of manufacturing processes and the risks associated with new legislation and rising energy costs through: the
development and implementation of an energy management system; the ongoing promotion of employee involvement in energy resource
conservation and awareness of its importance; and the realisation of technical and management improvement projects.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: risk related to compliance with product, process and supply chain’s regulations (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this
report);

= opportunity: public incentives to promote decarbonisation strategies may support lveco Group’s commitment to fighting climate change.

In 2023, Iveco Group implemented numerous short- to medium-term initiatives involving the redesign of processes, equipment conversion and
retrofitting, operational changes to new installations, and increased employee awareness. The Company invested over €4.4 million in efficiency
projects, generating more than €3.6 million in savings.

The use of electricity from renewable sources was 98% of the Company'’s total electricity consumption.
As of 31 December 2023, 22 plants were ISO 50001 certified.

Direct and indirect CO, emissions®

IVECO GROUP WORLDWIDE
2023 2022 2021
Plants (no.) 22 23 25
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tons) 59,673 60,712 66,229
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) — market-based (tons) 38,839 41,024 46,851
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) - location-based (tons) 128,485 132,064 145,537
Total CO, emissions® - market based (tons) 98,512 101,736 113,080
Direct and indirect CO, emissions per production unit
(tons of CO,/hour of production®) 0.00279 0.00306 0.00348

@ 0, is the only significant greenhouse gas within Iveco Group’s processes. Greenhouse Gases (“GHG’) emissions were consolidated and reported using an operational control
approach. Performance relates to 22 fully consolidated plants.

® Total CO, emissions calculated as per the market-based methodology of the GHG Protocol, including emissions from fuel used to test products.

© Total manufacturing hours are used to calculate the indicator per hour of production.

CO, emissions from vehicles

This material topic is related to the development of innovative solutions to reduce the carbon footprint of vehicles, through the implementation of
the most advanced technologies and the use of renewable fuels.

As stated in its Environmental Policy, Iveco Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of vehicles, hence to developing products
that deliver industry-leading performance in terms of fuel efficiency, noise and polluting emissions, and recoverability rates.

Iveco Group is working hard to reduce the CO, emissions associated with product use. To reach this objective, the Company is gradually shifting
towards battery-electric and fuel cell-electric vehicles. To reduce vehicle CO, emissions from product use, the Company is mainly aiming at
offering: a full portfolio of natural gas engines, all compatible with biomethane; a wide range of battery electric vehicles ("BEV"); and fuel cell
electric vehicles ("FCEV") for long-haul.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
= risk: non-compliance with emissions regulations, impacting product mix (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this report);
= opportunity: an increase in the demand for low-carbon vehicles may create new business opportunities.

The new IVECO eDaily - the first-generation, full-electric version of our best-selling IVECO Daily commercial van offers customers a full
ecosystem of eMobility services, including a comprehensive selection of charging solutions delivered in collaboration with strategic energy
partners. Other services include the innovative eDaily Routing and IVECO ON Easy Daily apps. The former communicates with the vehicle to
predict vehicle range, required battery charge to reach a given destination, and precise time of arrival. The latter, which can be integrated with the
IVECO Driver Pal voice assistant, offers vehicle-specific information on performance (health checks, battery levels, etc.), remote scheduling of
battery recharge and preconditioning, navigation to recharging stations, and more.

IVECO BUS launched its new array of electric models, extending its range of zero-emission vehicles and minibuses to meet the demands of
urban, peri-urban, and suburban missions:

= the CROSSWAY LE ELEC: a new full-electric bus to support sustainable suburban and peri-urban mobility projects
= the STREETWAY ELEC: a 12-metre, battery-electric city bus designed to meet the specific needs of European and extra-European markets
= the latest generation of the E-WAY range: featuring improved performance to match the most demanding European city missions. Nearly
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1,000 units have already covered more than 56 million kilometres across 12 European countries

= the eDaily: the latest addition to the Daily minibus family; this new 100% electric minibus is also available in chassis version. Within the light-
duty range, IVECO and Hyundai unveiled a working prototype of the eDaily FCEV, featuring Hyundai's 90 kW hydrogen fuel cell system and
140 kW e-motor, and a battery pack designed by FPT Industrial, lveco Group’s powertrain brand. The prototype has a 7.2-ton gross vehicle
weight ("GVW"). It has been tested in Europe, confirming a range of 350 kilometres, a 3-ton maximum payload, and a refuelling time of 15
minutes or less. The Company also advocates publicly for a quick implementation of the enabling conditions, such as refuelling and
recharging stations, for the deployment of zero-emission vehicles

CO, emissions from logistics

This material topic is related to initiatives that promote sustainable logistics processes, focusing on increasing low-emission transport, adopting
intermodal solutions, and optimising transport capacity.

As stated in its Environmental Policy, Iveco Group also addresses the low-impact logistics chain as part of its commitment to minimising
environmental impact and contributing to the reduction of traffic congestion in urban areas. The Company implements numerous initiatives to
promote ever-more sustainable logistics processes. These focus on technologies, procedures, and activities aimed at reducing the environmental
impact of logistics processes without compromising service quality or profitability, while taking account of the social impact of the activity itself.
The aspects considered in defining technical solutions include type of transport, intermodality, and long-haul transport.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: risk related to compliance with product, process and supply chain’s regulations (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this
report);

= opportunity: boost of logistic infrastructure in the countries where lveco Group operates to reduce the carbon footprint of the transport sector.

In 2023, Iveco Group implemented several improvement projects, which reduced CO, emissions by 1.4% compared to the previous year, in terms
of kilos of CO, emissions per ton of goods shipped.

Responsible management of natural resources

This material topic is related to the responsible and efficient management of resources across all operations, with the aim to reduce Iveco Group’s
environmental footprint.

As stated in its Environmental Policy, which provides the framework for the management of this material topic, the Company is committed to
reducing: the use of raw materials by promoting the use of renewable and recycled materials in production processes; the consumption of fresh
water in production processes, especially in areas where its availability is critical to the surrounding environment and population; the discharges of
hazardous substances from manufacturing that may affect water supplies; the production of waste in manufacturing processes, in particular
hazardous waste; and the use of potentially hazardous substances while also promoting their substitution wherever possible. The Company is
also committed to minimising impacts on natural habitats and their biodiversity in areas surrounding production plants.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: risk related to compliance with product, process and supply chain’s regulations (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this
report);

= opportunity: public incentives aimed at promoting circular economy initiatives may support Iveco Group’s commitment to preserving the
environment.

In 2023, the overall expenditure on environmental protection was approximately €36.1 million, broken down as follows: about €19.6 million on

waste disposal and emissions treatment, and almost €16.5 million on prevention and environmental management. A total of €5.1 million was

invested in initiatives to reduce Iveco Group’s environmental impact, while improvement projects and measures generated €1.5 million in cost

savings.

As of 31 December 2023, 22 plants were ISO 14001 certified.

As further evidence of the Company’s commitment to protecting the environment, 2023 performance improved compared to the previous year.

This was due to the numerous projects implemented during the year to optimise environmental management.
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MAIN ENVIRONMENTAL INDICATORS

IVECO GROUP WORLDWIDE
2023 2022 2021
Plants (no) 22 23 24
Volatile organic compounds ("VOC") emissions (g/m?) 30.1 33.7 39.6
Water recycled (%) 64.5 60.1 55.3
Industrial water recycled (%) 68.4 64.1 59.6
Water withdrawals (m® per hour of production?) 0.094 0.103 0.108
Waste generated (kg per hour of production?) 245 249 2.54
Hazardous waste generated (kg per hour of production®) 0.19 0.20 0.24
Waste recovered (%) 97.5 96.7 96.5

@ Total manufacturing hours are used to calculate the indicator per hour of production.

Circular product life cycle

This material topic is related to the integration of circular economy principles in product development, promoting the responsible use of resources
throughout the entire life cycle of the product.

As stated in its Environmental Policy, lveco Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of its products, developing them so as to
deliver industry-leading performance in terms of fuel efficiency, noise and polluting emissions, and recoverability rate.

Iveco Group duly assesses the impact of the materials used in its products at all stages, from definition to the design phase. In particular,
significant effort goes into:

= using an eco-design approach to boost innovation and reduce the consumption and environmental impact of materials;
= selecting and/or designing components that:
o have a lower environmental footprint
o are easy to dismantle
o can easily be repaired or remanufactured
= eliminating the presence of regulated substances;
= aiming at greater efficiency during use;
= aiming at longer intervals between maintenance cycles;

= offering customers a portfolio that reflects a circular economy mindset, including sustainable parts and services that increase the lifespan of
vehicles, certified pre-owned vehicles, and remanufactured components.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: risk related to compliance with product, process and supply chain’s regulations (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this
report);

= opportunity: a greater availability of reused and/or recycled materials may reduce the supply costs.

Sustainable Supply Chain

This material topic is related to the promotion of responsible practices among suppliers, with the aim to improve their reliability and safety levels
while supporting them in minimising their environmental footprint.

The Supplier Code of Conduct and the Iveco Group Code of Conduct provide a framework for responsible supply chain management. In addition
to compliance with local legislation, the Supplier Code of Conduct stipulates respect for: labour and human rights, environmental protection, trade
restrictions/export controls, and business ethics. It applies to the entire supply chain and requires suppliers to work with the Company to enforce
the Code itself, and to pass on its principles to their respective employees, subsidiaries, affiliates, and subcontractors.

Selecting and codifying new suppliers is an operational phase of the procurement process that is regulated by specific internal procedures.
Selection is based not only on the quality and competitiveness of supplier products and services, but also on compliance with lveco Group’s
social, ethical, and environmental principles. New suppliers are required to sign a formal Commitment Declaration through which they agree to
comply with both the Iveco Group Code of Conduct and Supplier Code of Conduct. Specific contractual clauses require them to provide
references and demonstrate abilities in relation to: fighting corruption, safeguarding the environment, promoting health and safety at work,
ensuring non-discrimination, prohibiting forced and/or child labour, and recognising freedom of association.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
= risk: risk related to compliance with product, process and supply chain’s regulations (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this
report);
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= opportunity: suppliers willing to implement social and environmental improvements may lead to synergies and new business opportunities.

Iveco Group is member of Open-es, the community-based digital platform that aims to increase suppliers’ engagement and awareness of
sustainability topics, while monitoring their sustainability performance. In 2023, we continued to invite our direct material suppliers to join the
Open-es platform. The total suppliers currently registered on the platform are 749, representing approximately 82% of our direct material
purchases. Moreover, their average progress so far in filling out the Open-es questionnaire (78%) is a clear reflection of their willingness to join us
on our path and to share their progress with the Company. This interactive ecosystem, combined with the Company’s ongoing dialogue and
collaboration with suppliers, is a means to share experiences and find increasingly innovative solutions to reduce the environmental footprint of
both.

RELEVANT SOCIAL AND PERSONNEL MATTERS

Occupational Health and Safety

This material topic is related to the protection of workers’ and third parties’ health and safety through the adoption of management systems and
initiatives that promote a safety culture.

As stated in its Health and Safety Policy, which provides the framework for the management of this material topic, Iveco Group is committed to
protecting and promoting the health and safety of its employees and customers. Iveco Group aims to prevent incidents and occupational disease,
while minimising other risks related to occupational health and safety ("OH&S"), by adopting a preventive approach in all significant activities, from
the choice of materials, tools, and machinery to the selection of production processes. The Company also promotes health and safety by raising
awareness among employees, through training and communications on accident prevention and OH&S and, at certain facilities, through medical
check-up programmes.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: infectious diseases or pandemics may threaten the workers’ health, affecting business continuity;

= opportunity: initiatives implemented with business partners to improve workplace health and safety may strengthen the spread of a safety
culture within the organisation, contributing to safeguarding business continuity.

In 2023, approximately €61.2 million was spent on improving health and safety protection, of which almost €55.8 million on improvements to
occupational safety and working conditions (worker protection, structural improvements, inspections of plants and working environments), and
approximately €5.4 million on employee health care costs.

As of 31 December 2023, 22 plants were ISO 45001 certified.

MAIN INJURY RATES

IVECO GROUP WORLDWIDE
2023 2022 2021

Injury frequency rate® (injuries per 1,000,000 hours worked) 1.775 2424 2.297
Employee injury frequency rate® (injuries per 1,000,000 hours

worked) 1.738 2.364 2402
Rate of high-consequence work related injuries among

employees® (high-consequence work-related injuries per

1,000,000 hours worked, excluding fatalities) 0.017 — —
Rate of recordable work-related injuries among employeesd

(recordable work-related injuries per 1,000,000 hours worked) 1.460 2.199 1.832

@ The injury frequency rate is the number of injuries (work-related and non-work related, for employee and agency workers, resulting in at least 1 day of absence, excluding the day on
which the event occurred) divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 1,000,000.

® The employee injury frequency rate is the number of employee injuries (work-related and non-work related, resulting in at least 1 day of absence, excluding the day on which the event
occurred) divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 1,000,000.

© The rate of high-consequence work-related injuries is the number of such injuries reported divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 1,000,000

@ The rate of recordable work-related injuries is the number of such injuries reported divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 1,000,000.

Product quality and safety

This material topic is related to the delivery of safe, high-quality vehicles to customers by adopting the highest standards to maximise road user
safety. Providing customers with safe products is a fundamental objective at Iveco Group and a key responsibility as described in the Code of
Conduct. Every effort is made to deliver extremely safe, reliable, and high-quality products and services. Employees are expected to comply with
the safety standards implemented, taking appropriate steps to prevent, identify, and correct any non-compliance. Any vehicle safety issues must
be immediately reported to supervisors, the Compliance or Legal departments, or via the Company’s Whistleblowing System. This commitment is
stated in the Health and Safety Policy and applies to all products and Iveco Group brands. As a result, each brand aims to achieve the highest
standards of preventive, active, and passive product safety, so as to safeguard the health of drivers/operators, passengers, and pedestrians.
Iveco Group also implements a Cybersecurity Management System, certified as per the UNECE R155 regulation, which ensures the safety of
embedded vehicle software and data over the entire life cycle of products, thus minimising the risk of cyberattacks on vehicles.

The Company achieves these goals by: researching, developing, and adopting functional and technical solutions that contribute to enhancing the
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product's safety performance, as well as ergonomic solutions; conducting studies and research to find and develop safer and more sustainable
materials and chemical compounds; providing information on a product's safe use in its Operator's Manual; and offering training programmes on
the safe and correct use of products.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
= risk: product quality impacted by process design and production issues (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this report);
= opportunity: an increase in customer demand for high-quality vehicles may create new business opportunities.

Iveco Group offers active (primary) and passive (secondary) safety features, as well as tertiary safety tools (rescue sheets and emergency
response guides in case of accident).

Digitalisation and connectivity

This material topic is related to the development of digital technologies and use of big data analysis aimed at establishing a direct connection
between vehicles and their surrounding environment, so as to support users’ real-time decision making while safeguarding data and
cybersecurity.

The Company has adopted the Iveco Group Data Privacy Policy and various cybersecurity solutions to maximise protection against cyberattacks.
Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: information technology risks, including cybercrimes (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this report);

= opportunity: an increase in demand for innovative vehicles and digital solutions may create new business opportunities.

In Europe, Iveco Group’s Customer Uptime Centre oversees the connection of vehicles, assisting drivers in avoiding breakdowns through
predictive diagnosis, and in optimising route navigation and fuel consumption by offering real-time driving recommendations.

Diversity, equity, and inclusion
This material topic is related to the promotion of an inclusive work environment, enhancing diversity and challenging all discriminatory behaviour.

As stated in its Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Policy, the framework for managing this material topic, Iveco Group is committed to acting impartially
to eliminate any form of direct or indirect discrimination or undue preference, while supporting and nurturing a culture based on mutual respect
and on valuing differences to foster and promote the expression of everyone’s potential.

Furthermore, as stated in its Human Rights Policy, Iveco Group does not accept discrimination against employees in any form whatsoever,
including on the basis of: ethnicity, race, gender, sexual orientation, personal or social status, health, physical condition, disability, age, nationality,
religious or personal beliefs, political opinion, or any other protected status.

The Company recruits and hires on the basis of experience, knowledge, and skills and is committed to providing equal opportunities to all
employees, both on the job and in their career advancement.

The chief of Human Resources for each business unit/function, in collaboration with all personnel managers, shall ensure that in every aspect of
the employment relationship, such as recruitment, training, compensation, promotion, transfer, and termination, employees are treated according
to their abilities to meet job requirements and all decisions are free from any form of discrimination.

Furthermore, as stated in the Iveco Group Code of Conduct, the Company is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, both on
the job and in their career advancement, and to complying with all applicable laws that prohibit discrimination.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
= risk: risks associated to employment relationships (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this report);
= opportunity: increased social awareness and the inclusion of minority groups may expand labour market opportunities.

In 2023, Iveco Group implemented many Company initiatives, including various local programmes aimed at attracting diverse candidates while
raising awareness and understanding of gender topics. One example is Siglo 21: Social & Labour Inclusion In Latin America, an initiative offering
3-month work opportunities at our Company to 18 people with cognitive disabilities, as part of the university’s Diploma in Competences for Social
and Labour Inclusion.

Gender equity is a focal point for the Company. Women at Iveco Group constitute 19.1% of the global workforce and 24% of management
positions are held by women.

Employee development and training

This material topic is related to ensuring employees’ professional and personal growth and promoting adequate welfare plans to enhance their
value and well-being.

As stated in the Code of Conduct, Iveco Group recognises that motivated, engaged and highly professional people are an essential factor in
maintaining competitiveness, creating long-term value for stakeholders and ensuring customer satisfaction.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
= risk: risks associated to employment relationships (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this report);
= opportunity: collaborations with universities and the academic community may increase the pool of potential new hires.
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In 2023, Iveco Group invested approximately €17 million in learning and development initiatives at global level, demonstrating a strong
commitment to the growth of our people at all levels. As regards the training provided exclusively under our ON LEARN LMS platform (and
covered by the circa €0.9 million investment), in 2023, Iveco Group delivered a total of 433,045 training hours to 24,996 employees.

Local communities

This material topic pertains to the promotion of initiatives aimed at supporting and developing local communities in the regions in which Iveco
Group operates.

As set forth in the Code of Conduct, the Company’s approach to community engagement is reflected in its commitment to playing an active role in
local communities by contributing to their social, economic, and institutional development through specific programmes.

In addition, the Community Investment Policy ensures that activities are managed consistently, defining areas of application at global level.

To maximise the positive impact on local people, the Company has implemented a group-wide strategy, identifying three main areas of
intervention related to its business and to the connection of people and communities:

. preserve biodiversity;
= reduce inequality, protect diversity and vulnerable groups;
= foster health and well-being.

The strategy goes hand in hand with a sound governance structure, which consists of a participatory process, led by the Sustainability
Department, involving the Sustainability Committee ("SLT"), the Legal and Finance departments, and five regional committees. This structure
optimises the identification and management of differentiation opportunities and ensures the execution of operational aspects in alignment with
country-specific requirements.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:

= risk: hostility by local communities towards activities conducted by Iveco Group in the regions in which it operates may cause reputational
damage or affect business continuity;

= opportunity: an increase in the Company’s business development thanks to synergies with local partners.
In 2023, approximately €3.72 million in resources were allocated to local communities.

Initiatives supported during the year include:

= restoring native vegetation and the local ecosystem as well as ensuring access to sustainable water;

= promoting equitable and inclusive access to resources and to learning opportunities;

= addressing a supportive environment for health and well-being.

Dealer and Customer Management

This material topic is related to active engagement with dealers and customers, by behaving with correctness, transparency, and promptness, in
order to satisfy their expectations and respond to their requests.

As stated in Iveco Group’s Code of Conduct, the Company aspires to fully meet and exceed the expectations of its customers, and to
continuously improve the quality of products and services and the ease with which customers do business with Iveco Group. This objective is
achieved by developing and maintaining profitable and lasting relationships with customers, and by delivering safety, service, quality, and value
supported by continuous innovation.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
= risk: dealers related risk (for further details, refer to section “Risk Factors” of this report);
= opportunity: an increase in dealers’ and customers’ interest in Company products may create new business opportunities.

RELEVANT MATTERS WITH RESPECT TO HUMAN RIGHTS
This material topic is related to ensuring respect for fundamental human and labour rights throughout the entire the value chain.

Iveco Group has adopted and implemented a specific Human Rights Policy, its commitment already stated in its Code of Conduct and in its
Supplier Code of Conduct. These documents are available on the Company’s website. While it is the responsibility of all covered persons to
ensure respect for human rights, the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) retains executive oversight and has responsibility for the implementation of
the Human Rights Policy.

The Company seeks to promote respect for human rights principles by others where it has an influence, particularly among contractors, suppliers,
and other entities and individuals with whom it has a business relationship. The Company will not establish or continue a relationship with an
entity or individual that refuses to respect the principles of its Code of Conduct.

Iveco Group respects and promotes human rights in line with national laws, the fundamental Conventions of the International Labour Organisation
("ILQ"), the UN’s Universal Declaration of Human Rights, and the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises.

Moreover, the Company implements specific procedures to monitor respect for human rights within its operations, assessing the latter’s potential
impact on human rights and implementing mitigating and preventative measures where needed.

Risks and opportunities related to this material topic, as considered in the materiality analysis, are:
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= risk: the violation of human rights across the value chain may cause reputational damage to lveco Group;
= opportunity: an increase in stakeholders’ awareness of human rights may enhance the Company’s reputation.

The Company monitors respect for human rights both internally, through the Internal Audit function, and across the supply chain, through an
annual assessment process. In 2023, this task involved 3,854 Company employees located in 2 countries in South America, as well as 77
suppliers worldwide representing 7% of our total purchase value.

Iveco Group seeks to implement a variety of measures (e.g., training activities) to help employees understand and address human rights issues in
the course of their work. In 2023, online training on human rights and other Code of Conduct aspects was delivered to approximately 12,415
employees worldwide (salaried and above).

RELEVANT MATTERS WITH RESPECT TO ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY

Iveco Group’s commitment to doing business with integrity means a zero tolerance approach to corruption, in any form that is deployed, among
other, by preventing corruption in any form, including bribery, and complying with the anti-corruption laws of all countries in which it operates.

The Company has adopted and implemented an Anti-Corruption Policy, which is distributed to all employees and senior management across the
globe and is available on the Company’s website in seven languages. The Company’s Anti-Corruption Policy establishes procedures designed to
ensure full compliance with applicable anti-corruption legislation. Oversight of the Policy lies with the corporate Compliance function.

Iveco Group’s Internal Audit function verifies, among other things, corruption prevention processes and controls. The results of such internal
audits are submitted to both the Company’s Audit Committee and senior management to enable them to improve internal controls when
appropriate. In 2023, no substantiated reports of bribery or corruption were reported to the Company through the Compliance Helpline or
otherwise. In addition, Internal Audit activities did not identify bribery or corruption problems or issues. The Company also investigates and tracks,
among other things, all corruption allegations to evaluate the need for additional controls and training, and surveys all employees annually,
reminding them of their obligation to report compliance issues.

Corruption has a corrosive and detrimental impact on society, and Iveco Group is strongly committed to reducing the risk of potential violations,
operating in compliance with anti-corruption law.

Such risks include sharing agents’ fees, bribery, corruption resulting from extraordinary business opportunities or partnerships, or gift-giving
violations. The Company's relations with government also present a potential risk to the Company’s reputation and finances.

The Company provides both online and classroom-based anti-corruption training. In 2023, it delivered an online course to all salaried and above
personnel (approximately 12,415 employees).

In addition, the Company’s Supplier Code of Conduct sets forth the Company’s expectations with respect to all suppliers, prohibiting any form of
bribery, inducement, or any other improper payment (of cash or anything of value) to a third party to obtain an unfair or improper advantage.
EU TAXONOMY ON SUSTAINABLE ACTIVITIES

The EU Taxonomy Regulation establishes a classification system (or EU Taxonomy) that helps companies identify and direct investments to the
economic activities that can be considered environmentally sustainable, and that therefore support the EU Green Deal objectives and the
transition to net zero carbon emissions by 2050. It also establishes six environmental objectives, two of which were regulated in 2021 while the
remaining four in 2023.

Climate Change Mitigation ("CCM") and Climate Change Adaptation ("CCA") are the two objectives that the European Union regulated in 2021
through Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2139 ("Climate Delegated Act"), which provides for two lists of economic activities that can
potentially contribute to achieving the CCM and CCA objectives. For each economic activity' identified, the Climate Delegated Act provides a
description and specific Technical Screening Criteria ("TSC"); the latter are subdivided in Substantial Contribution criteria ("SCC") and Do No
Significant Harm criteria ("DNSH").

In 2023, the European Commission published the final Environmental Delegated Act, which defines the technical screening criteria of the four
other environmental objectives of the Taxonomy Regulation, namely: sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources; transition to
a circular economy; pollution prevention and control; and protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems.

To be environmentally sustainable under the EU Taxonomy, an economic activity must:
. be taxonomy eligible, i.e., fall under the description of one of the economic activities;

= (only if eligible) be taxonomy aligned, i.e., meet the TSC. Indeed, an economic activity must meet the SCC in order to substantially
contribute to an environmental objective of the Taxonomy Regulation, and the DNSH criteria to ensure it does not cause significant harm to
any of the other Taxonomy objectives.

As of 2022, companies are required to disclose the proportion of turnover, capital expenditure ("CapEx2), and operating expenditure ("OpEx") of
taxonomy eligible and non-eligible activities (for CCM and CCA). As of financial year 2023, companies are required to disclose these KPlIs of
taxonomy eligible and non-eligible activities for the remaining four environmental objectives, as well as of aligned and not-aligned activities (only
for Climate Change Mitigation and Climate Change Adaptation). 2023 was the second year of reporting for which companies were required to
assess and disclose the actual alignment of their activities with the technical screening criteria for Climate Change Mitigation and Climate Change
Adaptation, and the first year of reporting on the eligibility of their activities with regards to the other four objectives.

Board Report Our Commitment to Sustainability 23



Eligibility assessment of lveco Group’s economic activities

Iveco Group conducted an eligibility assessment of its core business activities and operations, comparing the latter against the economic activities
of Annexes | and Il of the Climate Delegated Act. The economic activities found to be eligible fell within the scope of one of the following activity
categories:

= 3.3 ‘Manufacture of low carbon technologies for transport’, which represents most of Iveco Group’s core activities and operations;
= 5.4 'Sale of second-hand goods’, (considered only for turnover KPI);

= 6.5 Transport by motorbikes, passenger cars, and light commercial vehicles’, which represents in particular lveco Group’s financial services
activities.

Climate Change Mitigation was identified as the environmental objective most consistent with lveco Group’s business.

Alignment assessment of lveco Group’s economic activities — Substantial Contribution criteria

For the economic activities identified as eligible, a further assessment was conducted to verify if they met the relevant SCC, so as to identify those
among them that are aligned with Disclosures Delegated Act requirements and determine their proportion of turnover, CapEx, and OpEx. The
analysis performed confirmed that all technical screening criteria for substantial contribution to the CCM objective were met.

Particularly with regard to the Substantial Contribution criteria, the economic activities falling under 3.3 ‘Manufacture of low carbon technologies
for transport’ and 6.5 ‘Transport by motorbikes, passenger cars, and light commercial vehicles’ consist in the manufacture, repair, maintenance,
retrofitting, repurposing, and upgrade of category M1 and N1 vehicles that meet the GHG emissions threshold (less than 50 g CO,/km).

Alignment assessment of lveco Group’s economic activities — Do No Significant Harm criteria

The economic activities previously assessed in relation to Substantial Contribution criteria were further analysed to verify whether they also met
Do No Significant Harm ("DNSH") criteria.

Keeping in mind that our activities are mainly related to the Climate Change Mitigation environmental objective, the results of the aforementioned
analysis showed that all economic activities falling under activity 3.3 met the DNSH criteria with regard to the other five environmental objectives
as follows:

= Climate Change Adaptation: for each plant where economic activities took place, a climate risk and vulnerability assessment was conducted
to identify the physical climate risks material to the activities themselves, as well as the adaptation solutions to reduce such risks
accordingly;

= Sustainable Use and Protection of Water and Marine Resources: degradation risks related to preserving water quality and avoiding water
stress were identified and addressed through Iveco Group’s environmental management system, with the aim of achieving good water
status and good ecological potential. The WRI Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas was used to identify the Company’s plants in water-stressed
areas;

= Transition to a Circular Economy: the circular economy criteria were met in relation to manufacturing processes;

= Pollution Prevention and Control regarding Use and Presence of Chemicals: the requirements related to the use of certain substances, as
set out in Appendix C to Annex | of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2139, were met. Compliance with regulations such as REACH and
RoHS is guaranteed through the collection of information from suppliers (IMDS - International Material Data System), the verification of the
absence of dangerous substances, and the relevant communications required. Iveco Group is fully aligned with points (a), (b), (c), (d), and
(e) of Appendix C. As regards the amendment of point (f) included in Regulation 2023/2485 on 27 June 2023, it does not appear to introduce
any additional requirements beyond those outlined in the REACH Regulation. Accordingly, the Company will make every effort to collect and
evaluate supply chain data over the required 18-month period to prove that no other suitable alternatives are available on the market for
certain substances;

= Protection and Restoration of Biodiversity and Ecosystems: two methodologies were implemented at the manufacturing sites adjacent to
protected areas of particular environmental interest where the economic activities took place, so as to assess their impact on biodiversity
and ecosystems.

With regard to the economic activities falling under activity 6.5, they met the DNSH criteria with regard to the other five environmental objectives
as follows:

= Climate Change Adaptation: for each plant where economic activities take place, a climate risk and vulnerability assessment was conducted
to identify the physical climate risks material to the activities themselves, as well as adaptation solutions to reduce such risks accordingly;

= Transition to a Circular Economy: the circular economy criteria were met in relation to M1 and N1 vehicles;

= Pollution Prevention and Control regarding Use and Presence of Chemicals: both vehicles M1 and N1 complied with the requirements of the
most recent applicable stage of the Euro 6 light-duty emission type-approval, as well as with external rolling noise requirements related to
tyres.

Minimum Safeguard Assessment

The EU Taxonomy Regulation sets a further requirement for economic activities to be considered sustainable: they must be not only
environmentally sustainable by meeting the TSC, but also socially sustainable by meeting certain Minimum Safeguards.

More specifically, in conducting the economic activity, an entity shall also implement measures to ensure its alignment with the OECD Guidelines
for Multinational Enterprises, with the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, with the principles and rights set out in the eight
fundamental conventions identified in the Declaration of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) on Fundamental Principles and Rights at
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Work, and with the International Bill of Human Rights.
Iveco Group conducted a specific assessment to verify the compliance of its activities with Minimum Safeguards.

Iveco Group upholds respect for human rights through its Code of Conduct, Supplier Code of Conduct, and Human Rights Policy. Human rights
are monitored across the Company’s internal operations and throughout its supply chain and customer base by means of dedicated processes for
each area. To ensure full compliance with applicable anti-corruption and bribery laws, an Anti-Corruption Policy and specific procedures are in
place. The Company’s tax risk management strategy focuses on managing and minimising the possibility of operating in violation of tax
regulations or in a way that is contrary to the principles or purposes of the tax system. As regards grievances, a Compliance Helpline is available
to all Iveco Group employees, customers, suppliers, and other third parties to report potential violations of applicable laws, Company policies, or
the Code of Conduct. Lastly, Iveco Group safeguards consumer interest through its Code of Conduct and Supplier Code of Conduct, which
stipulate, among other things, respect for the principles of fair competition and antitrust regulations.

Accounting Policy (1.2.1)

Iveco Group's Sustainability Department and Finance Department were involved in the identification of the values related to the three KPls
(Turnover, CapEx, OpEx). As per the criteria set out in Annex 1 to EU Commission Delegated 2021/2178 ('Disclosures Delegated Act'), these
departments identified the values to be included in the KPIs from the balance sheet items, as described in the next paragraph.

As for the calculation of the numerator, only the balance sheet items related to the identified activities (subsections 3.3, 5.4 and 6.5) were
considered. As for the calculation of the denominator, all the items provided for by the regulations at a consolidated lveco Group N.V. level were
included (as further specified in the contextual information paragraph below).

The CapEx calculation was based on additions to tangible and intangible assets identified from Company reports, constituting the basis for any
changes in asset disclosures.

The turnover information was obtained from the official consolidated financial statement, consisting of the value of revenue from all goods and
services sold and invoiced during the period of reference. In order to avoid double-counting, all intercompany flows were excluded from revenues.

In order to meet taxonomy criteria, the OpEx was calculated as the sum of operating expenses of capital investment projects (by nature) and the
costs related to maintenance and cleaning (by destination).

Assessment of compliance with Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (1.2.2)

Iveco Group identified three taxonomy-eligible activities:

= Manufacture of low carbon technologies for transport (3.3), considering the sales from the vehicles manufactured by the Company and
vehicle maintenance and repair. Revenues from the sale of spare parts and individual components were excluded from the numerator. As
per Strategic Business Plan 2023 - 2026, the investments related to Manufacture of low carbon technologies for transport (3.3) will increase
over the next years, changing the industry landscape with a focus on zero carbon footprint and carbon neutrality and expanding vehicle line-
ups through tailored Zero Electric Vehicle Offerings;

= Sale of second-hand goods (5.4), considering the sales of second-hand vehicles;

= Transport by motorbikes, passenger cars, and light commercial vehicles (6.5), considering any active leasing for commercial vehicles (CV).
To avoid any double-counting in the calculation of the KPIs, the values were determined directly from the items included in the financial statement
of Iveco Group N.V.

Contextual information (1.2.3)

Turnover KPI:

= The denominator was identified based on Iveco Group’s consolidated net turnover from industrial activities.

= The numerator was identified including net sales from the sales of trucks and buses (new and used), Powertrain and Services, revenues
from repair and maintenance, and leasing fees. Revenues from specialty vehicles (defence and firefighting), from the remaining segments of
the industrial activities, and from spare parts were excluded.

CapEx KPI:

= The denominator consists of additions to tangible and intangible fixed assets during the financial year, before depreciation, amortisation, and
any re-measurements, including those resulting from revaluations and impairments, and excluding changes in fair value.

= The numerator equals capital expenditures that are part of the denominator referred to buses and to light, medium, and heavy trucks and
Powertrain.

OpEx KPI:

= The denominator includes all direct non-capitalised costs related to maintenance, building renovation measures, research and development,
and any other direct expenditures relating to the day-to-day servicing of assets of property, plants, and equipment.

= The numerator equals the direct non-capitalised costs that are part of the denominator referred to buses and to light, medium, and heavy
trucks.

The reported values do not include any amounts related to economic activities included in the taxonomy analysis conducted for lveco Group’s
internal consumption.

Within the CapEx and OpEx items, there are no items related to a plan to expand the economic activities aligned with the taxonomy regulation.
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The CapEx and OpEx allocated to the numerator were calculated using the Tool Semplice (specific to the Initiatives Mngt system), aggregating
data based on dedicated fields for tracking projects and on their purpose/objective.

The tables on the following pages contain information on the disclosure of capital expenditure, operating expenditure, and proportion of turnover
identified as eligible, non-eligible, and aligned according to the European Taxonomy, as per the new templates included in Annex V of the
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2023/2486 of 27 June 2023 supplementing Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and
European Council ("Environmental Delegated Act").
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PROPORTION OF TURNOVER FROM PRODUCTS ASSOCIATED WITH TAXONOMY-ALIGNED ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES
DISCLOSURE COVERING FINANCIAL YEAR 2023

2023 Substantial Contribution Criteria DNSH criteria (Do No Significant Harm)

ECONOMIC
ACTIVITIES

CODE®™

ABSOLUTE TURNOVER
(€ IN MILLIONS)
PROPORTION OF
TURNOVER, 2023
CLIMATE CHANGE
MITIGATION
CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION

WATER

POLLUTION
CIRCULAR

ECONOMY
BIODIVERSITY
CLIMATE CHANGE
MITIGATION
CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION

WATER

POLLUTION
CIRCULAR

ECONOMY
BIODIVERSITY
MINIMUM
SAFEGUARDS
TAXONOMY -ALIGNED OR
ELIGIBLE PROPORTION OF
TURNOVER, 2022
CATEGORY
(ENABLING ACTIVITY)
CATEGORY
(TRANSITIONAL ACTIVITY)

A. TAXONOMY-
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

A.1. Environmentally
sustainable activities
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Manufacture of low carbon
technologies for transport CCM33 397 250% Y N N N N N Y Y Y Y X Y Y 1.20% E
Turnover of
environmentally
sustainable activities 397 2.50% | 100% - - - - - Y Y b 4 Y Y Y Y 1.20%
(Taxonomy-aligned)

(A1)

of which
Enabling 397 100.00%| 100% B g - = - Y Y A Y Y Y Y  100% E

of which
Transitional

A.2 Taxonomy-eligible
but not
environmentally
sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned
activities)

Manufacture of low carbon

9 0/
technologies for transport CCM 3.3 12,038 75.82% Y N N N N N 79.00%

Sale of second-hand goods CE54 233 147% N N N N Y N

Transport by motorbikes,
passenger cars and CCM6.5 86  0.54% h¢ N N N N N 0.61%
light commercial vehicles

Turnover of Taxonomy
eligible but not
environmentally
sustainable activities 12,357 77.83% - - - - - - 79.61%
(not Taxonomy-aligned
activities)

(A.2)

A. Turnover of Taxonomy
eligible activities 12,754 80.33% - - - - - - 80.81%
(A.1+A.2)

B. TAXONOMY-NON-
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

Turnover of Taxonomy-

e E 3,123 19.67% TAXONOMY-ALIGNED ~ TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE
non-eligible activities PER OBJECTIVE PER OBJECTIVE

o 2.50% 76.36%
Total (A + B) 15,877 100.00%]

CCA

WTR

@ The Code constitutes the abbreviation of the relevant objective to which the economic activity is eligible to make a substantial contribution, CE : 1.47%
as well as the Section number of the activity in the relevant Annex covering the objective, ie.,: PPC
- Climate Change Mitigation: CCM
- Climate Change Adaptation: CCA BIO
- Water and Marine Resources: WTR
- Circular Economy: CE
- Pollution Prevention and Control: PPC
- Biodiversity and ecosystems: BIO
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PROPORTION OF CAPEX FROM PRODUCTS ASSOCIATED WITH TAXONOMY-ALIGNED ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES
DISCLOSURE COVERING FINANCIAL YEAR 2023

2023 Substantial Contribution Criteria DNSH criteria (Do No Significant Harm)

ECONOMIC
ACTIVITIES

CODE®

ABSOLUTE CAPEX

(€ IN MILLIONS)
PROPORTION OF
CAPEX, 2023
CLIMATE CHANGE
MITIGATION
CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION

WATER

POLLUTION
CIRCULAR
ECONOMY
BIODIVERSITY
CLIMATE CHANGE
MITIGATION
CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION

WATER

POLLUTION
CIRCULAR

ECONOMY
BIODIVERSITY
MINIMUM
SAFEGUARDS
TAXONOMY -ALIGNED OR
ELIGIBLE PROPORTION OF
CAPEX, 2022
CATEGORY
(ENABLING ACTIVITY)
CATEGORY
(TRANSITIONAL ACTIVITY)

A. TAXONOMY-
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

A.1. Environmentally
sustainable activities
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Manufacture of low carbon

. CCM3.3 339 35.06% s N N N N N ¥ Y Y Y Y Y Y  30.79% E
technologies for transport

Capex of environmentally
sustainable activities
(Taxonomy-aligned)

(A1)

339 35.06%| 100% - - - - - h 4 Y Y Y Y Y Y 31%

of which

Enabling 339 100.00%| 100% - - - - - Y Y Y Y ¥ Y Y 100% E

of which
Transitional

A.2 Taxonomy-
eligible but not
environmentally
sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned
activities)

Menufacture oflowcarbon — ccy33 108 a7 v 0N 0N N NN 11.00%
technologies for transport
Capex of Taxonomy
eligible but not
environmentally
sustainable activities 108 11.17%]| 100% - = - = - 11.09%
(not Taxonomy-aligned
activities)

(A.2)

A. Capex of Taxonomy
eligible activities 447 46.23%| 100% - . - = - 41.88%
(A.1+A.2)

B. TAXONOMY-NON-
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

Capex of Taxonomy-

non-eligible activities 520 53.77% TAXONOMY-ALIGNED ~ TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE

PER OBJECTIVE PER OBJECTIVE

M 35.06% 1.17%
Total (A + B) 967 100.00% 0 ’

CCA

WTR
CE
PPC

BIO

@ The Code constitutes the abbreviation of the relevant objective to which the economic activity is eligible to make a substantial contribution,
as well as the Section number of the activity in the relevant Annex covering the objective, ie.,:
- Climate Change Mitigation: CCM
- Climate Change Adaptation: CCA
- Water and Marine Resources: WTR
- Circular Economy: CE
- Pollution Prevention and Control: PPC
- Biodiversity and ecosystems: BIO
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PROPORTION OF OPEX FROM PRODUCTS ASSOCIATED WITH TAXONOMY-ALIGNED ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES
DISCLOSURE COVERING FINANCIAL YEAR 2023

2023 Substantial Contribution Criteria DNSH criteria (Do No Significant Harm)

ECONOMIC
ACTIVITIES

CODE®W

ABSOLUTE OPEX

(€ IN MILLIONS)
PROPORTION OF
OPEX, 2023

CLIMATE CHANGE
MITIGATION
CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION

WATER

POLLUTION
CIRCULAR

ECONOMY
BIODIVERSITY
CLIMATE CHANGE
MITIGATION
CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION

WATER

POLLUTION
CIRCULAR

ECONOMY
BIODIVERSITY
MINIMUM
SAFEGUARDS
TAXONOMY -ALIGNED OR
ELIGIBLE PROPORTION OF
OPEX, 2022
CATEGORY
(ENABLING ACTIVITY)
CATEGORY
(TRANSITIONAL ACTIVITY)

A. TAXONOMY-
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

A.1. Environmentally
sustainable activities
(Taxonomy-aligned)

Manufacture of low carbon

technologies for transport CCM33 104 21.53% Y N N N N N Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 23.08% E

Opex of environmentally
sustainable activities
(Taxonomy-aligned)
(A1)

104 21.53%| 100% - - - - - Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 23.08%

of which
Enabling 104 100.00%| 100% - B - & - ¥ Y Y Y Y Y Y - E

of which
Transitional

A.2 Taxonomy-
eligible but not
environmentally
sustainable activities
(not Taxonomy-aligned
activities)

Manufacture of low carbon

technologies for transport ceM3:3 4. 2.90% ¥ N N N N N 2.07%

Opex of Taxonomy
eligible but not
environmentally
sustainable activities 14 2.90%| 100% - - - - - 2.07%
(not Taxonomy-aligned
activities)

(A.2)

A. Opex of Taxonomy
eligible activities 118 24.43%| 100% - = - . - 25.15%
(A1+A.2)

B. TAXONOMY-NON-
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

Opex of Taxonomy- 365

A ey 75.57%) TAXONOMY-ALIGNED ~ TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE
non-eligible activities

PER OBJECTIVE PER OBJECTIVE

qaV] 21.53% 2.90%
Total (A + B) 483 100.00% _

CCA

WTR
CE
PPC
7 BIO

@ The Code constitutes the abbreviation of the relevant objective to which the economic activity is eligible to make a substantial contribution,
as well as the Section number of the activity in the relevant Annex covering the objective, ie.,:
- Climate Change Mitigation: CCM
- Climate Change Adaptation: CCA
- Water and Marine Resources: WTR
- Circular Economy: CE
- Pollution Prevention and Control: PPC
- Biodiversity and ecosystems: BIO
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CLIMATE-RELATED DISCLOSURES

Iveco Group is committed to climate change mitigation and aims for full transparency in its management of climate-related risks and opportunities
through the disclosures provided in this section, in accordance with the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD"). In 2023, the responsibility for monitoring the progress of companies’ climate-related disclosures was transferred from the
TCFD to the IFRS Foundation (effective as of 2024), following the release of the new IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards. As a result, lveco
Group has already started to incorporate the contents of the IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures, with full alignment expected by 2024. The
following section contains four thematic areas showing how the Company is addressing climate-change risks and opportunities: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management, and Metrics and Targets. For further details, please see the ‘TCFD Correspondence’ table at the end of this section.

Governance

The highest responsibility for defining and implementing Iveco Group’s strategy lies with the Board of Directors. The ESG Committee of the
Board of Directors is responsible, among other things, for assisting the Board in reviewing and guiding the strategy and risk management
policies related to climate change. It is also responsible for monitoring the implementation of the measures to meet climate change targets. The
ESG Committee meets quarterly and, at least twice per year, it is updated by the Chief Public Affairs & Sustainability Officer on the progress of
CO, emissions reduction and energy efficiency with regards to manufacturing, logistic processes, and suppliers based on assessments received
by the Business Units, Operating and Corporate functions.

At management level, the highest responsibility for initiatives focusing on energy efficiency and on the management of CO, emissions at Iveco
Group lies with the Senior Leadership Team ("SLT"). The SLT members are also members of the Sustainability Committee, which meets
monthly and is responsible for defining sustainability strategy and integrating sustainability aspects into operating processes. It is chaired by the
Chief Public Affairs & Sustainability Officer.

The Company’s business units are fully responsible for the global growth and performance of their respective businesses, thereby increasing
focus and accountability. Climate change issues are regularly discussed by these committees to ensure responsible management of climate risks
and to identify trends and opportunities, including potential impacts of new products under development and new market considerations.

Strategy

Conscious of the urgency of the climate change challenges and the major role that decarbonisation will play, Iveco Group has set the ambitious
goal of achieving net zero carbon by 2040 — ten years ahead of the deadline set by the Paris Agreement — in accordance with The Climate Pledge
that lveco Group signed. To further address the potential impacts of climate change, Iveco Group has implemented relevant projects to improve
the environmental performance of its manufacturing processes, logistics, and product portfolio. To ensure the timely delivery of its strategy, the
Company has defined specific strategic sustainability targets for Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions. The Company also advocates publicly for a quick
implementation of the enabling conditions, such as refuelling and recharging stations, for the deployment of zero emission vehicles.

The Company monitors the relevant emerging policies and regulatory developments at local and global level and it has established specific
functions and structures within its respective business units and Technology and Digital function to comply with the new regulation. The resulting
analyses are incorporated into Company strategy to ensure full compliance with applicable laws. The shifts in consumer preferences and demand
towards sustainable transport solutions, driven by both an increase in climate-related awareness and more stringent regulations, may result in
potential risks for manufacturers that must adapt to the evolving market. To counter this, Iveco Group applies these shifts to the development of
its product portfolio to steer R&D focus towards sustainable technologies (e.g., biofuels, electric and hydrogen propulsion technologies) and
ensure the resilience of its business model.

The Company also takes advantage of collaborations with strategic business partners, start-ups, and external expertise in the emerging
technology sector.

To ensure the timely delivery of its strategy, the Company has established specific targets linked to the environmental performance of its
manufacturing processes, logistics, and product portfolio, as outlined in the section "Metrics and Targets" below.

A scenario analysis is used to understand climate-related risks and opportunities and assess their potential business implications as well as to
understand how climate-related risks and opportunities may evolve.

The medium to long-term (2030-2050) analysis of transition risks and opportunities for Iveco Group was performed using the RCP"" 1.9 scenario
of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change ("IPCC"). This scenario is based on various assumptions regarding future emissions, policies,
and economic trends. Iveco Group also adopted the NZE2050?) scenario of the International Energy Agency ("lEA") to perform a comprehensive
analysis of the energy and automotive markets. In addition, an analysis over the medium to long term (2026-2040) of physical risk was performed
to evaluate any increase or decrease in risk exposure, using the weather patterns of the RCP® 8.5 scenario of the IPCC.

(1) Representative Concentration Pathways are a climate scenario analysis tool (with each scenario describing a potential future pathway). RCP 1.9 is a very
ambitious scenario, being the IPCC’s lowest emission pathway towards limiting global warming to below 1.5°C by the end of the century, which is the
aspirational goal of the Paris Agreement.

(2) Net zero emissions by 2050.

(3) Representative Concentration Pathways are a climate scenario analysis tool (with each scenario describing a potential future pathway). The RCP 8.5 scenario
assumes a high GHG emission future without effective climate change mitigation policies.

Board Report Our Commitment to Sustainability 30



In particular, considering the financial statements information are presented through historical values which, by their nature, do not fully capture
future events, all significant assumptions and estimates underlying the preparation of the following items were subject to an analysis in order to
identify and address the new uncertainties related to climate changes which could affect the business: going concern, inventory management,
property, plant and equipment, goodwill, brands, intangible assets with a finite life, tax reliefs, revenue recognition, provisions and onerous
contracts.

The analysis conducted were based on the Group strategy outlined in the context of the global supply chain environmental targets and did not
highlight any critical situations that cannot be attributable to, and addressed, in the ordinary course of the business.

Risk Management

Risk management is an important component of lveco Group’s overall culture and is integral to the achievement of its long-term business plan.
Accordingly, the Company’s Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") process has been designed to assist in the identification, evaluation, and
prioritisation of business risks, followed by a coordinated and balanced application of resources to minimise, monitor, and control the probability or
impact of adverse events or to maximise the realisation of opportunities. The ERM process is linked to the Company’s Sustainability Programme
and its strategic sustainability targets and priorities, including those related to climate change, which are articulated in the Company’s Strategic
Business Plan.

In 2023 the main outcomes of the analysis conducted on climate-related risks (especially transition risks) were then incorporated into the
Company’s ERM assessment. The main drivers identified to evaluate our medium to long-term transition risks and opportunities were: market
electrification and transport behaviour; current and emerging climate-related regulations; developments in technology and renewable fuels; and
climate-related disclosures.

More details on Iveco Group’s ERM process, including its risk appetite for individual risk categories, can be found in the "Risk Management and
Internal Control System" section of this Report.

In 2023 the Company performed an analysis on physical risk events that could impact Iveco Group sites, leading to property damages and/or
business interruptions in the short and medium-long term (2030 and 2040). The first step in physical risk identification and assessment process
consists in evaluating the relevance of all such risks for each Iveco Group site, through the analysis of climate zones and site-specific
morphological features (such as altitude and proximity to rivers). The evaluation of the physical risk exposure considers specific drivers for each
event which lead to the identification of the economic impact of each risk event in terms of property damage (cash flow), business interruptions
(EBIT), and other impacts or indirect costs (in addition to EBIT or cash flow). The net impacts of each physical risk are then quantified,
considering each plant's specific characteristics and any physical mitigators (such as the presence of mobile dams for river flooding). Based on
the 2023 assessment, most of Iveco Group sites are located in areas that are not particularly associated with high-risk exposure, with the
exception of a few situated in areas susceptible to hailstorms and/or water stress. However, extreme natural events still pose a risk to the
Company given the significant damages they can generate. Overall, considering the mitigation measures in place and the nature of the risks,
Iveco Group plants’ main economic vulnerability is linked to their exposure to river floods, hurricanes, cyclones, and tornados.
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Metrics and Targets

Iveco Group has developed various indicators and tools to assess its contribution, exposure, and resilience to climate change. Annually, the
Company reports its climate change impacts and performance in its Sustainability Report, according to the requirements of the GRI Standards.
CO, emissions are calculated according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol ("GHG Protocol"), incorporated into Company Guidelines.

METRICS 2023 2022
Plants in scope 22 23
Direct energy consumption from renewable sources (GJ) 18,951 1,256
Direct energy consumption from non-renewable sources (GJ) 1,022,312 1,043,148
Total direct energy consumption (GJ) 1,041,263 1,044,404
Total indirect energy consumption from renewable sources (GJ) 1,343,164 1,340,289
Total indirect energy consumption from non-renewable sources (GJ) 648,302 667,348
Total indirect energy consumption (GJ) 1,991,466 2,007,637
Total energy consumption (GJ) 3,032,729 3,052,041
Direct CO, emissions (Scope 1) (tons) 59,673 60,712
Indirect CO, emissions (Scope 2 — market-based) (tons) 38,839 41,024
Indirect CO, emissions (Scope 2 — location-based) (tons) 128,485 132,064
Total CO, emissions (Scope 1 & 2 — market-based) (tons)® 98,512 101,736
CO, emissions from the use of sold vehicles per vehicle/km (Scope 3)

(grammes per vehicle/km) 651 681

{ a ) Total COy emissions calculated as per the market-based methodology of the GHG Protocol, including emissions from fuel used to test products.

2021

25

83
1,137,398
1,137,481
1,381,882
730,583
2,112,465
3,249,946
66,229
46,851
145,537

113,080

Not available

Based on the climate-related risks and opportunities identified, Iveco Group sets targets to reduce emissions and increase energy efficiency:

REFERENCE
TARGETS PERIOD
-50% vs.2019 in absolute CO, emissions (Scope 1 & 2) 2030
100% of total electricity consumption derived from renewable sources © 2026
-38% vs.2022 in Scope 3 CO, emissions from the use of sold vehicles® per vehicle/km 2030
-7% vs. 2022 in kg of CO, emissions per ton of goods transported (including spare parts) 2026
-30% vs. 2022 in absolute CO, emissions generated by major suppliers of purchased goods,
services and capital goods® 2030

(a) Target revised and made more challenging by bringing forward its deadline from 2030 to 2026.
(b) The target refers to vehicles manufactured in Europe.

(c) Target revised and made more challenging by increasing its level of ambition from -20% to -30%.

2023 RESULTS
-19.9 %

98 %

6.1 %

-1.4 %

-3.0 %
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TCFD correspondence table

THEMATIC AREA

RECOMMENDED TCFD DISCLOSURES

REFERENCE

Governance Disclose the
organisation’s governance around
climate-related risks and opportunities.

a) Describe the board’s oversight of climate-related
risks and opportunities

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate
Governance /Board Committees: ESG Committee

b) Describe management’s role in assessing and
managing climate-related risks and opportunities

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability

Strategy Disclose the actual and
potential impacts of climate-related
risks and opportunities on the
organisation’s businesses, strategy,
and financial planning where such
information is material.

a) Describe the climate-related risks and opportunities
the organisation has identified over the short, medium,
and long term.

b) Describe the impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities on the organisation’s businesses,
strategy, and financial planning.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risks
Factors; Industry Overview; Risk Management and Internal
Control System

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risks
Factors; Industry Overview; Risk Management and Internal
Control System

c) Describe the resilience of the organisation’s
strategy, taking into consideration different climate-
related scenarios, including a 2°C or lower scenario.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risks
Factors; Industry Overview; Risk Management and Internal
Control System

Risk Management Disclose how the
organisation identifies, assesses, and
manages climate-related risks.

a) Describe the organisation’s processes for identifying
and assessing climate-related risks.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk
Management and Internal Control System

b) Describe the organisation’s processes for managing
climate-related risks.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk
Management and Internal Control System

c) Describe how processes for identifying, assessing,
and managing climate-related risks are integrated into
the organisation’s overall risk management

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk
Management and Internal Control System

Metrics & targets Disclose the
metrics and targets used to assess
and manage relevant climate-related
risks and opportunities where such
information is material.

a) Disclose the metrics used by the organisation to
assess climate-related risks and opportunities in line
with its strategy and risk management process.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability

b) Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if appropriate,
Scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and the
related risks.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability

c) Describe the targets used by the organisation to
manage climate-related risks and opportunities and
performance against targets.

Annual Report: Our Commitment to Sustainability

METHODOLOGIES

This Non-Financial Statement addresses the requirements of the Dutch Decree dated 14 March 2017 on Non-Financial Information, that
implemented the Directive 2014/95/EU into Dutch law. This Non-Financial Statement is based on the GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards

("GRI Standards") and the Sustainability Accounting Standards ("SASB Standards").

Defining the contents of this Non-Financial Statement is a process based on principles of materiality, stakeholder inclusiveness, sustainability
context, and completeness. Ensuring the quality of information concerns principles of balance, comparability, accuracy, timeliness, clarity, and

reliability.

Environmental and social issues included in the Annual Report were selected on the basis of the materiality analysis. For further information on

Iveco Group’s commitment to sustainable development, see the 2023 Sustainability Report.

The contents related to the different requirements stated in the Dutch Decree are included in this Annual Report in different sections. The table

below shows the internal references for the information on each requirement.
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EU Directive Non-Financial Information and Diversity information reference table

Topic

Business model

Relevant social and personnel
matters (e.g., HR, safety etc.)

Relevant environmental
matters (e.g., climate-related
impacts)

Relevant matters with respect
for human rights (e.g., labour
protection)

Relevant matters with respect
to anti-corruption and bribery

Insight into diversity (executive
board and the supervisory
board)

Subtopic

A description of the policies
pursued, including due
diligence.

The outcome of those policies.

Principle risks in own
operations and within value
chain.

How risks are managed.

Non-financial key performance
indicators.

A description of the policies
pursued, including due
diligence.

The outcome of those policies.

Principle risks in own
operations and within value
chain.

How risks are managed.

Non-financial key performance
indicators.

A description of the policies
pursued, including due
diligence.

The outcome of those policies.

Principle risks in own
operations and within value
chain.

How risks are managed.

Non-financial key performance
indicators.

A description of the policies
pursued, including due
diligence.

The outcome of those policies.

Principle risks in own
operations and within value
chain.

How risks are managed.

Non-financial key performance
indicators.

A description of the policies
pursued.

Diversity targets

Description of how the policy
is implemented.

Results of the diversity policy.

Included
(yes/no)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Reference

Business Overview; Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/
Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System

Our Commitment to Sustainability;

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System

Our Commitment to Sustainability

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System

Our Commitment to Sustainability;

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Corporate Governance/Ethics and Culture

Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System
Our Commitment to Sustainability; Risk Management and Internal Control System
Our Commitment to Sustainability;

Corporate Governance/Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Corporate Governance/Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Corporate Governance/Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Corporate Governance/Diversity, Equity and Inclusion
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SASB INDEX

UNIT OF
TOPIC SASB CODE METRIC MEASURE RESPONSE COMMENT
Activity
Commercial Vehicles: 168,890
Powertrain: 806,433
Buses: 6,049
RT-IG-000.A Number of units produced by product category | Number Specialty Vehicles: 2,283
RT-IG-000.B Number of employees Number 36,037
Energy Management | RT-IG-130a.1 (1) total energy consumed Gigajoules (GJ) 3,032,729
(2) percentage of grid electricity % 43.300
(3) percentage of renewable % 44.900
g;nfpltoyee Health and | RT-1G-320a.1 (1) total recordable incident rate (TRIR)® Rate 0.302
ety
(2) fatality rate® Rate —
(3) near miss frequency rate (NMFR)® Rate 2.520
Fuel Economy & Sales-weighted fleet fuel efficiency for medium- | Gallons per
Emissions in Use- RT-IG-410a.1 and heavy-duty vehicles 1,000 ton-miles (d)
Phase . -
Sales-weighted fuel efficiency for non-road
RT-1G-410a.2 equipment Gallons per hour N/A
Sales-weighted fuel efficiency for stationary
RT-IG-410a.3 generators Watts per gallon N/A
RT-IG-410a.4 Sales-weighted emissions of:
(1) nitrogen oxides (NOx) and —
(2) particulate matter (PM) for: —
(1) marine diesel engines, N/A
(1) locomotive diesel engines, N/A
(Ill) on-road medium- and heavy-duty engines,
and N/A
Grams per
(IV) other non-road diesel engines kilowatt-hour N/A
Description of the management of risks
Materials Sourcing RT-1G-440a.1 associated with the use of critical materials N/A (e)
Remanufacturing Revenue from remanufactured products and
Design & Services RT-1G-440b.1 remanufacturing services €million 119.700

(a) The total recordable incident rate is the number of recordable work-related injuries and illnesses divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 200,000.

(b) The fatality rate is the number of work-related fatalities divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 200,000.

(c) The near miss frequency rate is the number of work-related near misses divided by the number of hours worked, multiplied by 200,000.

(d) The metric used for evaluating the emission in the use-phase is CO, emissions per vehicle per km (see Metrics and Targets in Climate-Related Disclosures section).

(e) The Company’s products are highly complex, typically containing thousands of parts that come from many different direct suppliers within the Company’s vast global supply network.
This means that the Company must rely on its direct suppliers to work with their upstream supply chain to detect the presence and evaluate the origin of any critical substances

contained.
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ESG ASSESSMENTS

Inclusion in sustainability indexes, and the ratings received from specialised sector-specific agencies, further reflect the robustness of Iveco
Group’s commitment to sustainability.

In 2023, the Company was included in the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices ("DJSI") World and Europe, achieving a score of 78/100 in the
Machinery and Electrical Equipment Industry category of the annual S&P Global Corporate Sustainability Assessment ("CSA"). We were also
included in the S&P Global Sustainability Yearbook 2024 in the Top 5% S&P Global CSA Score category, based on our S&P Global ESG Scores
calculated from the CSA.

Still in 2023, we received an A- score in the CDP Climate Change programme and a B score in the CDP Water Security programme.

Moreover, veco Group received an MSCI ESG Rating of A and a Corporate Rating of C from 1SS, with a QualityScore™ of 1 for both our
environment and social disclosures. We also achieved an overall score of 72/100 and the Gold medal from EcoVadis, ranking among the top 5%
of companies for this benchmark.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company was included in the ECPI Euro ESG Equity index and Integrated Governance Index ("IGI").

(1) The ISS QualityScore uses a numeric, decile-based rating system to assess a company’s environmental and social risk compared to its industry. A score of 1
places the company’s risk in the lowest 10% of all companies.
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(€ million) 2023 2022 2021(*) 2020(*) 2019(*)
Net revenues 16,213 14,357 12,651 10,411 11,948
EBIT 837 466 295 (376) na.
Profit/(loss) before taxes 387 260 180 (488) 175
Profit/(loss) 234 159 76 (372) 101
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 218 147 52 (408) 84

Non-controlling interests 16 12 24 36 17
Basic earnings/(loss) per common share (€)" 0.81 0.54 0.19 (1.50) 0.31
Diluted earnings/(loss) per common share (€)" 0.80 0.54 0.19 (1.50) 0.31
Investments in tangible and intangible assets 970 77 563 401 492

of which: capitalized R&D costs 489 390 271 178 177
R&D expenditure® 888 634 509 393 441
Total Assets 18,385 16,013 16,560 15,631 15,904
Total Equity 2,390 2,391 2,311 2,336 2,718
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 2,354 2,354 2,289 2,268 2,680

(*) Data included in the Report on Combined Financial Statement at 31 December 2021 issued on 24 April 2022.

(1) For the years 2021, 2020, and 2019, basic and diluted earnings per share calculation is based on the number of Common Shares at the Effective date of the Demerger.
(2) Includes capitalised development costs and research and development (“R&D”) costs charged directly to the income statement.

Board Report Selected Financial Data 37



RISK FACTORS

The following risks should be considered in conjunction with the risks described in the Disclaimer, the Risk Management and Control System
section and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. All these risks may affect Iveco Group business results and, individually or in the
aggregate, could cause actual results to materially differ from past and projected future results. Although the risks are organised by headings, and
each risk is discussed separately, many are interrelated. It is impossible to predict or identify all risk factors and, consequently, the following
factors shall not be considered a complete list of the risks and uncertainties that may affect the Company. According to the Company’s opinion,
there are no material uncertainties (as defined in paragraph 25 of IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements) about its ability to continue as a
going concern. However, the occurrence of external disruptive events that would impact indistinctly the automotive industry and/or specifically
Iveco Group and beyond the direct control of lveco Group could jeopardize the ability of Iveco Group to operate in the market.

The present section describes risks that could have a significant impact on the operating results and financial position of lveco Group. Major risks
events that emerged during the risk assessment process are grouped in four main categories:

a.  Strategic risks;

b.  Operational risks;

c.  Legal & Compliance risks;
d.  Financial & Taxation risks.

Iveco Group’s main risk factors identified for each of the above-mentioned risk categories are described below. The order in which they are listed
does not imply ranking in terms of likelihood of occurrence or potential impact.

The below mentioned risk factors are not to be considered comprehensive of all risks identified and evaluated within the annual risk management
process: business-as-usual risks which are considered adequately managed and controlled such that residual risk is considered minor, even if
monitored, are not detailed in this report. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that any mitigation action will be sufficient to successfully
counter or mitigate potential risks.

Compared with previous year Annual Report, the most significant new or better deepen Risk Factors during 2023 Risk Assessment are:
= Extreme natural events exacerbated by ongoing climate change

= Mass generative Artificial Intelligence availability related risks
= Risks related to health, safety, and the environment

Although the Company believes that the risks and uncertainties described below are material risks and uncertainties concerning the Group’s
business and industry, they are not the only risks and uncertainties relating to the Group. Other risks, events, facts or circumstances not presently
known to the Group, or that the Group currently deems to be immaterial could, individually or cumulatively, alone or in combination with other
events or circumstances, prove to be important and may have a significant negative impact on the Group’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

STRATEGIC RISKS

Global economic conditions impact Company businesses

Iveco Group results of operations and financial position are and will continue to be influenced by macroeconomic factors — including changes in
gross domestic product, the level of consumer and business confidence, changes in interest rates, the availability of credit, inflation and deflation,
energy, commodities or other raw materials prices — which exist in the countries and regions in which Iveco Group operates. Such
macroeconomic factors vary from time to time and their effect on operating results and financial position cannot be specifically and singularly
assessed and/or isolated.

Economic conditions vary across regions and countries, and demand for products and services generally increases in those regions and countries
experiencing economic growth and investment. Slower economic growth could have an adverse impact on business, results of operations and
financial conditions. In a weaker economic environment, dealers and customers may delay or cancel plans to purchase Iveco Group products and
services and may not be able to fulfil their obligation timely. In addition, suppliers may be impacted by economic pressures or by adverse
geopolitical situation (e.g. escalation of tensions between China and Taiwan) which may adversely affect their ability to fulfil their obligations, as
well as the price or availability of supplies required. In addition, deterioration of key macroeconomic indicators (such as rising inflation and local
currency devaluation) as well as a strengthening of Government’s protectionist policies in some countries, could impact the Group's financial
results and business operation particularly in those countries where macroeconomic conditions remain volatile (i.e. Argentina). If there were
continued deterioration in the global economy or the economies of key countries or regions, the demand for Iveco Group products and services
may decrease and may materially and adversely affect results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

Iveco Group is committed to constantly and closely monitor political, social, economic, and market developments in the countries of interest, both
through specialized internal resources and through providers of information analyses. The Group periodically assesses these political, social and
economic risks in the countries it operates in or intends to invest in, also through specific set of defined measures to deal with a potential demand
reduction, and through a strong commitment in investigating and scouting potential alternatives for critical supplies based on risky countries, even
if there can be no assurance these measures prove to be effective.

Board Report 38



Competition risk, considering both actual players and new entrants

The Group operates in global and regional markets which are highly competitive in terms of product quality, innovation, pricing, fuel economy,
reliability, safety, customer service, and financial services offered. Depending on the particular country and product, the Group competes with
other international, regional and local manufacturers and distributors of commercial and specialty vehicles and powertrains. The Group competes
primarily on the basis of product performance, innovation, quality, distribution, customer service and price. Aggressive pricing or other strategies
pursued by competitors, unanticipated product or manufacturing delays, quality issues, or failure to price products competitively, could adversely
affect the Iveco Group’s business, operating results, and financial position. Additionally, there has been a trend toward consolidation in the truck
industry that has resulted in larger and potentially stronger competitors in this industry.

The Group’s ability to compete successfully in the longer-term will depend on, in part, the ability to keep pace with changes in vehicle technology,
including in regard to emissions. As part of its decarbonization strategy, Iveco Group is developing alternative fuel engines that run on CNG and
LNG and are compatible with biomethane, with a medium-term focus on electric drive technologies. However, there is a risk that some
competitors will use their substantial resources to develop such technology and related products more rapidly, in larger quantities, with a higher
quality, or at a lower cost, also considering the ability to achieve economies of scale. Failure to develop and offer innovative products that
compare favourably to those of lveco Group’s principal competitors in terms of price, quality, functionality, features, mobility and connected
services, vehicle electrification, fuel cell technology and autonomy, or delays in bringing strategic new products to market, or the inability to
adequately protect the Group’s intellectual property rights or supply products that meet regulatory requirements, including engine emissions
requirements, could result in reduced revenue and market share.

Iveco Group continuously investigates new potential areas of interest for the future development of the ecosystem of transport and logistics, which
also potentially includes the implementation of partnership agreements. Research and development projects are also revised continuously, based
on each project’s technological and commercial relevance. To mitigate the effect of increasing competition from both actual and new, more
innovative and price-aggressive players, the Group is in progress of layering of commercial areas by region to understand demand elasticity and
monitor competitors' actions as well as of implementing some innovation activities or cost optimization actions with the aim to increase its
competitiveness. Furthermore, Iveco Group can rely on an extensive distribution service that provides a competitive advantage. Nevertheless,
should the Group be unable to adapt effectively to market conditions, this could have an adverse effect on its business, results of operations, and
financial condition.

Risks related to investments and partnerships

Iveco Group has engaged in the past, and may engage in the future, in investments or merger and acquisition transactions or enter into, expand
or exit from strategic alliances and joint ventures that could involve risks that could prevent the Company from realising the expected benefits of
the transactions or the achievement of strategic objectives or could divert management’s time and attention. By way of example Iveco Group has
acquired the full and sole ownership of the German company resulting from the former joint venture Nikola Iveco Europe, now renamed as EVCO
(Electric Vehicles Company), to reconfirm the steady commitment of the Company in playing a leading role in the zero-emission heavy duty
transport segment.

Cooperation with partners in shareholdings and partnerships is of key importance to Iveco Group, both in the transformation towards electric
mobility and comprehensive digitization, and in connection with mobility solutions. Especially with new technologies, these solutions of
cooperation may help to leverage on synergies and improve cost structures in order to respond successfully to the competitive situation in the
automotive industry.

By way of example, Iveco Group is exploring possible areas of mutual interest, such as electric powertrains, vehicle automation and connectivity
technology for commercial vehicles with potential partners.

The unreliability of key business partners in meeting the agreements undertaken and deliver on time the expected volumes, the potential
deterioration in relations with such key partners as well as the challenges in selecting new business partners could impact the ability to promptly
develop innovative products and meet Iveco Group strategic objectives.

With a view to mitigating such risks, Iveco Group is committed to maintaining a positive trust and long-term relations with strategic partners,
sharing risks as well as opportunities. Before the implementation of a collaboration agreement, the Company performs a series of activities geared
at identifying suitable business partners; moreover, after the stipulation of the relevant agreements, Iveco Group puts in place intensive controls
over the partnership execution and all the necessary actions aimed at resolving any emerging disputes regarding business activities.

In spite of these measures, the challenges and uncertainties in selecting trustworthy business partners, their potential unreliability in meeting the
agreements undertaken and deliver on time as expected, as well as the potential deterioration in relations with such key partners may impact
Iveco Group’s ability to develop innovative products and meet its objectives.

Transition to zero emission products related risks

Changes in environmental and climate change laws, including laws relating to engine and vehicle emissions, safety regulations, fuel requirements,
restricted substances, or greenhouse gas emissions, require significant investments in product designs and increase environmental compliance
expenditures. Emissions regulations are particularly demanding in EU, where the Company run most of its business. For example, the European
fleet targets for 2025, 2030 and then for 2035 imposes significant reductions in vehicles emissions that can only be achieved using new
technologies (e.g. battery-electric drive systems), requiring large capital investments. Failure to comply with the relevant regulations may result in
considerable penalties and reputational damages, potentially leading to the inability to market Iveco Group products in such regions where
regulations are more demanding.

Furthermore, phases of political uncertainty and vulnerabilities in the whole economy may generally have negative effects on consumption and
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investment decisions by households and companies. The higher costs of low-emission vehicles may represent an obstacle to the rapid shifting
towards a new paradigm of mobility. A lower demand for innovative products due to their higher costs could negatively impact Group’s business
results and competitive position.

In addition, there is a risk that some of the Group’s competitors will have greater resources than the Group and will be able to respond to such
laws more rapidly or at a lower cost. See also “Competition risk, considering both actual players and new entrants”.

To comply with current and future environmental rules in all markets in which its vehicles are sold, lveco Group must incur substantial capital
expenditure and research and development expenditure to upgrade products and manufacturing facilities, planning a progressive introduction
within the product portfolio of electric vehicles to improve the product mix and allocating the electric vehicles (e.g., eDaily) in those geographies
where regulations are more stringent. In order to monitor the overall emissions of sold vehicles, the Group implemented a CO, emissions
monitoring system, able to evaluate the expected emission according to vehicle type and configuration.

Evolving of geopolitical expectations

Given the global nature of the activities, the Company is exposed to risks associated with international business activities that may increase costs,
impact ability to manufacture and sell products and require significant management attention. These risks include:

= changes in laws, regulations and policies that affect, among other things:
o import and export duties and quotas;
o currency restrictions;
° interest rates;
o taxes;
. labour disruptions;
= war, civil unrest and acts of terrorism.

Further, many escalated tensions are adversely impacting macroeconomic conditions, giving rise to regional instability and resulting escalate into
further decoupling, affecting, directly or indirectly, countries where the Group operates (e.g. logistic, procurement, production, sales) as well as in
heightened economic sanctions which may adversely affect Iveco Group business in relevant countries.

Main consequences arising from instability or exacerbation of existing conflicts and geopolitical risk may include:
- Oil & gas price volatility
- Terroristic attacks (including cyber attacks)
- Lower sales due to sanctions and trade restrictions
- Reputational damages from doing business in countries taking controversial stances
- Significant Supply Chain disruptions

The mitigant actions against such external risk include:

. institutional relations with Local Authorities;

= analysis of the preventive measures and implementation of emergency plans if needed;

= safety of people and the management of activities and assets;

= avoiding operation in countries under sanctions (i.e. Russian Federation).

Mass generative Al availability related risk

Despite the significant opportunities that arise from adopting Artificial Intelligence ("Al") for Iveco Group's business (e.g., current utilization of Al in
various areas such as Knowledge Management, Tenders Management, Human Resources, Customer Services, etc.), it also presents several
challenges, including:

1. Increasing and more sophisticated cyber-attacks, Data privacy concerns (e.g., obtaining consent from all users/anonymization of sensitive
data), Dissemination or leakage of critical Group information (e.g., through the spread of generative Al apps), Unauthorized access or
manipulation of Al systems (i.e. Al Jailbreaks, prompt injection) / Errors in the algorithm creation process and failure to identify them

2. IP issues (e.g., potential infringement of others' IP, theft of own IP by third parties)
3. Difficulties in keeping up with evolving regulations (e.g., Al/Data acts)

4: Diminishing competitive differentiation over time due to difficulties in keeping up with competitors in the implementation of innovative Al
technologies (e.g., development of innovative and highly customized proprietary algorithms by third parties)

5. Risk of wrong investments on buy/make projects and underlying technologies/vendors while industry is rapidly evolving and prone to disruption
6. The low Al explainability reduce the cause-consequences investigation during incidents

The Group is committed in adopting security measures and education enforcement aimed at ensuring the ability to effectively address the new
challenges arising from the widespread adoption of Artificial Intelligence (GenAl) and at the same time preventing and minimizing the relevant
risks through the promptly issuance/update of necessary policies and procedure, ensuring training, implementing new solutions/tools and
continuously monitoring regulations evolution in different countries.
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Public tender management related risk

Iveco Group supplies products that are particularly complex due to their advanced technological and sustainability contents, including under long-
term contracts at a fixed all-inclusive price, which are awarded through public tenders. Terms and conditions of contracts generally include
challenging requirements and rigorous completion times; in order to meet undertaken commitment and avoid penalties, Iveco Group could be
forced to launch production before all tender’s requirements and public fund allocation is completed, increasing risks on inventory and unsold
products. Furthermore, an unforeseen rise in the costs incurred in the performance of a contract could lead to a lower profit, especially in those
contractual or regulatory frameworks in which Iveco Group is not allowed to ask for and be granted with a renegotiation of the prices.

Although to date the sustainability requirements within public tender are not stringent yet, a deeper awareness and demands from entities issuing
public tenders is expected from 2025 onward. Having proper sustainability credentials (e.g. related to respects of human rights standards, etc.)
will grant the Iveco Group's participation in public tenders, especially in countries where regulations on sustainability are more demanding.

The Group is committed to the continuous improvement of its industrial efficiency and its ability to meet customer specifications, including through
(i) constant monitoring of regulatory evolutions in the sustainability field and new requirements under discussion by public entities issuing and/or
regulating tenders, to anticipate and address new demands in a timely manner, (i) contracts indexation on the raw materials or energy prices, (iii)
on-site audits at Group production sites, (iv) presence of an internal Human Right policy, (v) whistleblowing channels open to both employees and
third parties. Moreover, as a turnkey solution integrator defining new sustainability requirements for tender participation in the EU, the Group's
likelihood of being unable to participate due to lacking credentials has decreased.

In addition, the Group already participates in the Open-ES platform to encourage supplier awareness of ESG issues and support suppliers'
qualification and monitoring.

Risk related to supply of utilities, raw materials, parts and components

Iveco Group relies upon many suppliers for raw materials, parts and components that are required for products manufacturing. The Company
cannot guarantee to be able to maintain access to raw materials, parts, and components, and in some cases this access may be affected by
factors outside of Iveco Group’s and its direct suppliers’ control. Certain components and parts used in Iveco Group products are available from a
single supplier and cannot be quickly sourced from other suppliers. Significant disruptions to the supply chain resulting from shortages of raw
materials, components, and whole goods may adversely affect the ability to meet customer demand. Also, global logistics network challenges
(including ocean freight capacity constraints), international port delays, trucking and chassis shortages, railway and air freight capacity, and labour
availability constraints) may result in delays, shortages of key manufacturing components, increased order backlogs, and increased transportation
costs. While Iveco Group diligently monitor supply chain risk and seeks to respond promptly to address supply chain and logistics bottlenecks,
there can be no assurance that mitigation plans will be effective to prevent disruptions that may arise from shortages of materials used in the
production. Uncertainties related to the magnitude and duration of global supply chain disruptions have adversely affected, and may continue to
adversely affect, business and outlook.

Furthermore, the price volatility of raw materials, utilities and components, particularly during times of economic volatility or regulatory instability or
in response to changes in tariffs, significantly increases costs of production, which could have a material adverse effect on business, results of
operations and financial condition.

In addition to monitoring materials availability and prices increase from suppliers, also considering spot purchases in case of favourable market
opportunities, or activation of hedging strategies (after assessing their cost-effectiveness), Iveco Group held Suppliers Risk Management
meetings at least on a quarterly basis to analyse critical suppliers and to assess potential double sourcing or reduction of business. Furthermore,
where possible, the Company takes in consideration the application of indexed contracts with clients to offset increased raw materials costs.
Focusing on semiconductors, Iveco Group takes into consideration the opportunity to investigate semiconductors’ technical alternatives, to buy
semiconductors on the broker market or to have direct relationships with semiconductors’ suppliers.

The impact of supply chain disruption is reduced thanks to the improved visibility of critical semiconductors and consistent of monitoring their life
cycle.

Iveco Group takes actions to perform last buy actions for semiconductors which approaching their end of life and establish direct relationships
with semiconductors’ suppliers to ensure sufficient capacities. Technology upgrade will be performed in the next possible generations.

Product quality impacted by process design and production issues
Production risks include all those factors which could impact the production planning and capacity, such as:

= the incorrect estimation of the demand causing under- or over- production capacity, potentially leading to increased costs, delivery delays,
and quality issues due to excessive work stress;

= unforeseen disruptions of a production facility which could be caused by several different incidents.

The success of Iveco Group products depends on the ability to maintain or increase market share in existing markets and to expand into new
markets through the development of innovative, high-quality products that provide adequate profitability. The achievement of these objectives is
dependent on several factors, including the ability to design and produce products that meet customers’ quality requirements, also through the
increased collaboration and synergies between engineering and manufacturing as well as the ability to develop connected and digital solutions.
Product quality issues could be caused or aggravated by forced re-working activities due to supply chain stop-&go and lower maturity and
knowledge of new technologies used, increasing warranty costs and impacting the Company reputation.
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The Group already carried out significant investments aimed at optimizing production capacity. Moreover, Iveco Group strategic plan covers
investments in innovation designed to further develop existing and create new product and service offerings responsive to customer needs,
including developing and delivering connected and digital solutions, automation and electrification.

In order to guarantee a high-quality level of existing and new products, Iveco Group implemented a continuous monitoring system of technical
KPIs ("key performance indicators") and KAls ("key activity indicators"), as well as additional quality checks on reworks related activities.

Information technology risks, including cybercrimes

Iveco Group relies upon Information Technology ("IT") systems and networks, some of which are managed by third parties, in connection with a
variety of business activities. These systems include supply chain, manufacturing, distribution, invoicing, and collection of payments from dealers
or other purchasers of Iveco Group products and from customers of lveco Group financial services business, and connectivity services with and
among equipment. Iveco Group uses information technology systems to record, process and summarize financial information operating results for
internal reporting purposes and to comply with regulatory financial reporting, legal and tax requirements. Additionally, lveco Group collects and
stores sensitive data, including intellectual property, proprietary business information as well as customers, suppliers and dealers’ proprietary
information and personally identifiable information in data centres and on information technology networks. Operating these information
technology systems and networks, and processing and maintaining these data, in a secure manner, is critical to business operations and strategy.

The Group’s IT systems may be subject to damage and/or interruption from, among other things, power outages or computer, network, and
telecommunications failures and usage errors by its employees, causing process inefficiencies and potential business interruptions. If the Iveco
Group’s IT systems are damaged or cease to function properly, the Group may have to make a significant investment to fix or replace them.
Moreover, the IT network could be also disrupted by the unavailability of Group's data centres due to force majeure events as well as by cloud
providers discontinuities, with consequent impacts on business continuity.

Increased information technology security threats (e.g. worms, viruses, malware, phishing attacks, ransomware, and other malicious threats) and
more sophisticated computer crime pose a significant risk to the security of lveco Group’s systems and networks and the confidentiality,
availability and integrity of data. The foregoing risks are heightened in the current environment, based on hybrid work model which includes the
possibility for employees to work from home, using networks other than that of the Group, with a consequent potential increase of the area open
to attacks.

In addition, the rising presence of more connected vehicles, including autonomous driving features, has exposed automotive manufacturers at an
increasing number of cyber-attacks. Attackers work to get access to vehicles’ internal networks to potentially steal personal data, compromise
infotainment/navigation GPS units, neutralize vehicle alarm systems and remotely control connected vehicles, thus threatening physical safety of
drivers, pedestrian and the entire industry.

Lastly, the current situation related to the conflicts escalation (e.g. Israel-Hamas conflict) has led to a sharp increase in cyber-attacks to critical
systems and services (i.e., intelligence, military, manufacturing, financial, energy).

While Iveco Group actively manages information technology security risks within its control through security measures, business continuity plans
and employee training around phishing and other cyber risks, these attacks have proliferated and there can be no assurance that mitigation
actions will be sufficient to successfully prevent attacks or to mitigate potential risks to systems, networks, data, and products. Furthermore, third
parties, including internet, mobile communications technology and cloud service providers, pose their own information security risk to the Group.

Security breaches could also result in litigation, regulatory action, unauthorized release of confidential or otherwise protected information and
corruption of data, as well as remediation costs and higher operational and other costs aimed at implementing further data protection measures.
The organisation's exposure to legal compliance risks with an adequate preparation is a crucial task, since we're required to comply to local
countries laws and different national European regulations, like the DORA for our Financial Services division or the Italian PSNC for IDV.

To ensure effective, reliable, and relevant operations Iveco Group needs to constantly improve its IT ecosystem, including the latest hardware and
software technologies and effective IT organisational mechanisms, as well as how to utilize the potential of data in day-to-day business. In this
regard, Iveco Group is implementing a series of strategic initiatives covering key business areas to progressively eliminate obsolescence and
optimize the number and complexity of IT systems.

Moreover, lveco Group has implemented measures of governance, response, and monitoring of cyber-attacks, as well as compliance processes
carried out through the involvement of specialized personnel and an advanced use of IT security technologies. Iveco Group applies procedures
and protocols based on the sector best practices and on consolidated, tested international standards with the goal of preventing and mitigating its
exposure to cyber risk, as well as security additions to meet clients’ requirements. Specifically, the Group records hundreds attempts per each
quarter (main external sources of attacks are malware, phishing, internet applications), but thanks to the multifactor authentication system in place
(including dealers and third parties) and the adoption of the latest available technologies to block and detect anomalous behaviour, the impact of
such attacks is always considered not material.

The mitigation of this risk is also guaranteed by the presence of Security Operations Centers ("SOC") and the Cybersecurity Incident Response
Team ("CSIRT") as well as by the implementation of a Cyber Crisis Management Framework. In addition, cyber awareness activities are
periodically carried out with the aim of increasing the employees’ level of training and knowledge. Despite the opportunity to transfer risk, the
amount or scope of insurance coverage may be inadequate to cover claims or liabilities relating to a cybersecurity attack.
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Risks associated to employment relationships

Iveco Group’s ability (i) to compete successfully, (ii) to manage its business effectively, (iii) to expand its business and (iv) to execute its growth
strategy, depends, in part, on the Group’s ability to attract, motivate and retain qualified personnel in key functions and markets with the requisite
education, skills, background, talents, and industry experience. Failure to attract and retain qualified personnel, whether as a result of an
insufficient number of qualified applicants, difficulty in recruiting new personnel, or the inability to integrate and retain qualified personnel, could
impair the Group’s ability to execute its business strategy and could adversely affect its business.

Furthermore, in many countries where the Group operates, employees are protected by laws and/or collective labour agreements that guarantee
them, through local and national representatives, the right of consultation on specific matters, including repurposing, downsizing or closure of
production facilities and reductions in personnel. Strategically repositioning business activities requires flexibility granted always in respect of laws
and/or collective labour agreements. The ability to efficiently deploy personnel or implement permanent or temporary redundancy measures is
subject to government approvals and/or the agreement of labour unions where such laws and agreements are applicable. Furthermore, the Group
is at risk of work interruptions or stoppages that could impact the volume of production, with potential material adverse effect on business, results
of operations and financial condition. To reduce such potential risk, the Group put in place continuous communication with all internal
stakeholders and unions to monitor the situation and negotiation for the renewal workers' collective agreement in many countries.

Labour relations might also be affected by high inflation rates of some countries in which the Group operates, leading to strikes and additional
costs.

To keep up with new technical skills required by the current market environment, the Group is putting in place a strong re-skilling campaign as
well as a definition of salary packages in line with the market with the aim of attracting the best talents.

Iveco Group is committed in implementing a trusted and healthy work environment, through a strong commitment to safety and health and high
standards for rights at work, social dialogue and diversity and inclusion. In particular, the Group developed challenging Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion ("DEI") plan, which include the increase of management position held by women.

Dealers related Risk

The Group sells most of its commercial vehicles through independent dealers and is subject to risks relating to their inventory management
decisions and operating and sourcing practices. They may also encounter financial difficulties that could restrict them from selling Iveco Group’s
products or services, and/or require Iveco Group to provide support or investment, thus leading to increased costs. In addition, if financial
difficulties affect a significant number of dealers in a region, the Group’s sales in that region as a whole could be at least temporarily adversely
affected or require it to incur investment to seek out new dealers in that region. This risk is more acute in regions with a very limited number of
dealers.

The general increase in costs and the resulting difficulties that small dealers may face result in progressive market concentration and,
consequently, in a less granular coverage, could impact the Group’s competitive advantage.

Finally, infringements perpetrated by third-party dealers via misuse of product warranties contractually offered by the Group (e.g., unauthorized
and/or out-of-warranty maintenance) could lead to extra costs for the Group.

Any of the foregoing may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s sales, operating results, and financial condition.

In order to reduce the likelihood of occurrence of this risk, lveco Group is putting in place some significant actions, aimed at monitoring the
dealers’ aggregation, dealer’s commercial performances, sustainability of stock level and financial health. Furthermore, a structured audit process
on dealers’ activities is aimed at mitigating potential risk related to misuse of product warranties.

Risks related to health, safety, and the environment

Despite the Company's adverse appetite to Health, Safety & Environment ("HSE") risks, the possibility that incidents are detrimental to people's
health and to the environment cannot be completely ruled out, also taking into consideration the fact that the risks connected with ordinary
operations is mainly related to human behaviors (e.g. 80% of Iveco Group injuries are related to wrong people behaviors). Even though Iveco
Group:

= has specific know-how and competencies constantly kept up to date,

= has implemented internal procedures and relevant controls for the execution of its operations, and

= regularly carries out maintenance work on its assets in order to monitor their quality and level of reliability,

it is not possible to fully exclude the occurrence of incidents on assets or facilities during the execution of works, which may cause:

= serious injuries to employees, including long-term disabilities and fatalities, caused by work-related accidents

= environmental pollution generated by an improper execution of Group’s activities

In order to reduce the risk exposure, Iveco Group put in place many actions and controls starting from the set-up of a Health,Safety&Environment
Central organisation and an Occupational Health, Safety & Environment Management Systems implemented and certified according to ISO45001.
Relevant reporting is constantly updated and monitored, and personnel relevant training is periodically supplied.

Extreme natural events exacerbated by ongoing climate change

The analysis of climate related risks has been carried out by a detailed internal task force reported to the management. As a result, risks related
to climate change, to which Iveco Group's activities are intrinsically exposed, have been classified into the following categories:

= physical risks, i.e., risks arising from physically observable climatic phenomena
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= transition risks, i.e., risks arising from the transition phase that aims to reduce emissions and thus mitigate the effects of climate change.

Although most plants are located in areas which do not present particularly high-risk exposures, extreme natural events still pose a risk to the
Group given the significant damages they can generate. Overall, considering the mitigators in place and the nature of the risks, most relevant
economic exposures for lveco Group sites are related to river flood, hurricanes / cyclones / tornados and hailstorm events.

In particular, such events exacerbated by ongoing climate change, resulting in damage to a Group production site/critical asset and/or interruption
of production.

In order to reduce risk exposure, Iveco Group already put in place mitigation actions such as (but not limited to) insurance premium increase,
presence of an Internal Emergency Team managed by Industrial Security, installation of additional equipment able to mitigate impacts in case of
risk occurrence, and strengthening of the fire department and training of teams and volunteer firefighters.

For further details, refer to section “Our commitment to Sustainability”, paragraph “Climate-related disclosures”.

LEGAL & COMPLIANCE RISKS

Risk related to compliance with product, process and supply chain regulations

Given stakeholders’ expectations, the increasingly demanding regulatory requirements (in terms of complexity and/or country-specific provisions),
and the intricacy of managing product-specific sustainability aspects to meet requirements along the entire value chain (e.g., accountability, clear
time-sensitive targets, etc.), Iveco Group must devote huge effort to avoid risk of non-compliance with product, process and supply chain
regulations.

The most significant risk factors involved in meeting these requirements are associated with compliance with certain regulations, such as
Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions regulations requirements on Iveco Group plants, Recyclability and REACH (Registration, Evaluation,
Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals), requirements on the life cycle of batteries and the upcoming corporate sustainability due diligence
directive along the overall supply chain (CSDD), due to be enforced in national legal systems across the EU by 2026 at the latest.

Besides continuous monitoring of regulations ( including gap analysis on the actions to be implemented to ensure compliance with the upcoming
directive and on-site audits at Group production sites) and the presence of a whistleblowing channel open to both employees and third parties,
Iveco Group confirmed the participation in the Open-ES platform, to encourage suppliers’ awareness about ESG issues (including Human Rights),
supporting suppliers' qualification and monitoring and including sustainability scores as a criterion for suppliers’ selection. Furthermore, in order to
prevent the risk of Human Rights violation risk by Vendors, Iveco Group provides for mandatory signature of the Supplier Code of Conduct by
each supplier.

Risks related to legal proceedings involving the Group

Iveco Group is a party in judicial, tax and administrative legal proceedings. For a summary of the most significant cases, see Note 27
"Commitment and contingencies” to the Consolidated Financial Statement at 31 December 2023. Given the intrinsic and ineliminable risk that
characterizes legal proceedings, while the Group has carried out and keeps updating on a regular basis the necessary assessments, including on
the basis of applicable accounting standards, it is not possible to exclude the possibility that lveco Group might in future face payment obligations
for damages either not covered by the legal fund, or which are covered insufficiently, or which are uninsured, or which are of an amount greater
than the maximum sum that may have been insured. Furthermore, in relation to legal proceedings brought by Iveco Group or in which Iveco
Group is a defendant, should it not be possible to settle the disputes by means of negotiation, Iveco Group may have to bear further costs
associated with the length of court proceedings.

To mitigate these risks, Iveco Group implements actions aiming at constantly strengthening its internal control system and also avails itself of in-
house professionals and external consultants who are committed to support Iveco Group in its risk anticipation and mitigation efforts, and
represent the Group in legal proceedings.

Non-compliance with laws and regulations or with compliance policies

Although Iveco Group conducts its business with loyalty, fairness, transparency, integrity, and with a goal of full compliance with laws and
regulations, on the one hand these laws and regulations subject to different interpretative decisions and, on the other hand, compliance controls,
policies, and procedures in place may not in every instance protect the Group from acts committed by employees, agents, contractors, or
collaborators, that would violate the laws or regulations of the jurisdictions in which Iveco Group operates, including in employment matters, with
corrupt practices or breaching environmental, competition and other laws and regulations. Such misconducts could expose the Group to
investigations, and monetary and injunctive penalties. Furthermore, Iveco Group operates in some countries characterized by a high level of fraud
and corruption, referred to in the “Corruption Perception Index” by Transparency International. In the context of risks related to possible fraud or
wrongdoing by employees or third parties, Iveco Group is also exposed to risks related to the protection of information and know-how, since in the
performance of its activities the Group relies on sensitive information, data and know-how, processed and contained in documents and/or
electronic format, whose unauthorized use and/or disclosure of by employees or third parties may amount to a breach of applicable laws and
regulations, and might cause damage to Iveco Group. Lastly, it cannot be excluded that non-compliance issues or the incorrect application of the
European Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR") or foreign data protection laws such as, without limitation, Chinese privacy regulation ("PIPL")
may occur within the Group, that could result in the application of sanctions to the detriment of Iveco Group. Actual or alleged violations of any of
these laws and regulations could adversely impact the operating results and financial condition of the Company and could damage its reputation,
as well as its ability to conduct business.

Iveco Group is also exposed to the risk that its compliance controls and procedures may not be sufficient to prevent dealers from violating the
Group’s dealership agreements or laws or regulations of the jurisdictions in which Iveco Group operates (including performance of corrupt
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practices, trade sanctions, and other) and, as a consequence, expose the Group to economic and reputational damages.

Among the various initiatives that Iveco Group has put in place to mitigate these risks, a “Group Integrated Compliance Program” has been
developed, that provides, among other, for a) compliance guidelines for the benefit of the affiliates that did not have a specific compliance
program in place, b) for an update of the “Organisational Models” of certain affiliates along the provisions of the Italian Legislative Decree
231/2001 and c) for a regular review of the fundamental Group policies. Moreover, a structured framework is in place, in line with Italian legislation
and with the legal systems of the country in which Iveco Group operates. Iveco Group’s Code of Conduct provides that “Anti-corruption laws
prohibit directly or indirectly paying, or promise to pay, of anything of value to any governmental employee/ official, political party, party employee/
official, or candidate for political office for the purpose of influencing an official act or decision to obtain business for the Company’. lveco Group
provides employees periodic trainings to increase awareness about the importance of compliance topics; it has appointed a manager in charge,
among other, of monitoring prevention and education on Anti-corruption, a dedicated compliance officer in some countries (e.g. France) and a
“lead” professional as a point of reference to contribute to awareness and prevention of competition law issues. Iveco Group periodically performs
general audits, in addition to specific ones for suspected offences, also using external consultants and considering objective fraud indicators and
red flags. A whistleblowing channel open to both employees and third parties is in place and the Compliance Department includes a dedicated
function (Investigation Governance) that manages whistleblowing reports and analysis of facts relating to misconduct. Notwithstanding all the
above, it is not possible to exclude the possible occurrence of fraudulent or unlawful conducts.

FINANCIAL AND TAXATION RISKS

Exchange rate fluctuations, interest rate changes and other market risks

In the event of a rating downgrade or due to a severe macro-economic downturn, lveco Group might have difficulties to raise funds and might
have to pay higher interest rates; being the Group exposed to floating rates, an increase in interest rates might also lead to a higher cost of debt.

Iveco Group also faces risks from currency devaluations (which is a downward adjustment of a country’s official exchange rate) in specific
markets such as Argentina and Tiirkiye. Such currency devaluations could result in a diminished value of liquidity funds denominated in the
currency of the country suffering the devaluation.

Iveco Group’s counterparties could default, could be unable to pay the amounts owed to it in a timely manner or meet their performance
obligations under contractual arrangements.

Risks related to fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates of foreign currency are mitigated by hedging strategies. Financial Services
normally implements an ALM ("Asset and Liability Management") matching policy to offset the impact of differences in interest rates on the
financed portfolio and the related liabilities.

In fact, although Iveco Group seeks to manage its currency risk and interest rate risk, including through hedging activities, there can be no
assurance that it will be able to do so successfully, and the Group’s business, results of operations and financial position could be adversely
affected. In addition, by utilizing these instruments, Iveco Group potentially foregoes the benefits that may result from favourable fluctuations in
currency exchange and interest rates.

In addition to the above-mentioned topics, Iveco Group also faces the risks related to financial planning uncertainty and relevant impacts on cash
flow.

The volatility of market conditions and the subsequent possible deterioration of the customers’ financial position can cause delays in placing
orders or payments from clients. Such events, combined with the seasonality which characterizes the industry, are the main causes of the
Company cash flow fluctuations, which may occur despite the mitigation plan already put in place by the Company to reduce the risk. Mitigation
actions around this risk include a defined plan to improve working capital management (specifically, inventory management), timely reaction in
purchasing and production planning and upgrading cash flow management by increasing awareness and improving tools.

Therefore, Iveco Group is exposed to the risk of deterioration of working capital, which could lead to economic and financial impacts, as well as a
deterioration of the reputation in the industry and in the financial markets.

Difficulties in obtaining financing or refinancing existing debt

Iveco Group'’s performance will depend on, among other things, its ability to finance debt repayment obligations and planned investments from
operating cash flow, available liquidity, the renewal or refinancing of existing bank loans and/or facilities and access to bank lending or other
sources of financing like asset-backed securitization transactions; in addition, the Group’s investment strategies may at times require funds in
excess of those generated by the Group’s operations. Consequently, Iveco Group could find itself in the position of having to seek additional
financing and/or having to refinance existing debt, including in unfavourable market conditions with limited availability of funding and a general
increase in funding costs. Instability in global capital markets, including market disruptions, limited liquidity and interest rate and exchange rate
volatility, could affect the Group’s access to sources of financing or increase the cost of the Group’s short and medium/long-term financing. Any
difficulty in obtaining financing on acceptable terms or at all could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations
and financial position. In order to mitigate its exposure to funding risk, lveco Group monitors on periodical basis inventory and funding evolution.

Risk relevant to Group’s leverage and debt service obligations

Considering the extent of the Group’s indebtedness, the potential consequences on operations and financial results may include that:

a. it may not be able to secure additional funds for capital expenditures, debt service requirements or general corporate purposes;

b. it may be more financially leveraged than some of the Group’s competitors, which could put Iveco Group at a competitive disadvantage;
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c. it may not be able to invest in the development or introduction of new products or new business opportunities;

d. it may not be able to adjust rapidly to changing market conditions, which may make Iveco Group more vulnerable to a downturn in general
economic conditions.

These risks may be exacerbated by volatility in the financial markets, which may be caused by strains on the finances and creditworthiness of
several governments and financial institutions and from concerns about global economic growth, particularly in emerging markets. See also
“Global economic conditions impact Company businesses’.

Further, the Group’s indebtedness under some of its instruments including its credit facilities and derivative transactions may bear interest at
variable interest rates.

Restrictive covenants in the Group’s debt agreements

Iveco Group has established its own centralized treasury. In order to fund its own treasury facilities, from time to time it enters into agreements
governing the Group’s financing instruments, including bank debt. According to standard market practice, the agreements governing debt
instruments, depending on the rating status of the debtor and market conditions at the time of the execution of such financing instruments, could
contain covenants restricting the Group’s ability to, among other things: (a) incur additional indebtedness by certain subsidiaries; (b) make certain
investments; (c) enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates; (d) sell or acquire certain assets or merge with or into other companies; and/
or (e) pledge assets as security for other obligations. A breach of one or more of the covenants could result in adverse consequences that could
negatively impact the Group’s businesses, results of operations, and financial position. These adverse consequences may include the triggering
of cross-default clauses whereby other outstanding debt under other credit facilities of lveco Group existing at the time of such cross-acceleration,
ultimately resulting in an obligation to redeem such indebtedness, termination of existing unused commitments by the Group’s lenders, refusal by
the Group’s lenders to extend further credit under one or more of the facilities or to enter into new facilities or the lowering or modification of the
Group'’s credit ratings or those of one or more of its subsidiaries.

Risk related to Financial Services Activities

As Financial Services provides financing for a significant portion of lveco Group’s sales worldwide, the Group’s operations and financial results
could be impacted materially should negative economic conditions affect the financial services industry.

Negative economic conditions can have an adverse effect on the financial services industry in which Financial Services operates. Financial
Services, through wholly owned financial services companies, joint ventures and third-party commercial agreements, provides financing for
material portion of Iveco Group’s sales worldwide. Financial Services may experience credit losses that exceed its expectations and adversely
affect its financial condition and results of operations. Financial Services’ inability to access funds at cost-effective rates to support its financing
activities could have a material adverse effect on Iveco Group’s business. Financial Services’ liquidity and ongoing profitability depend largely on
timely access to capital in order to meet future cash flow requirements and to fund operations and costs associated with engaging in diversified
funding activities.

Iveco Group'’s operations and financial results could be impacted materially should new regulations or changes in financial services regulations
affect the financial services industry. In addition, an increase in delinquencies or repossessions could adversely affect the results of Financial
Services.

Further information on Iveco Group's financial risks is provided in Note 18 "Derivative assets and derivative liabilities" and in Note 30 "Information
on financial risks" to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group may incur additional tax expense or become subject to additional tax exposure

Iveco Group is subject to income taxes in many jurisdictions around the world. The Group’s tax liabilities are dependent upon the location of
earnings among these different jurisdictions. Iveco Group’s future results of operations could be adversely affected by changes in the
consolidated effective tax rate as a result of a change in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the Group’s
overall profitability, changes in tax legislation and rates, changes in generally accepted accounting principles and changes in the valuation of
deferred tax assets and liabilities. If the Group’s effective tax rate were to increase, or if the ultimate determination of lveco Group’s taxes owed is
for an amount in excess of amounts previously accrued or paid, lveco Group’s operating results, cash flows, and financial position could be
adversely affected. For further information, see Note 9 “Income tax (expense) benefit” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, tax laws are complex and subject to varied and subjective interpretive decisions. As Iveco Group will periodically be subject to tax
audits aimed at assessing the Group’s compliance with direct and indirect taxes, the tax authorities may not agree with the Group’s interpretations
of, or the positions that the Group has taken or intends to take on, tax laws applicable to Iveco Group’s ordinary activities and extraordinary
transactions. In case of challenges by the tax authorities to the Group’s interpretations, Iveco Group could face long tax proceedings that could
result in the payment of additional tax, interest and penalties, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operating results,
business and financial condition.

In order to reduce its exposure to taxation risks, lveco Group put in place several mitigation actions aimed at preventing risk or reducing its impact
in case of occurrence, such as the implementation of a Tax Control Framework (integrated within the Group’s Internal Control System) for the
adherence to the Italian Cooperative Compliance Regime, and the use of other available regulatory tools for preventive dialogue with Tax
Authorities (such as Advance Pricing Agreements on transfer pricing matter).
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS ON NON-FINANCIAL RISKS

Sensitivity analysis performed on financial risks are available in the Note 30 "Information on financial risks" to the Consolidated Financial
Statements".

In addition, deep dive on ERM risks is performed upon management or Audit Committee request. By way of example, in 2023, following the
events occurred to USA and European banks (e.g. Silicon Valley Bank, Credit Suisse), an ad hoc Business Case has been deepened on
macroeconomic scenario related risks. Three scenarios have been considered:

= No material liquidity restriction: this scenario was assessed with a medium probability but minor impact in case of occurrence (many related
to potential reduction of Retail Sales and Retail Financing), because of mitigation actions already put in place, such as the wide range of
financing partners to grant continuity to operations and the implementation of a set of KPIs and constant feedbacks of financial partners able
to early detect potential challenges and act to mitigate the risk;

= Soft Liquidity crisis, which was assessed with a lower probability but higher potential impact. The main consequence of a soft liquidity crisis
may be a temporary slowdown in sales which may be mitigated through the mitigant already in place. In case of persistent slowdown,
additional actions may be required;

= Contagion Effect: the probability of a worst-case scenario is considered remote, but in case of occurrence the impact may be critical.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

GENERAL
Iveco Group is the holding company of a leading global capital goods group engaged in the design, production, marketing, sale, servicing, and

financing of trucks, commercial vehicles, buses and specialty vehicles for defense, firefighting and other uses, as well as combustion engines,
alternative propulsion systems, transmissions and axles for those vehicles and engines and alternative propulsion systems for agricultural and
construction equipment, marine and power generation applications. The Group has manufacturing, commercial and financial services companies
located in 36 countries and a commercial presence in approximately 160 countries.

As of 31 December 2023, Iveco Group had three operating segments:

= Commercial and Specialty Vehicles designs, manufactures and distributes a full range of light, medium, and heavy vehicles for the
transportation and distribution of goods under the IVECO brand, minibuses, city-buses, intercity buses and coaches under the IVECO BUS and
HEULIEZ brands, vehicles for civil defense and peace-keeping missions under the IDV brand, large-scale heavy-duty quarry and construction
vehicles under the ASTRA brand and firefighting vehicles under the MAGIRUS brand.

= Powertrain designs, manufactures and distributes, under the FPT Industrial brand, a range of combustion engines, alternative propulsion
systems, transmission systems and axles for on- and off-road applications, as well as for marine and power generation.

= Financial Services offers a range of financial products and services to dealers and customers. Financial Services provides and administers
retail financing to customers for the purchase or lease of new and used vehicles sold by brand dealers and distributors of the Group or directly
by subsidiaries of the Group. In addition, Financial Services provides wholesale financing to brand dealers and distributors of the Group.
Wholesale financing consists primarily of floor plan financing and allows the dealers to purchase and maintain a representative inventory of
products. Financial Services also provides trade receivables factoring services to lveco Group Industrial Activities legal entities. Additionally,
Financial Services grants support to CNH Industrial, by providing financial services for its European brands, dealers and customers under a
vendor and service agreement, receiving a fee for the services rendered.

Net revenues by segment in the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

(€ million) 2023 2022
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles 13,778 12,100
Powertrain 4,258 3,960
Eliminations and Other (2,159) (1,895)
Total of Industrial Activities 15,877 14,165
Financial Services 494 281
Eliminations and Other (158) (89)
Total for the Group 16,213 14,357

Net revenues by region in the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

(€ million) 2023 2022
Europe 12,383 10,316
South America 1,442 1,853
North America 341 322
Rest of World 2,047 1,866
Total 16,213 14,357
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles
Trucks and Commercial Vehicles

The world truck market is generally divided into two segments: Light Commercial Vehicles (“LCV") market (gross vehicle weight (‘GVW”") 3.5-7.49
metric tons), and Medium and Heavy (“M&H") truck market (GVW above 7.5 metric tons). The M&H segment is characterized by a higher level of
engineering specialization due to the technologies and production systems utilized, while the LCV segment has many engineering and design
characteristics in common with the automobile industry. In addition, operators of M&H trucks often require vehicles with a higher degree of
customization than the more standardized products that serve the LCV market. Customers generally purchase heavy trucks for one of three
primary uses: long distance haulage, construction haulage, and/or distribution.

The regional variation in demand for trucks and commercial vehicles is influenced by differing economic conditions, levels of infrastructure
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development, and geographic region, all of which lead to differing transport requirements.

M&H truck demand tends to be closely aligned with the general economic cycle and the capital investment cycle including the general level of
interest rates and, in certain countries, governmental subsidy programs, particularly in more developed markets such as Europe, North America
and Japan, as economic growth provides increased demand for haulage services and an incentive for transporters to invest in more efficient, less
polluting, higher capacity vehicles and renew vehicle fleets. The product life cycle for M&H trucks typically covers a seven to ten-year period.

Although economic cycles have a significant influence on demand for M&H trucks in emerging economies, the processes of industrialization and
infrastructure development have generally driven long-term growth trends in these countries. As a country’s economy becomes more
industrialized and its infrastructure develops, transport needs tend to grow in response to increases in production and consumption. Developing
economies, however, tend to display volatility in short-term demand resulting from government intervention, changes in the availability of financial
resources and protectionist trade policies. In developing markets, demand for M&H trucks increases when it becomes more cost-effective to
transport heavier loads, especially as the infrastructure, primarily roads and bridges, becomes capable of supporting heavier trucks. At the same
time, the need to transport goods tends to increase in these markets, resulting in increased demand for LCV.

Industry forecasts indicate that transportation of goods by road, currently the predominant mode of transport, will remain so for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, the Group also offers personalized aftersales customer assistance programs that provide a wide range of modular and
flexible maintenance and repair contracts, as well as warranty extension services, to meet a variety of customers’ needs and to support the
vehicle’s value over time: demand for those services, as well as for parts, is a function of the number of vehicles in use. Although demand for new
commercial vehicles tends to decrease during periods of economic stagnation or recession, the demand for those services is historically less
volatile than the new vehicle market and, therefore, helps limit the impact of declines in new vehicle sales on the operating results.

Commercial vehicles markets are subject to intense competition based on initial sales price, cost and performance of vehicles over their life cycle
(i.e., purchase price, operating and maintenance costs and residual value of the vehicle at the end of its useful life), services and service-related
products and the availability of financing options. High reliability and low variable costs contribute to customer profitability over the life of the
vehicle and are usually important factors in an operator's purchase decision. Additional competitive factors include the manufacturer’s ability to
address customer transport requirements, driver safety, comfort, and brand loyalty through vehicle design.

Demand for trucks varies seasonally by region and by product class. In Europe, the peak retail demand occurs in the second and fourth quarters
due to key fleet customer demands and customer budgetary cycles. In South America, demand is relatively stable throughout the year except for
increased demand for heavy trucks in the first and fourth quarters from customers who transport foodstuffs. In Rest of World, sales tend to be
higher in the second and fourth quarters due to local holiday periods.

Although the Group believes that diesel remains, for the foreseeable future, the key fuel source for commercial vehicles and industrial equipment
in general, the adoption of new engine technological solutions and growing public opinion in favour of more environmentally friendly solutions are
pushing for increased penetration of both alternative and renewable fuels (such as compressed natural gas (‘CNG”), liquefied natural gas (‘LNG”)
and hydrogen) and full electric vehicles.

The car industry is leading autonomous vehicle development, but commercial vehicles are also making advances in platooning and autonomous
technologies. The Group expects this development to intensify. The Group believes that the growing automation in transportation and
infrastructure solutions through the use of Level 2+ autonomous vehicles will also allow the industry to provide greater safety, emission
reductions, fuel savings, and logistics efficiency.

Autonomous solutions are rapidly gaining importance in the Defence sector and are a key development focus for the Group.

Buses

The global bus business is organised by mission, from city and intercity transport to tourism purposes, with a capacity ranging from 7 to 150
seated/standing passengers. IVECO BUS (previously Iveco Irisbus) and HEULIEZ target markets include urban and intercity buses. Operators in
this industry include three types of manufacturers: those specialized in providing chassis to bodybuilders, those that build bodies on chassis
produced by third parties, and those, like IVECO BUS, that produce the entire vehicle.

The primary customers of the bus segment are tour and intercity bus service operators, while the principal customers of the city bus segment are
the transport authorities in urban areas.

Deregulation and privatization of transport services in many markets have favoured concentration towards large private companies operating in
one country, in more than one neighbouring country, or at an international level. Demand has increased for highly standardized, high-use
products for large fleets, with financing and maintenance agreements or kilometric pricing. Deregulation and privatization have also increased
competition between large transport service companies, raising the level of vehicle use and increasing the choice of brands for operators in the
market.

Sales for urban and intercity buses are generally higher in the second half of the year, due to public entities budgeting processes, tender rules,
and bus production lead-time.

Powertrain

The dynamics of the industrial powertrain business vary across the different market segments in which the various propulsion systems are used.
For vehicle and equipment applications, product development is driven by regulatory requirements (i.e., legislation on pollutant emissions and,
increasingly, CO, emissions), as well as the need to reduce total operating costs: customers are seeking more efficient propulsion systems that
enable lower total cost of ownership and higher productivity.
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For On-road commercial applications in developed markets, where economy and infrastructure drive demand for local and haulage transportation,
demand for engines is driven by general economic conditions, capital investment, industrialization, and infrastructure developments.

In the bus market, engine demand is increasingly influenced by the environmental policies of governments and local authorities (i.., requirements
for natural gas, hybrid, and electric solutions).

Demand for Off-road applications in the agricultural industry is influenced by many factors, including the price of agricultural commodities and the
relative level of new and used inventories, the profitability of agricultural enterprises, net farm income, the demand for food products, agricultural
policies, as well as climatic conditions. At the same time, the construction equipment business is driven by general economic factors and the level
of public investment in infrastructure, which affects the need for replacement of old equipment and investment in more innovative solutions to
boost productivity.

Increasingly stringent emission regulations in Europe, the U.S. and Asia represent an opportunity for Powertrain to gain a competitive advantage
through technological solutions developed for engines and after-treatment systems (such as High Efficiency SCR technology). Alternative fuels
represent a viable alternative to diesel for transport vehicles, as they are more environment-friendly and offer better fuel economy than diesel
while performing comparably to diesel engines (e.g. LNG for Buses and Commercial Vehicles). Increasing demand for alternative propulsion
systems (such as electrified powertrain or fuel cell) is expected to continue, as related technologies are growing quickly and will offer business
opportunities in the industrial sector. The increasing trend among mid-sized original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") to outsource engine
development, due to the significant research and development expenditures required to meet the new emission requirements, presents an
opportunity for Powertrain to increase sales to third party customers.

The Company believes that FPT Industrial provides the Group, as a whole, with strategic independence in a key area where competition is
particularly intense and further challenges, driven by increasingly stringent regulations, are expected.

The electrification demand of Industrial applications follows passenger cars trends and growth. After a first generation of Industrial product
designed to easily replace the traditional combustion engines, key-players are moving on a second generation of products, designed to increase
performance, efficiency and sustainability standards.

FPT is committed to continuous innovation, developing also on electrification side cutting-edge products, also thanks to the continuous scouting in
the open innovation emerging technologies.

COMPETITION

The industries in which the Group operates are highly competitive. The Group believes that it has many competitive strengths that will enable it to
improve its position in markets where it is already well established while it directs additional resources to markets and products with high growth
potential.

For Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, the Group competes with: (i) large global full-line equipment manufacturers with a presence in every
market and a broad range of products that cover most customer needs, (ii) manufacturers who are product specialists focused on particular
industry segments on either a global or regional basis, (iii) regional full-line manufacturers, some of which are expanding worldwide to build a
global presence, (iv) local, low-cost manufacturers in individual markets, particularly in emerging markets such as Eastern Europe and China. For
Powertrain, the Group competes with (i) pure non-captive players (i.e. powertrain manufacturers selling their products to third parties) and (ii)
OEMs producing powertrains by themselves.

The Group's competitive strengths include well-recognised brands, a full range of competitive products and features, a strong global presence,
and distribution and customer service network. There are multiple factors that influence a buyer's choice of industrial equipment. These factors
include the strength and quality of the distribution network, brand loyalty, product features, quality and performance, availability of a full product
range, pricing, technological innovations, product availability, financing terms, parts and warranty programs, resale value and customer service
and satisfaction. The ability to meet or exceed applicable engine emissions standards as they take effect is also a key competitive factor,
particularly in those markets where such standards are the subject of frequent legislative or regulatory scrutiny and change, such as Europe and
North America. The Group continually seeks to improve in each of these areas but focus primarily on providing high-quality and high-value
products and supporting those products through the Group's dealer networks. Customers’ perceptions of product value in terms of productivity,
reliability, resale value and dealer support are formed over many years. Buyers tend to favour brands based on experience with the product and
the dealer.

The efficiency of the Group's manufacturing, logistic and scheduling systems are dependent on forecasts of industry volumes and the Group's
anticipated share of industry sales, which is predicated on the Group's ability to compete successfully with others in the marketplace. The Group
competes based on product performance, customer service, quality, innovation and price. The environment remains competitive from a pricing
standpoint, and actions taken to maintain the Group's competitive position in the current challenging economic environment could result in lower
than anticipated price realization. The ability of the Group supply chain and manufacturing system to timely deliver finished goods is also critical to
meeting customer expectations. Failure to do so might imply losses of market share and competitiveness.

The Group's principal competitors in the commercial and specialty vehicles market are Daimler Truck, the Traton Group, the Stellantis Group,
Paccar Inc., the Volvo Group, Rosenbauer International AG, Rheinmetall AG, Oshkosh Corporation.

The principal competitors of Powertrain include Cummins Inc., Daimler Group, Deere & Company, Deutz AG, Traton Group, Volvo Group, Yanmar
Co., Ltd, Caterpillar/Perkins and Weichai Power Co. Ltd.
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PRODUCTS

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles
Trucks and Commercial Vehicles (IVECO and ASTRA)

Under the IVECO brand, the Group produces a range of light, medium, and heavy trucks and commercial vehicles for both on-road and off-road
use, with approximately 3,700 different models available. The Group's key products include the Daily, a vehicle that covers the 3.5 — 7.5 ton
vehicle weight range, the Eurocargo, a vehicle that covers the 7.5 — 16 ton range, and the Way Range, the heavy product offers above 16 ton that
was completely renewed starting from 2019. The heavy vehicles portfolio includes the S-Way (for long haulage and distribution), the X-Way
(dedicated to construction logistics and municipalities), and the T-Way for off-road applications. The product offering is complemented by a series
of aftersales and used vehicle assistance services.

Light vehicles include on-road vans and chassis cabs used for short and medium distance transportation and distribution of goods, and off-road
trucks for use in quarries and other work sites. The Group has an estimated 31.4% (was 31.7% in 2022) market share in Europe (w/o UK &
Ireland) in professional heavy cab-chassis (in 3.5- 7.49 ton GVW). The Group also offers shuttle vehicles used by public transportation authorities,
tourist operators, hotels and sports clubs and campers for recreational travel.

The M&H vehicle product lines include on-road chassis cabs designed for medium and long-distance hauling and distribution. Medium Gross
Vehicle Weight ("GVW") off-road models are typically used for building roads, winter road maintenance, construction, transportation, maintenance
of power lines and other installations in off-road areas, civil protection and roadside emergency service. Heavy GVW off-road models are
designed to operate in virtually any climate and on any terrain and are typically used to transport construction plant materials, transport and mix
concrete, maintain roads in winter and transport exceptionally heavy loads.

The Group offers ecological diesel and natural gas engines on its entire range of vehicles. The Group continues to develop engines with specific
components and configurations optimized for use with CNG and LNG. The Group has developed a comprehensive roadmap for the introduction in
the market of a complete range of zero emission vehicles (from Light to Heavy).

In November 2023 the Group presented the fully renewed truck portfolio with the MY24 version of Daily, Eurocargo and Way Range including the
new version of eDaily and the S-eWay 4x2 BEV artic for regional haulage.

Under the ASTRA brand, the Group engineers and manufactures special vehicles for specialized transport heavy haulage and off-highway mining
missions. These trucks are specifically designed to satisfy heavy mining, oil and gas and construction applications where payloads, duty cycles
and climatic conditions are far above the standard use for heavy commercial vehicles.

Buses (IVECO BUS and HEULIEZ)

Under the IVECO BUS and HEULIEZ brands, the Group offers local and inter-city commuter buses, minibuses, school buses and tourism
coaches, and is a leader in inter-city buses as well as in low and zero emissions solutions. IVECO BUS is one of the major European
manufacturers in the passenger transport sector with an additional new plant in Foggia inaugurated in 2023 supporting operations in Italy and is
expanding its activities globally. HEULIEZ produces city buses for public transportation and is a leader in France for the urban bus market. The
Group has a competitive footprint in Europe, the Middle East and Africa and is looking to grow in Latin America through portfolio expansion. The
Group’s bus segment also benefits from sharing technology with IVECO trucks and commercial vehicles.

Specialty Vehicles (MAGIRUS and IDV)

IDV develops and manufactures specialized vehicles for defense missions and civil protection. Under the MAGIRUS brand, the Group
manufactures vehicles designed to respond to natural disasters and civil emergencies, such as fires, floods, earthquakes and explosions, using
new digital and innovative technologies.

Powertrain
Powertrain is dedicated to the design, manufacture and sale of combustion engines, alternative propulsion systems, transmissions, and axles
under the FPT Industrial brand.

FPT Industrial has an extensive product offering, including six engine lines ranging from 42 to 1,000 hp, transmissions with torque up to 500 Nm,
and front and rear axles from 2.45 to 32 tonnes GAW (Gross Axle Weight). Furthermore, FPT Industrial offers the most complete Natural Gas
engine line-up on the market, with power outputs ranging from 50 to 520 hp. FPT Industrial's product portfolio includes engines for minibuses and
buses, for light, medium and heavy commercial vehicles, engines for industrial machinery including construction equipment, agricultural and
industrial equipment, engines for special-purpose vehicles, and engines for power generation units and marine applications. A dedicated
ePowertrain division is accelerating the path towards net zero-emissions mobility, with electric drivelines, battery packs, and battery management
systems for minibuses and buses, light and heavy commercial vehicles, and for sports cars. This extensive offering, and its strong focus on R&D,
makes FPT Industrial a world leader in industrial powertrains and solutions.

Launches: During 2023, FPT Industrial was involved in a series of important product launches and exhibited at major trade shows.

On 10 January 2023, at the 30" Ski World Cup in Flachau (Austria), FPT Industrial and Prinoth, a world leader in the production of snow groomers
and tracked vehicles, officially presented the PRINOTH LEITWOLF h2MOTION - the world’s first hydrogen powered snow groomer featuring an
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internal combustion engine by FPT Industrial — to over 100 journalists. The new concept vehicle is, indeed, equipped with the new FPT Industrial
XC13 Hydrogen version, a 13-liter, six-cylinder engine, delivering 460 hp (338 kW) and 2,000 Nm of torque. Leveraging the company’s extensive
experience with alternative fuels, the XC13 Hydrogen engine is an initial concept looking towards a complementary offering to accelerate the
decarbonization process of the industrial applications sector.

The hydrogen combustion engine installed in the PRINOTH LEITWOLF h2MOTION is an additional technology in FPT Industrial’s portfolio for net-
zero CO, emission solutions, offering customers the familiarity they are used to with traditionally fueled machines. The hydrogen fuel is stored in
five tanks mounted on the back of the machine for an indicative running time of more than three hours.

In February, FPT Industrial returned in the dual role of Diamond Premier Sponsor and exhibitor at POWERGEN International in Orlando (Florida,
USA), the largest networking and business hub for electricity generators and solutions providers engaged in power generation. FPT Industrial's
stand displayed an even more complete range of Tier 4 Final/Stage V and Tier 3 engines from 3 to 13 liters for power generation applications,
offering high performance along with flexibility, reliability, and the lowest cost of ownership, all with compact engine layouts. The engines on
display included the F34 40kW Tier 4, F34 75kW Tier 4 Final, F36 Tier 4 Final/Stage V, NEF45 Mechanical G Drive Tier 3, NEF67 PowerPack
Stage V/Tier 4 Final and C9 Stage V.

In March the brand exhibited at CONEXPO CON/AGG 2023 in Las Vegas, the largest construction show in North America, to present its full range
of Tier 4 Final and Stage V solutions, 2.8- to 16-liter engines which offer high performance along with flexibility, reliability, and maximized uptime.
FPT Industrial’s portfolio of high-productivity, high-efficiency engines can be used across a range of applications (off-road, industrial and power
generation), and are compatible with renewable diesel fuels. Combined with FPT Industrial’s proven ATS technology, these fuels are the low-
emission solution, reducing CO, impact by up to 90%, with high levels of sustainability.

The star of the show was the new F28 modular, extremely compact engine family. The F28 has a multi-fuel design that shares common base
components for diesel, natural gas, and scalable hybrid versions. On display in Las Vegas was the new PowerPack version of the F28, a smart
ready-to-use installation solution incorporating all key aftertreatment components into a single package. Available for both construction and
industrial applications, the F28's versatile design makes it ideal for equipment in the rental industry, such as AWPs, telehandlers, pumps, welders,
chippers, and trenchers. The F28 Hybrid demonstrates FPT Industrial's commitment to providing zero-emission solutions for the construction
equipment sector.

In early May, FPT Industrial exhibited at ACT Expo 2023, held at the Anaheim Convention Center (Anaheim, California, USA) to showcase its role
as one of the major global players in the electric propulsion field, designing, developing, and manufacturing a wide and diversified range of zero-
emissions products. At the brand’s stand, visitors were able to admire the 140-kW central drive allowing easy installation of a full-electric solution
even on the most complex existing vehicle architectures; the brand’s electrified axles, offering power outputs of 145 kW to 840 kW, are a zero-
emissions solution for light, medium and heavy commercial vehicles. Designed for the Nikola Tre BEV and already installed on production
vehicles, the eAX 840-R could be seen first-hand at the Nikola stand at ACT Expo.

Still in May, FPT Industrial presented its full range of solutions for implementing a zero-carbon footprint virtuous cycle in agriculture at Agrishow
2023, which took place in Ribeirdo Preto (S&o Paulo, Brazil). N60 NG engines for power generation, the Cursor 11 for agricultural machinery,
Industrial Power Units (IPUs) for mobile and stationary applications, and the FPT Original Reman range of remanufactured engines rounded off
the products on display at FPT Industrial’s stand, while other important products of FPT Industrial's broad portfolio were exhibited by partners
Case IH with the S8000 engine, Horsch with the N67, IVECO with the Cursor 13 Euro VI, New Holland Agriculture with the N67 Natural Gas, and
Marcher with the N45 in the mechanical injection configuration. A powerful reminder that in Brazilian agribusiness, one out of every three tractors
and one out of every two harvesters sold has an FPT Industrial engine.

In mid-May, FPT Industrial exhibited at the China International Construction Equipment Exhibition (CICEE) 2023, held at the Changsha
International Convention & Exhibition Centre. After eight years of continuous development, CICEE has grown into one of the main sector trade
fairs in China, and one of the largest trading platforms for construction machinery parts and components in the world. To continuously help
China’s OEMs in their internationalization drive, FPT Industrial offers a full range of T4 Final and Stage V solutions, 2.8- to 16-liter engines
delivering high performance along with flexibility, reliability, and the lowest TCO, all with compact engine layouts. At the same time, it guarantees
an extended range of solutions to support Chinese PG OEMs’ global market, and is expanding its PG line-up by offering PG CHINA IV engines
with FPT’s patented Hi-eSCR ATS technology.

In June, FPT Industrial exhibited at REMATEC 2023, the global exhibition for remanufacturing professionals, held in Amsterdam (Netherlands)
from 27 to 29 June. Original Reman by FPT Customer Service showcased remanufactured engines and components together with the brand’s
commitment to sustainability and to the circular economy. As supplier of Reman products for the entire Iveco Group and for many other non-
captive customers, FPT Industrial has many years of experience in the remanufacturing of engines and components, and strongly believes that
this industrial activity can make a major difference in terms of environmental impact without sacrificing quality and safety. In order to strengthen
the brand’s commitment to sustainability, the stand was designed with CO, reductions in mind, meaning no physical mockups or product literature
was on display. An innovative app offered visitors the chance to discover FPT Industrial's product offering. On top of this, the brand is supporting
Treedom, the platform that allows people to plant trees in different countries around the world and to follow their growth online, with the creation of
a MYFPT Original Reman forest with 500 trees which will absorb 103.50 tons of CO,.

In July, FPT Industrial and Reefilla, an innovative Turin-based startup offering the first predictive mobile charging service, launched a pilot project
aimed at giving a second life to batteries from electric commercial vehicles, in particular the eBS37 model installed in the IVECO eDaily and
minibus. FPT Industrial and Reefilla have joined forces in a full-circle process to reuse electric vehicle batteries once their service life has expired.
The proposed solution also assures full sustainability and compliance with new European regulations. Some of the eBS 37 EVO batteries will be
delivered to Reefilla when they are no longer suitable for powering electric traction. The startup will recover the batteries’ modules and over 50%
of their internal components. The components will then be installed in Reefilla’s Fillee mobile power banks, for use in recharging its clients’ electric
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vehicles. By using parts from the high-performance eBS37 batteries, Reefilla counts on significantly increasing the charge capacity of its Fillee
power banks.

In August, FPT Industrial chose the Farm Progress Show 2023 in Decatur (lllinois, USA) to present its brand-new C16 TST, the two-stage-
turbocharged engine powering the new flagship Case IH Steiger 715 tractor. As a guest at the Case IH stand, FPT Industrial showcased the result
of a close and intense partnership with Case IH, in order to provide the new Steiger 715 with performance increases of more than 10% in terms of
power and over 6% in terms of torque compared to the previous C13 TST-powered Steiger 645. The reason for this significant power and torque
increase lies in the fact that Case IH Steiger customers are pulling wider and wider implements ever faster in order to increase productivity. This
new top-of-the-range engine, with market-leading compactness and power-to-weight ratio, features proven Cursor engine reliability with robust
and lean design and EGR-free combustion, and has been extensively tested for more than 20,000 hours both on the bench and in the field. In
order to guarantee the increased performance required by the new Steiger 715, the new C16 TST has been reinforced in a number of aspects.
The EGR-free combustion chamber was improved to allow for an increased maximum pressure up to 220 bar; intermediate cooling together with
high torque availability ensures fast load response; while the second-generation Common Rail injection system, operating at up to 2,500 bar,
ensures high engine efficiency and low fluid consumption. Last but not least, a maintenance-free aftertreatment system without DPF, as well as
600-hour oil change intervals, help keep the machine’s operating costs down.

In September, for the third year in a row, FPT Industrial played a prominent role in the Grape Harvest Festival held at the beautiful Fontanafredda
wine estate in Serralunga d’Alba (Piedmont region, ltaly). The event included guided visits, tastings of dishes from Michelin-Starred chefs,
concerts, and the traditional crushing of the grapes: one of the highlights of the tour was the cru Vigna La Rosa, whose Barolo wine features in
Wine Spectator's Top 100. Here, the Nebbiolo grapes are grown and harvested with the aid of a New Holland TK Methane Power crawler tractor
powered by the biomethane-fueled sustainable FPT F28 NG engine.

In November, FPT Industrial exhibited at AGRITECHNICA 2023, the world’s leading trade fair for agricultural machinery, held in Hanover
(Germany). At this key event, FPT Industrial showcased its leadership in the agricultural powertrain sector, based on a proven full-range portfolio
covering all applications, a growing number of satisfied customers, and worldwide yearly production of over 100,000 agricultural engines,
confirmed year-on-year through groundbreaking innovations and improvements. The brand also reaffirmed its steady commitment to constantly
improving internal combustion diesel engines, paired with the introduction of totally sustainable fuels such as hydrogen and biomethane, while
continuing to pioneer new, zero-emissions electric powertrains, as well as hybrid solutions. This commitment was perfectly shown off not only by
the products showcased, but also by the brand-new stand, designed following the results of a study conducted together with Polytechnic
University of Milan. The study analyzed the stand’s global carbon footprint by taking into consideration materials, goods and passenger transport,
energy consumption during the trade fair, set-up and dismantling, to name just some of the factors. For example, all the materials needed to build
the booth were transported from Italy to Hanover, and back, by a fleet of IVECO S-Way trucks, powered by FPT Industrial Cursor 13 NG engines
and fueled by BioLNG provided by Shell, contributing to driving emissions down towards zero. After the exhibition, FPT Industrial verified the
residual emissions to offset them through the purchase of certified carbon credits. The main attraction of the FPT Industrial stand at Agritechnica
2023 was undoubtedly the new XC13, the brand’s first multi-fuel single-base engine, exhibited for the first time in its hydrogen version for
agricultural equipment. The XC13 H2 concept engine is an additional technology in FPT Industrial’s portfolio for zero-CO, emission solutions,
offering customers the familiarity they are used to with traditional machines.

The advanced and sustainable propulsion systems range from FPT Industrial co-starred at the launch of the new IVECO Model Year 2024 range
during the IVECO event, held in Barcelona on 15 November. In order to highlight FPT Industrial’s key role supporting IVECO in driving change in
the commercial transport industry, each of the new vehicle models displayed in the walkaround area was flanked by its FPT Industrial powertrain,
introduced by a brand product expert. This presence by the new IVECO full range of light, medium and heavy-duty vehicles was conceived
perfectly in tune with the event concept “BE THE CHANGE”, since IVECO and FPT Industrial together encourage customers and partners to feel
the pulse of change throughout the industry and embrace it. Products on display included the N67 NG for the Eurocargo CNG, the XC13 Diesel
for the IVECO S-Way, IVECO X-Way and IVECO T-Way, the F1C Diesel for the Daily, the eBS 37 EVO battery pack and eCD 140 central drive
for the eDaily, and the eAx840 electric axle for the S-eWay Fuel Cell.

In the same month, FPT Industrial exhibited at METSTRADE 2023, the world’s largest B2B marine equipment trade show, celebrating its 35N
anniversary. Environmental protection, hybrid propulsion, smart solutions, and future-oriented collaborations were the main themes of the brand’s
attendance at RAI Amsterdam Europaplein (Amsterdam, Netherlands). The wide range of advanced and efficient marine engines showcased
included the N67 450 N for auxiliary fixed-speed and Stage V applications, dedicated to both professionals and recreational boaters; the C90 650
EVO Hybrid Configuration, the modular and scalable parallel hybrid electric marine propulsion system for commercial and pleasure vessels
developed by FPT Industrial and Vulkan Hybrid Architect; the new C90 650 E Light Duty, delivering best-in-class maximum power and peak
torque for light-duty applications, and designed to increase the available power in the B1 light duty curve, up to 1,000 h/y usage, from 580 hp to
605 hp @ 2,530 rpm; the C16 600 for heavy-duty missions such as for push and tugboats, ferries, dredgers and commercial fishing vessels,
available with heat-exchanger cooling and keel cooled systems, and IMO Tier Ill-compliant solutions, developed by FPT Industrial and Frydenbg
Industri AS Marine for a cleaner environment and to reduce the environmental impact of the maritime industry. The Frydenbg ATS for FPT
Industrial engines is a simple and flexible system that meets the IMO IIl emission requirements in emissions-controlled areas such as the Baltic
Sea, the English Channel and the North Sea south of 62 degrees latitude, and is available for the brand’s marine engines from 6 to 16 liters.

Also in November, FPT Industrial launched two newly rated marine propulsion engines at the Pacific Marine Expo 2023 (Seattle, USA). The new
medium and heavy-duty Cursor C90 410 and high-performance commercial light-duty C90 650E @ 605 hp. Both engines build on FPT industrial's
legacy of outstanding power output standards with minimum displacement and the highest levels of reliability.

In China, FPT Industrial and Goodsense launched the first forklift equipped with FPT Industrial’'s F28 Stage V/Tier 4F engine. The product launch
was held in Taizhou, Zhejiang Province (China). This launch was the result of the letter of intent signed between the two partners in early 2023,
concerning the delivery of more than 5,000 units of the F28 Stage V/Tier 4F engine as power units for GOODSENSE forklifts for export to markets
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with strict emissions standards, such as Europe and the United States.

Deliveries: In January 2023, FPT Industrial announced that it will be supplying up to 500 high-performance battery packs to sister company
IVECO BUS to equip its fleet of E-WAY full-electric 18 m articulated city buses to be delivered in Belgium, following a recently signed framework
agreement with the Flemish government-owned public transport enterprise De Lijn. The vehicles will be deployed in several cities in Flanders, with
deliveries beginning in 2024 - a first batch of 65 vehicles — and potentially continuing over six years. They will represent the largest fleet of IVECO
BUS articulated electric buses in operation.

Atfter the fantastic victory at the 2023 Dakar Rally, FPT Industrial switched to the raceways as supplier and tuner of the Cursor 13 Common Rail
engines powering the four IVECO S-Way trucks of the Usual Racing and Dakar Motorsports teams participating in the 2023 Copa Truck in Brazil.

Now in its seventh edition, the Copa Truck is a truck racing championship held on some of the most famous tracks in Brazil.

FPT Industrial’s presence at the 2023 Copa Truck circuits is reinforced with the brand’s logo on the trucks, on the drivers’ overalls, in the teams’
pit areas, and also on the truck miniatures produced by Usual Brinquedos.

In May, FPT Industrial and Maserati, the legendary House of the Trident, revealed the precious fruit of their collaboration. The two brands have
worked closely together to create the new Maserati GranTurismo Folgore, the first car in the brand’s history to adopt a 100% electric powertrain.
The GranTurismo Folgore is based on 800 V technology and has been developed with cutting-edge technical solutions derived from Formula E.
As a key point, it is equipped with three 300 kW permanent-magnet motors integrated into front and rear FPT Industrial electric axles, delivering
up to 761 hp to the vehicle. This powerful and efficient system allows for an astonishing 2.7 sec 0-100 km/h time, with a top speed of 325 km/h.

Jointly developed by FPT Industrial and Maserati, the FPT Industrial eAxles — a single-motor electric axle at the front and a two-motor electric axle
at the rear — deliver top levels of power density (up to 4.83 kW/kg). A first from the FPT Industrial brand, these axles feature a compact and
lightweight design thanks to their fully aluminum structure and are manufactured in the ePowertrain plant, the Iveco Group'’s first carbon-neutral
premises, located in Turin (Italy). The eAX 300-F front electric axle boasts a peak power output of over 300 kW and maximum wheel torque of
3,100 Nm. It also incorporates a parking lock system for enhanced safety, preventing vehicle movement while parked. The eAX 600-R dual-motor
rear electric axle features peak power of over 600 kW and maximum wheel torque of 6,500 Nm.

At the end of the same month, FPT Industrial announced the supply of its F36 Stage V engine for the recently launched New Holland TE6
Straddle Tractor Range. The new and unique TE6.120N and TE6.150N are multifunction tractors specifically designed for narrow vineyards that
require machines with exceptional maneuverability and compact dimensions. The main features of this new and revolutionary Straddle Tractor
range are multifunctionality, maneuverability, compact design, and power, and the FPT Industrial F36 Stage V engine plays a key role in ensuring
their perfect functionality and synergy. Both the F36 86 kW and F36 105 kW engines, powering the TE6.120N and TE6.150N models respectively,
are mid-row longitudinally mounted for better weight distribution. The Stage V compact ATS ensures all-round visibility is not compromised. These
engines also feature a new single cooling block (water, oil, air) with dual fan, and integrated fuel, urea, and oil tanks to speed up refilling
operations.

In June, FPT Industrial and Zhejiang Goodsense Forklift Co., Ltd., a major player in the world forklift truck manufacturing industry, and the leading
manufacturer in China, signed a letter of intent for the supply of F28 engines to power forklift products for export to European and American
markets. According to the agreement, FPT Industrial will provide more than 5,000 F28 Stage V/Tier 4F engines as the core power sources for
forklifts to Goodsense Forklift over the next five years. For FPT Industrial, this supply letter of intent represents the first successful application of
the F28 series in the Chinese market, and also a major breakthrough in the global market for forklift products.

The F28 engines for Goodsense Forklift will be available in versions with power outputs of 43 kW and 55 kW, providing performance equivalent to
3-4 | engines in a 2.8 | engine package. By combining the advantages of compactness, high performance, and environmental protection, they will
easily meet users’ application requirements for limited space and high productivity, making them the ideal solution for goods handling machinery.

In late June, the Pre-Conditioned Air (PCA) vehicle equipped with a FPT Industrial Cursor 9 engine successfully passed testing and was delivered
to Shanghai Pudong International Airport, in support of the airport's safety infrastructure and ensuring efficient operations.

As one of the essential support vehicles for airports, the Pre-Conditioned Air (PCA) vehicle is mainly responsible for ventilating and cooling down
the electronic equipment compartment and cockpit of the aircraft when the aircraft engines are not running. They also cool down the aircraft's
wheel hubs and brake pads for taxiing. With strong support from its partners, FPT Industrial has combined development planning and realistic
operations to provide technical and product advantages, which have won praise from customers of airport ground support machines since the first
successful application in this segment in October 2019. These include Uriimqi Diwopu International Airport, Nanchang Changbei International
Airport, Chengdu Shuangliu International Airport, and Haikou Meilan International Airport.

Prizes and achievements: In 2023, FPT Industrial’s products were honored with the following prestigious awards:
TRACTOR OF THE YEAR® 2024 (TOTY) - McCORMICK X5.120 P3-Drive powered by F36 - Best Utility
SUSTAINABLE BUS OF THE YEAR 2023 - IVECO BUS CROSSWAY Low Entry HYBRID Natural Gas powered by Cursor 9 Natural Gas
GOLDEN AXLE AWARD 2023 - FPT Industrial eAX 375-R

On the 15 January 2023, the 45" edition of the DAKAR Rally, the world’s most challenging motor raid, held in Saudi Arabia, concluded with a win
for Janus van Kasteren Jr. in IVECO Powerstar #502 powered by a FPT Industrial Cursor 13 engine. Martin van den Brink in IVECO Powerstar
#506 finished third, with fourth place in the general rankings going to Mitchel van den Brink in IVECO Powerstar #511, completing an extremely
impressive performance. After fourteen stages over 8,500 km, including almost 5,000 km of specials on courses with demands well beyond the
limits of the possible, unanimously rated as the toughest ever set, the 13-liter Cursor 13 engines installed on all the vehicles of the two new teams
Boss Machinery Team De Rooy IVECO, and Eurol Team De Rooy IVECO, proved their worth as powerful, reliable partners in the achievement of
the final result. The power and ruggedness of the brand’s engines enabled the IVECO trucks to overcome the Empty Quarter, the largest sand
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desert in the world, not to mention harsh rocky landscapes, daunting fords and, last but not least, the sea of mud created by the final day’s rain.

In May, FPT Industrial and Edison Next, the Edison Group company which guides companies and regions through the decarbonization process,
announced the creation of the first biomonitoring station using bees in FPT Industrial’s Turin Stura site. Bees are considered to be “air quality
sentries”, because they represent a reliable biological indicator of the state of health of the wider environment, and play a strategic role in
safeguarding biodiversity. The biomonitoring station in Stura is home to six hives of Italian bees, Apis mellifera ligustica, a subspecies of the
western honey bee. The lime (linden), wildflower, and acacia honeys produced by the work of these hives are of excellent quality, so much so that
they recently received quality recognition at the 15" regional Ferrere Miele competition.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles’ worldwide distribution strategy is based on a network of independent dealers, in addition to its own
dealerships and branches. As of 31 December 2023, Commercial and Specialty Vehicles had approximately 650 dealers globally (of which 15
were directly owned by the Group and 11 were branches). All dealers sell spare parts for the relevant vehicles. Commercial and Specialty
Vehicles bolsters its distribution strategy by offering incentives to its dealers based on target achievements for sales of new vehicles and parts
and providing high quality aftersales services.

As of 31 December 2023, Commercial and Specialty Vehicles had approximately 5,000 sales and/or service network points. In addition to
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles' standard one-year full vehicle warranty and two-year powertrain warranty, Commercial and Specialty
Vehicles offers personalized aftersales customer assistance programs.

A key element of Commercial and Specialty Vehicles’ growth strategy is its distribution network. In Western Europe, Eastern Europe, Tirkiye,
Australia and Latin America, continued consolidation of the distribution network is aimed at improving service to customers. In Africa and the
Middle East, the distribution network is being expanded to fully exploit growth in these markets.

In the U.K., Commercial and Specialty Vehicles is one of the OEMs that sells trucks and other commercial vehicles to companies which offer
commercial vehicle rental solutions, such as Ryder, Fraikin and Burntree, among others.

Powertrain

Powertrain specializes in delivering propulsion solution products to the Commercial and Specialty Vehicle segment within the Iveco Group. The
company extends its services to the Agriculture and Construction segments, catering to various third-party customers. Furthermore, Powertrain
strategically aligns its commercial approach and business model towards cultivating a diverse portfolio of medium-to-large OEM clientele. The
company has successfully engaged in establishing long-term supply agreements with an expanding number of third-party customers.

Powertrain has a network of dealers and service points that cover its entire product range and related market sectors. Large OEMs use their own
internal networks to obtain parts and services for purchased equipment, while small OEMs frequently rely on us for delivery of parts and services
through Powertrain’s worldwide network.

PRICING AND PROMOTION

The retail pricing of specific equipment or vehicles is determined by individual dealers or distributors, contingent upon various factors such as
market conditions, features, options, and potential regulatory requirements. Deviations from the manufacturer-suggested list prices can arise due
to factors like market demand, customer preferences, local economic conditions, access to financing, and other relevant considerations. The
Group primarily sells its portfolio to dealers and distributors at wholesale prices, reflecting a discount from the manufacturer-suggested list price.

In the routine course of operations, the Group initiates promotional campaigns, which may involve price incentives or preferential financing terms
for certain products. The Group actively promotes its products to transporters, distributors, and dealers in major markets through a comprehensive
strategy encompassing general media, specialized design and trade publications, online platforms, and direct mail. Furthermore, the Group
consistently participates in prominent international and national trade shows and collaborates on cooperative advertising initiatives with
distributors and dealers. The promotional approach for each brand is tailored to align with the distinctive characteristics of the target customers
associated with that brand.

PARTS AND SERVICES

The quality and timely availability of parts and services are important competitive factors for each of the Group's businesses, as they are
significant elements in overall dealer and customer satisfaction and important considerations in a customer’s original equipment purchase
decision. The Group supplies parts, many of which are proprietary, to support items in the current product line as well as for products the Group
has sold in the past. The Group also offers personalized aftersales customer assistance programs that provide a wide range of modular and
flexible maintenance and repair contracts, as well as warranty extension services, to meet a variety of customers’ needs and to support the
vehicle’s value over time. Many of the Group's products can have economically productive lives of up to 10 years when properly maintained, and
each unit has the potential to produce a long-term parts and services revenue stream for the Group and its dealers. For these old engines FPT
Industrial Customer Service has developed the “Original Reman” line: a cost-efficient parts that are exactly as efficient as a brand-new unit. The
remanufactured product, which are also a sustainable alternative, get tested and provided with a full warranty.

Connectivity and digitalization play an important part in the Company strategy, supporting both sustainability goals and to pursuing service
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excellence. More than 240,000 assets are monitored 24/7 in FPT Industrial's Control Room in Turin headquarters, where aftersales experts and
engineers work side by side to develop and release in field algorithms that increase customer uptime and reduce fuel consumption and emissions
through FPT Industrial Proactive Assistance Service, part of FPT Industrial Connect portfolio of services.

In the unlikely event of a breakdown related to one of brand products, FPT Industrial and its network increasingly intervene in field through virtual
field visits, saving time and fuel as the goal of re-starting customer operations is reached guiding the field technician through a tested Remote
Support platform, now operating since 2019.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group operated and administered 19 parts depots worldwide either directly, through a joint venture, or through
arrangements with warehouse service providers. This network includes 9 in Europe, 2 in South America, 1 in North America, and 7 in Rest of
World. The network includes 18 depots that support Commercial and Specialty Vehicles and 9 that support Powertrain. These depots supply parts
to dealers and distributors, which are responsible for sales to retail customers. The Group's parts depots and parts delivery systems provide
customers with access to substantially all the parts required to support Group's products.

COMMERCIAL AND/OR MANUFACTURING COLLABORATIONS

As part of a strategy to enter and expand in new markets, the Group is involved in several commercial and/or manufacturing collaborations
relating to Industrial Activities business. In particular,

= in China, the Group controls 60.0% of SAIC Fiat Powertrain Hongyan Ltd (“SFH"), a manufacturing company located in Chongging, which
produces diesel engines under license from us to be sold in the Chinese market and to be exported to Europe, the U.S. and Latin America.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Financial Services offers a range of financial products and services to dealers, importers, customers and suppliers in the various regions in which
the Group's Industrial Activities segments operate. The principal products offered directly or through joint ventures with banks are retail loan, lease
financing and operating lease for the purchase or lease of new and used vehicles, wholesale financing to dealers and factoring of trade
receivables from legal entities of the Group. Wholesale financing consists primarily of dealer floor plan financing and gives the dealers the ability
to maintain a representative inventory of new products. In addition, Financial Services directly or through joint ventures with banks provides
financing to dealers for used vehicles taken in trade, vehicles utilized in dealer-owned rental yards, parts inventory, working capital and other
financing needs. As a captive finance business, Financial Services is reliant on and supports the operations of Commercial and Specialty
Vehicles, and Powertrain, their dealers and customers.

Financial Services supports the growth of Industrial Activities by developing and structuring financial products with the objective of increasing
vehicle sales as well as profitability and customer loyalty. Financial Services’ strategy is to grow a core financing business to support the sale of
the Group's vehicles while at the same time maintaining its portfolio credit quality, service levels, operational effectiveness and customer
satisfaction. Financial Services also offers products to finance third party vehicles sold through the Group's dealer network or within the Group's
core businesses. Financed third party vehicles include used vehicles taken in trade on the Group's products used in conjunction with or attached
to the Group's products.

In Europe, there are two joint ventures that provide retail financing to customers for the purchase or lease of new and used vehicles sold directly
by the Group or through brand dealers, depending on the country of origin. CNH Industrial Capital Europe S.a.S., a joint venture accounted for
under the equity method, owned by BNP Paribas Group (51.1%), Iveco Group (24.95%) and CNH Industrial N.V. (24.95%). Transolver Finance
Establecimiento Financiero de Credito S.A. (“Transolver Finance”), a joint venture with the Santander Group, owned by Iveco Group N.V. (49%)
and accounted for under the equity method. Transolver Finance also provides dealer financing. Additionally, there are vendor programs with
banking partners that provide customer financing of new and used vehicles sold by brand dealers of the Group, in different countries.

In Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA), the Iveco Group Financial Services organisation provides services to the CNH Industrial Financial
Services segment on customer financing and factoring deeply described and regulated in a specific Master Service Agreement (Financial
Services Master Service Agreement). In this context in Europe, IC Financial Services S.A., a French specialized credit institution with passporting
to operate in main European countries, wholly-owned by the Group, manages CNH Industrial dealer financing through a dedicated securitization.

For South America, customer and dealer financing activities in Brazil are managed through CNH Industrial wholly-owned financial services
company, Banco CNH Industrial Capital S.A. (“‘Banco CNH Industrial Capital”), which supports the sales of Commercial and Specialty Vehicles
with a "Vendor Program". For customer financing of the Group, Banco CNH Industrial Capital mainly continues to serve as a lender for funding
provided by BNDES, a federally-owned financial institution linked to the Brazilian Ministry of Development, Industry and Foreign Trade. In
Argentina, customer and dealer financing activities, which support the sales of Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, are supported and served
through a wholly-owned CNH Industrial financial services company, with a "Vendor Program”. In addition, other vendor programs with banking
partners are also in place in Argentina.

For Rest of World (Australia), customer and dealer financing activities for the Commercial and Specialty Vehicles are managed through a "Vendor
Program" with CNH Industrial wholly-owned financial services companies.
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Customer Financing

Financial Services - also through the joint ventures - has retail underwriting and portfolio management policies and procedures that are specific to
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles. This distinction allows Financial Services to reduce risk by deploying industry-specific expertise in each of
these businesses. The Group provides retail financial products primarily through the Group's dealers, who are trained in the use of the various
financial products. Dedicated credit analysis teams perform retail credit underwriting. The terms for financing vehicle retail sales typically provide
for retention of a security interest in the vehicles financed.

Financial Services’ guidelines for minimum down payments for vehicles generally range from 5% to 30% of the actual sales price, depending on
equipment types, repayment terms, and customer credit quality. Finance charges are sometimes waived for specified periods or reduced on
vehicles sold or leased in advance of the season of use or in connection with other sales promotions. For periods during which finance charges
are waived or reduced on the retail notes or leases, Financial Services generally receives compensation from the applicable Industrial Activities
segment based on Financial Services’ estimated costs and a targeted return on equity. The cost is recognised as a reduction in net sales for the
applicable Industrial Activities segment.

In 2023 GATE - Green & Advanced Transport Ecosystem — started operations in Italy. GATE is the new company dedicated to rental business of
Iveco green commercial vehicles. The mission of the company is to simplify the transition to electric mobility, with long term pay per use full
service rental provided in collaboration with premium partners, and three different type of offers tailored according to customer needs.

Dealer Financing

Financial Services provides wholesale floor plan financing for nearly all the Group's dealers. This allows them to acquire and maintain a
representative inventory of products. Financial Services also provides financing to dealers for used vehicle taken in trade, vehicle utilized in
dealer-owned rental yards, parts inventory, working capital, and other financing needs. For floor plan financing, Financial Services generally
provides a fixed period of “interest free” financing to the dealers. This practice helps to level fluctuations in factory demand and provides a buffer
from the impact of sales seasonality. For the “interest-free” period, the applicable Industrial Activities segment compensates Financial Services
based on Financial Services’ estimated costs and a targeted return on equity. The cost is recognised as a reduction in net sales for the applicable
Industrial Activities segment. After the expiration of any “interest-free” period, interest is charged to dealers on outstanding balances until Financial
Services receives payment in full.

A wholesale underwriting group reviews dealer financial information and payment performance to establish credit lines for each dealer. In setting
these credit lines, Financial Services seeks to meet the reasonable requirements of each dealer while managing its exposure to any one dealer.
The credit lines are secured by the vehicles financed. Dealer credit agreements generally include a requirement to repay the particular financing
at the time of the retail sale of the unit. Financial Services leverages employees, third party contractors, and new digital technologies like “geo-
fencing” to conduct periodic stock audits at each dealership to confirm that the financed vehicle is maintained in inventory. These audits are
unannounced, and their frequency varies by dealer and depends on the dealer’s financial strength, payment history, and prior performance.

Factoring

Financial Services also provides intragroup factoring of trade and other receivables. This activity involves the purchase (without recourse) of
receivables of Iveco Group Industrial Activities legal entities, originating from the different Industrial Activities segments, and due from third or
related parties.

Sources of Funding

The long-term profitability of Financial Services’ activities largely depends on the cyclical nature of the industries in which the Group operates,
interest rate volatility, and the ability to access funding on competitive terms. Financial Services funds its on book operations and lending activity
through a combination of financing sources including receivable securitizations, committed secured and unsecured facilities, uncommitted lines of
credit, unsecured commercial paper, affiliated financing, equity and retained earnings. Financial Services’ current funding strategy is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and flexible access to a wide variety of financial instruments and funding options.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As a global company with a diverse business portfolio, the Iveco Group in the ordinary course of business is exposed to numerous legal risks,
including, without limitation, dealer and supplier litigation, intellectual property rights disputes on intellectual property rights, product warranty and
defective product claims, product performance liability, asbestos, personal injury, regulatory and contractual issues, competition law, anti-
corruption and other investigations, environmental claims. All significant matters are described below.

The outcome of any current or future proceedings, claims, or investigations cannot be predicted with certainty. Adverse decisions in some of
these proceedings, claims or investigations could require Iveco Group to pay substantial damages or fines or undertake service actions, recall
campaigns or other costly actions. It is therefore possible that legal judgments could give rise to expenses that are not covered, or not fully
covered, by insurers’ compensation payments and could affect Iveco Group’s financial position and results.

When it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle obligations and this amount can be
reliably estimated, the Iveco Group recognises specific provisions for this purpose. Contingent liabilities estimated by the Group, for which no
provisions have been recognised since an outflow of resources is not considered probable at the present time, were not material at 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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Although the ultimate outcome of legal matters pending against Iveco Group cannot be predicted, Iveco Group believes the reasonable possible
range of losses for these unresolved legal matters in addition to the amounts accrued would not have a material effect on its Consolidated
Financial Statements, except for the following cases.

Follow on Damages Claims: in 2011 Iveco S.p.A. and Iveco Magirus AG (together "lveca”), which, following the Demerger, are now part of Iveco
Group N.V., and their competitors in the European Union were subject to an investigation by the European Commission (the “Commission”) into
certain business practices in the European Union in the period 1997-2011, in relation to Medium & Heavy trucks. On 19 July 2016, the
Commission announced a settlement with CNH Industrial ("the Decision") including a settiement with Iveco. In particular, Iveco received a
reduction in its fine for cooperating with the European Commission throughout the investigation, and received a fine of €494.6 million. Similar
decisions were taken, by the Commission, with reference to the other competitors. Following the Decision, Iveco S.p.A. and Iveco Magirus AG
have been named as defendants in many proceedings across Europe and Israel. These damage claims could result in substantial liabilities for the
Group as well as incurring in significant defense costs, which may have a material adverse effect on its operations and financial condition. The
extent and outcome of these claims cannot be reliably predicted at this time and, therefore, the Group did not recognise any specific provision for
these claims. In 2023, Iveco Group recognised a cost of €12 million related to certain claims for which it was possible to make a reliable estimate.
This current position will be reassessed on a regular basis and updated as necessary, based on cases' evolution. In accordance with 1AS 37 —
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (paragraph 92), no further information is disclosed so as not to prejudice the Group’s
position.

FPT Emissions Investigation: on 22 July 2020, a number of CNH Industrial's offices in Europe were visited by investigators in the context of a
request for assistance by the public prosecutors of Frankfurt am Main, Germany (later transferred to the public prosecutor's office in Stuttgart,
Germany) and Turin, ltaly, in relation to alleged noncompliance of two engine models produced by FPT Industrial S.p.A., which is now part of the
Iveco Group. The ltalian criminal investigation has been concluded in 2023. As a result of the full cooperation and discussions with the
investigative authorities, the German criminal investigation has also been concluded in December 2023. We are also defending individual civil
claims alleging emissions' non-compliance in Germany and Austria. We cannot predict at this time the extent and outcome of these individual
claims and therefore we did not recognise any specific provision in such relation.

INSURANCE

Iveco Group covers with third party insurers the various risks arising from its business activities including, but not limited to, risk of loss or damage
to its assets or facilities, business interruption, general liability, product liability and directors' and officers' liability. The Group believes it maintains
insurance coverage that is customary in its industry. Until the end of September 2022, the Group used a broker that was a subsidiary of Stellantis
N.V. ("Stellantis", formerly Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. which, effective 16 January 2021, merged with Peugeot S.A. by means of a cross-
border legal merger). Starting from October 2022, Iveco Group relies on international brokers to place its insurance coverage.

PLANTS AND MANUFACTURING PROCESSES
As of 31 December 2023, the Group owned 30 manufacturing facilities. The Group also owns other significant properties including spare parts
depots, research laboratories, test tracks, warehouses, and office buildings.

The Group makes capital expenditures in the regions in which it operates principally related to initiatives to introduce new products, enhance
manufacturing efficiency and improve capacity, and for maintenance and engineering. In 2023, the Group's total capital expenditures in long-lived
assets, excluding assets sold with buy-back commitments and equipment on operating leases, were €970 million of which 94% was spent in
Europe, 5% in South America and 1% in Rest of World, respectively. These capital expenditures were funded through a combination of cash
generated from operating activities and borrowings under short-term facilities. In 2022, the Group's total capital expenditures were €777 million. In
2023, capital expenditures were higher than in 2022 mainly due to the energy transition and Model Year 2024 launches across all ranges.

The following table provides information about our main manufacturing and engineering facilites as of 31 December 2023:

Approximate
Covered Area

Location Primary Functions (Sgqm/000)
Italy

Brescia Medium vehicles, cabs, chassis; R&D centre 276
Brescia Firefighting vehicles; R&D centre 25
Bolzano Defense vehicles; R&D centre 83
Foggia Engines; drive shafts; R&D centre 151
Foggia Buses 5
Piacenza Quarry and construction vehicles; R&D centre 64
Suzzara Light vehicles; R&D centre 170
Torino Transmissions and axles 222
Torino Engines 142
Torino R&D centre (Commercial and Specialty Vehicles) 41
Torino R&D centre (Powertrain) 28
Torino Powertrain generation 18
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Approximate

Covered Area
Location Primary Functions (Sqm/000)
France
Annonay Buses (Coaches & City); R&D centre 114
Bourbon Lancy Engines; R&D centre 107
Fourchambault Engines (remanufacturing) 24
Rorthais Buses (City); R&D centre 34
Venissieux R&D centre (Buses) 14
Brazil
Sete Lagoas Heavy, medium and light vehicles; R&D centre 170
Sete Lagoas Defense vehicles R&D centre 19
Sete Lagoas Engines; R&D centre 22
Germany
Ulm R&D centre (Commercial and Specialty Vehicles) 45
Ulm Firefighting vehicles; R&D centre 35
Ulm Electric and hydrogen-powered heavy-duty trucks; R&D centre 25
China
Chongging Engine; R&D centre 76
Chongging ATS plant 4
Shanghai R&D centre (Powertrain) —
Argentina
Cordoba (Medium/Heavy) Trucks and buses; R&D centre 58
Cordoba Engines 32
Spain
Madrid Heavy vehicles; R&D centre 134
Valladolid Light vehicles, heavy cab components 115
United Kingdom
Coventry R&D centre (Powertrain) 1
Nuneaton R&D centre (Defence) —
Shoream-by-Sea R&D centre (Powertrain) —
Others
Vysoke Myto (Czech Republic) Buses (City & Intercity); R&D centre 126
Arbon (Switzerland) R&D centre (Powertrain) 6
Burr Ridge (United States) R&D centre (Powertrain) 8
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Iveco Group is positioned for significant strides in sustainable mobility and technological advancement. A cornerstone of the research and
development initiatives is the introduction of a zero-emission vehicle tailored for light commercial use, exemplifying the Company's commitment to
environmental responsibility and meeting evolving market demands.

In tandem, the focus on electrification extends to the development of heavy and medium-duty electric vehicles, reinforcing the Company's position
as leaders in sustainable transportation. Complementing this, investments in multi-fuel energy solutions encompassing gas, hydrogen, and diesel
underscore the dedication to providing versatile and sustainable options for customers.

Moreover, the commitment to innovation transcends products to embrace digitalization. Prioritizing Advanced Driver Assistance Systems
(“ADAS"), the Company aims to enhance vehicle safety and operational efficiency. Concurrently, internal processes undergo transformation with
the introduction of new work methodologies and advanced tools, positioning IVECO as a technological innovator.

In summary, Iveco Group's 2023 agenda revolves around sustainable mobility, technological prowess, and operational efficiency. As the
Company forges ahead, it anticipates redefining industry standards and reinforcing its commitment to innovation in the commercial vehicle sector.
In 2023, our expenditure on research and development (including capitalized development costs and costs charged directly to operations during
the year) totalled €888 million, or 5.6% of net revenues from Industrial Activities.

Research and development activities involved approximately 3,600 employees at 31 sites around the world of which approximately 260
employees were located at 6 sites in emerging countries'”.

The following table shows our total research and development expenditures, including capitalized development costs and costs charged directly
to operations during the year, by segment for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

(€ million) 2023 2022
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles 696 462
Powertrain 192 172

Eliminations and Other — —
Total of Industrial Activities 888 634

Financial Services — —

Eliminations - -

Total for the Group 888 634

The Group owns a significant number of patents, trade secrets, and trademarks related to its products and services, and that number is expected
to grow as its research and development activities continue. At 31 December 2023, the Group owned 1,074 patent families, totalling 6,054 active
patents, which includes 62 new patents registered during the year. Additionally, there were 717 patents applications pending at that time. The
Group's patents predominantly pertain to its product line, with 75% related to fire fighting vehicles, heavy, medium and light commercial vehicles,
special vehicles, buses, and spare parts. The remaining 25% of patents are associated with engines and driveline systems. These patents
encompass products, industrial processes, and both internal and external aesthetics of the Group's products. To elaborate, approximately 594
patents are related to fire fighting vehicles, 483 to buses, over 441 to heavy trucks, around 97 to medium trucks, 47 to defence vehicles and more
than 316 to light trucks and vans. Around 470 patents safeguard the Group's vehicle spare parts, and over 1,000 patents pertain to innovative
technologies intended for implementation in the Group's vehicles. These technologies include alternative propulsion, battery management
systems, and autonomous driving solutions. The remaining patents, approximately 1,370, are related to engines, with 140 associated with
drivetrain systems. Other patents pertain to electronic systems, chassis, hydraulic components, and manufacturing processes. In recent years,
the Group's patent portfolio has strategically focused on key technological areas such as alternative propulsion, including fuel cell and battery
electric vehicles, liquid and compressed natural gas engines, and innovative solutions for autonomous driving for both short and long international
goods transport. As of 31 December 2023, over 58% of the Group's patent portfolio serves to protect its current vehicles and engines. The entire
patent portfolio is designed to defend the Group against potential patent infringements.

(1) Emerging Markets are defined as low, lower-middle or upper-middle income countries as per the World Bank list of economies as at June 2023.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

EMPLOYEES

The ability to attract, retain, and further develop qualified employees is crucial to the success of Iveco Group’s businesses and its ability to create
value over the long-term. The Group’s business is, by its nature, labour intensive and this is reflected in the high number of the Group hourly
employees.

The following tables show the breakdown of the number of employees by segment and by region at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

(number) 2023 2022
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles 27,121 26,718
Powertrain 8,167 8,198
Other Activities 222 207
Total of Industrial Activities 35,510 35,123
Financial Services 527 488
Total 36,037 35,611
(number) 2023 2022
Europe 31,012 29,914
North America 84 74
South America 3,854 4,432
Rest of World 1,087 1,191
Total 36,037 35,611

As of 31 December 2023, Iveco Group had 36,037 employees, an increase of 426 from the 35,611 employees at year-end 2022. The change
was mainly attributable to the difference between new hires (approximately 3,500) and departures (approximately 3,300) during the year. A
further increase of approximately 200 employees was due to several changes in the scope of operations, mainly related to: the insourcing of
personnel from Stellantis (primarily from Custom Operations, HR, and Accounting Services), to the acquisition of the full and sole ownership of
the former Nikola Iveco Europe joint venture in Germany, and to the sale of one dealer of property in France.

Excluding the changes in the scope of operations, the workforce increase compared to year-end 2022 was attributable mainly to the hiring of
approximately 200 white collar employees in the research and development areas to strengthen the pool of skills and competencies related to
project activities focused on adopting innovative automotive technologies strengthening the pool of skills and competencies aiming for to
advance technology transitions, particularly in the Light Commercial Vehicles, Bus, Electrification, Digital, and Electronics product lines.
Approximately 20 white collar employees were also hired in the Financial Services business unit to support GATE (Green & Advanced Transport
Ecosystem) a new Iveco Group company managing long-term, all-inclusive rental models for electric trucks and vans, which will be a powerful
component of the industry’s energy transition.

The increase in Europe in temporary and permanent workers in manufacturing due to growing production volumes driven by market demand,
mainly in the Bus, Defence, Powertrain, and Truck business units, was offset by the manufacturing workforce reductions in Latin America.

For 2024, Iveco Group does not expect any significant change in its overall workforce compared to 2023.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
At global level more than 90% of the Iveco Group employees are covered by collective labour agreements (‘CLASs”) stipulated either by an Iveco
Group subsidiary or by the employer association for the specific industry which the Iveco Group subsidiary belongs to.

In Italy, approximately 13,950 Iveco Group employees, except Managers, are covered by the CLA that was renewed in March 2023 and will be in
force until 31 December 2024 for the economic part and until 31 December 2026 for the regulatory one.

The approximately 350 Iveco Group Managers are covered by the CLA that, renewed in April 2023, continues to 31 December 2026.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The Group is a leading global capital goods company engaged in the design, production, marketing, sale, servicing, and financing of trucks,
commercial vehicles, buses and specialty vehicles for firefighting, defense and civil protection, as well as combustion engines, alternative
propulsion systems, transmissions and axles for those vehicles and engines and alternative propulsion systems for agricultural and construction
equipment and for marine and power generation applications. The Group has manufacturing, commercial and financial services companies
located in 36 countries.

The Group’s segments consist of: (i) Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, (i) Powertrain, and (iii) Financial Services. The Group’s Industrial
Activities include the Group’s entire enterprise without Financial Services (i.e., Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, Powertrain, and Iveco Group
N.V., including the treasury operations). The Group generates revenues and cash flows principally from the sale of vehicles to dealers and
distributors and engines to third parties. Financial Services provides a range of financial products and services focused on financing the sale and
lease of vehicles to the Group’s dealers and their customers.

Revenues of Industrial Activities are presented net of discounts, allowances, settlement discounts and rebates, as well as costs for sales incentive
programs, determined on the basis of historical costs, country by country, and charged against profit for the period in which the corresponding
sales are recognised. The Group’s sales incentive programs may include the granting of retail financing at discounts to market interest rates. The
corresponding cost to Industrial Activities is recognised at the time of the initial sale and the revenues of Financial Services are recognised on a
pro rata basis in order to match the cost of funding.

The results presented in this report are prepared in accordance with EU-IFRS and use the euro as the presentation currency.

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (OR “NON-EU-IFRS FINANCIAL MEASURES”)

Iveco Group monitors its operations through the use of several non-EU-IFRS financial measures. Iveco Group's management believes that these
non-EU-IFRS financial measures provide useful and relevant information regarding its operating results and enhance the readers' ability to assess
Iveco Group's financial performance and financial position. Management uses these non-EU-IFRS measures to identify operational trends, as well
as make decisions regarding future spending, resource allocations and other operational decisions as they provide additional transparency with
respect to our core operations. These non-EU-IFRS financial measures have no standardized meaning under EU-IFRS and are unlikely to be
comparable to other similarly titled measures used by other companies and are not intended to be substitutes for measures of financial
performance and financial position as prepared in accordance with EU-IFRS.

As of 31 December 2023, Iveco Group's non-IFRS financial measures are defined as follows:

= Adjusted EBIT: is defined as EBIT before restructuring costs and non-recurring items. In particular, non-recurring items are specifically
disclosed items that management considers rare or discrete events that are infrequent in nature and not reflective of on-going operational
activities.

= Adjusted Net Income/(Loss): is defined as profit/(loss) for the period, less restructuring costs and non-recurring items, after tax.

= Adjusted Diluted EPS: is computed by dividing Adjusted Net Income (Loss) attributable to Iveco Group N.V. by a weighted-average number of
Common Shares outstanding during the period that takes into consideration potential Common Shares outstanding deriving from the Iveco
Group share-based payment awards, when inclusion is not anti-dilutive. When Iveco Group provides guidance for adjusted diluted EPS, the
Group does not provide guidance on an earnings per share basis because the EU-IFRS measure will include potentially significant items that
have not yet occurred and are difficult to predict with reasonable certainty prior to year-end.

= Adjusted Income Taxes: is defined as income taxes less the tax effect of restructuring expenses and non-recurring items, and non-recurring
tax charges or benefits.

= Adjusted Effective Tax Rate (Adjusted ETR): is computed by dividing a) adjusted income taxes by b) profit (loss) before income taxes, less
restructuring expenses and non-recurring items.

= Net Cash (Debt) and Net Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities: Net Cash (Debt) is defined as total Debt plus Derivative liabilities, net of Cash
and cash equivalents, Derivative assets and other current financial assets (primarily current securities, short-term deposits and investments
towards high-credit rating counterparties) and financial receivables from CNH Industrial deriving from financing activities and sale of trade
receivables. Iveco Group provides the reconciliation of Net Cash (Debt) to Total (Debt), which is the most directly comparable EU-IFRS
financial measure included in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. Due to different sources of cash flows used for the
repayment of the debt between Industrial Activities and Financial Services (by cash from operations for Industrial Activities and by collection
of financing receivables for Financial Services), management separately evaluates the cash flow performance of Industrial Activities using Net
Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities.

= Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities (or Industrial Free Cash Flow): refers to Industrial Activities, only, and is computed as consolidated
cash flow from operating activities less: cash flow from operating activities of Financial Services; investments of Industrial Activities in
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets; as well as other changes and intersegment eliminations.

= Available Liquidity: is defined as cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash, undrawn medium-term unsecured committed facilities,
other current financial assets (primarily current securities, short-term deposits and investments towards high-credit rating counterparties), and
financial receivables from CNH Industrial deriving from financing activities and sale of trade receivables.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The operations, and key financial measures and financial analysis, differ significantly for manufacturing and distribution businesses and Financial

Services business; therefore, for a better understanding of its operations and financial results, the Company presents the following tables
providing the consolidated income statements of Iveco Group split between Industrial Activities and Financial Services. Industrial Activities
represents the activities carried out by Commercial and Specialty Vehicles and Powertrain segments, as well as the holding company Iveco
Group N.V.

Consolidated income statement by activity for the year 2023 compared to 2022

2023 2022
Industrial ~ Financial Industrial  Financial

(€ million) Activities”  Services  Eliminations Consolidated  Activities”  Services  Eliminations Consolidated
Net Revenues 15,877 494 (158) @ 16,213 14,165 281 (89) @ 14,357
Cost of sales 13,376 295 (158) @ 13,513 12,339 139 (89) @ 12,389
Selling, general and
administrative costs 940 86 — 1,026 871 65 — 936
Research and
development costs 626 — — 626 473 — — 473
Result from investments (5) 19 — 14 (20) 15 — (5)
Gains/(losses) on the
disposal of investments — — — — 33 — — 33
Restructuring costs 35 — — 35 15 — — 15
Other income/(expenses) (194) 4 — (190) (104) (2) — (106)
EBIT 701 136 — 837 376 90 — 466
Financial income/
(expenses) (450) — — (450) (206) — — (206)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR
BEFORE TAXES 251 136 — 387 170 90 — 260
Income tax (expense)
benefit (116) (37) - (183) (81) (20) - (101)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR
THE PERIOD 135 99 — 234 89 70 — 159

(1) Industrial Activities represents the enterprise without Financial Services. Industrial Activities includes Commercial and Specialty Vehicles and Powertrain segments, as well as the
holding company Iveco Group N.V.

(2) Elimination of Financial Services’ interest income earned from Industrial Activities.

(3) Elimination of Industrial Activities’ interest expense to Financial Services.

Net Revenues
Net revenues were €16,213 million in 2023, an increase of 12.9% compared to 2022. Net revenues of Industrial Activities were €15,877 million in
2023, an increase of 12.1% compared to 2022, mainly due to positive price realization and higher volumes and mix.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales was €13,513 million in 2023 compared to €12,389 million in 2022. As a percentage of net revenues, cost of sales of Industrial
Activities was 84.2% in 2023 (87.1% in 2022). In 2022, cost of sales included €31 million related to the impairment of certain assets in connection
with Group operations in Russia and Ukraine.

Selling, general and administrative costs
Selling, general and administrative costs amounted to €1,026 million in 2023 (6.3% of net revenues), up €90 million compared to 2022 (6.5% of
net revenues), primarily due to emerging corporate costs.

Research and development costs

In 2023, R&D costs were €626 million (compared to €473 million in 2022) and included all R&D costs not recognised as assets in the year
amounting to €399 million (€244 million in 2022), and the amortization of capitalized development cost of €227 million (€214 million in 2022). No
impairment losses were recorded in 2023 (€15 million in 2022).During 2023, the Group capitalised new expenditures for development costs for
€489 million (€390 million in 2022). The costs in both periods were primarily attributable to spending on engine development associated with
emission requirements and continued investment in new products.
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Result from investments
Result from investments was a gain of €14 million in 2023 and a loss of €5 million in 2022.

Gains/(losses) on the disposal of investments
Gains/(losses) on the disposal of investments was nil in 2023. In 2022, this item was a gain of €33 million and included €36 million gain on the
final step of Chinese joint ventures' restructuring.

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs were €35 million and €15 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Other income/(expenses)

Other expenses were €190 million in 2023 compared to €106 million in 2022. In both periods, this item primarily included legal costs, indirect
taxes, and the separation costs related to the spin-off of the Iveco Group business. In 2023, this item also includes the negative impact of
€43 million from the acquisition of full ownership of Nikola Iveco Europe GmbH (refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements Note 14
"Investments and other non-current financial assets", for details), now renamed EVCO GmbH. In 2022, this item also included the negative
impact of €14 million deriving from the first-time adoption of hyperinflation accounting in Tiirkiye, in accordance with IAS 29 - Financial reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies, effective from 1 January 2022, and the €52 million gain from the disposal of certain fixed assets in Australia.

Financial income/(expenses)
Net financial expenses were €450 million in 2023 (€206 million in 2022). The increase was mainly a consequence of higher interest rates, as well
as the impact of the Argentine peso devaluation and of hyperinflation accounting in Argentina.

Income tax (expense) benefit

(€ million, except percentages) 2023 2022
Profit (loss)/before taxes 387 260
Income tax (expense) benefit (153) (101)
Effective tax rate 39.5 % 38.8 %

In 2023, income tax expenses were €153 million, based on a profit before taxes of €387 million, compared to tax expenses of €101 million in
2022, based on a profit before taxes of €260 million. The effective tax rates for 2023 and 2022 were 39.5% and 38.8%, respectively. Excluding
the negative impact of €43 million (€27 million after tax) from the acquisition of the full ownership Nikola Iveco Europe GmbH, the €41 million
valuation allowance on Argentinian deferred tax assets, the pre-tax and corresponding tax impact of cost related to certain claims arising from the
EU Commission's 2016 antitrust settlement decision and FPT emissions investigation closure, the positive impact from the release of provisions
related to the Russia and Ukraine conflict, restructuring costs, separation costs, as well as other minor items, the effective tax rate was 28% in
2023. Excluding the gain on the final step of Chinese joint ventures’ restructuring, the pre-tax and corresponding tax impacts related to the costs
for the impairment of certain assets in connection with operations in Russia and Ukraine, the impact from the first-time adoption of the
hyperinflationary accounting in Tirkiye, the gain related to the disposal of certain assets in Australia, the impairment related to development costs
and other assets, primarily related to the bus business, as a consequence of the acceleration in emission related technological transition, the
spin-off costs, restructuring costs, impairment losses of certain assets held for sale, the valuation allowance on Russian deferred tax assets, as
well as other minor items, the effective tax rate was 30% in 2022.

Profit/(loss)
Net profit was €234 million in 2023, an increase of €75 million compared to 2022, due to the positive performance.
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Reconciliation of Profit/(Loss) to Adjusted net profit (loss)
The following tables summarize the reconciliation of Adjusted net profit (loss), a non-IFRS financial measure, to Profit/(loss), the most
comparable EU-IFRS financial measure, for 2023 and 2022.

(€ million) 2023 2022
Profit/(loss) 234 159
Adjustments impacting Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense) benefit (a) 103 61
Adjustments impacting Income tax (expense) benefit (b) 15 5
Adjusted net Profit/(loss) 352 225
Adjusted net Profit/(loss) attributable to Iveco Group N.V. 336 213
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted (million) 273 272
Adjusted diluted EPS (€) 1.23 0.78
Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense) benefit 387 260
Adjustments impacting Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense) benefit (a) 103 61
Adjusted Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense) benefit (A) 490 321
Income tax (expense) benefit (153) (101)
Adjustments impacting income tax (expense) benefit (b) 15 5
Adjusted Income tax (expense) benefit (B) (138) (96)
Adjusted Effective Tax Rate (Adjusted ETR) (C=A/B) 28 % 30 %

a) Adjustments impacting Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense) benefit

Restructuring costs 35 15
Spin-off costs 12 30
Impacts from Russia and Ukraine conflict (8) 44
Acquisition of full ownership of Nikola Iveco Europe GmbH 43 —
Costs related to certain claims arising from the EU Commission’s 2016 antitrust settlement and
FPT emissions investigation closure 19 —
Asset disposal in Australia — (52)
Gain on the final step of Chinese joint ventures' restructuring — (36)
Impairment of certain R&D costs and other assets due to technological transition — 40
Impairment of certain assets held for sale — 4
First-time adoption of hyperinflationary accounting in Turkiye — 14
Other 2 2
Total 103 61

b) Adjustments impacting income tax (expense) benefit

Tax effect of adjustments impacting Profit/(loss) before income tax (expense) benefit (26) 1
Valuation allowance on Argentinian deferred tax assets 41 —
Valuation allowance on Russian deferred tax assets — 4
Total 15 5
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Industrial Activities and Business Segments

The following tables show total Net Revenues and Adjusted EBIT of Industrial Activities by segment. Also is included a discussion of the results
of Industrial Activities and each of its business segments.

Net revenues by segment

(€ million, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change
Net Revenues:

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles 13,778 12,100 13.9
Powertrain 4,258 3,960 75
Eliminations and other (2,159) (1,895) —
Total Net revenues of Industrial Activities 15,877 14,165 121
Financial Services 494 281 75.8
Eliminations and other (158) (89) —
Total Net revenues 16,213 14,357 12.9

Adjusted EBIT by segment
2023 Adj. EBIT 2022 Adj. EBIT

(€ million, except percentages) 2023 2022 Change Margin Margin
Adjusted EBIT:

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles 773 415 358 56 % 34 %
Powertrain 252 187 65 59 % 47 %
Unallocated items, eliminations and other (207) (178) (29) — % — %
Adjusted EBIT of Industrial Activities 818 424 394 5.2 % 3.0%
Financial Services 122 103 19 24.7 % 36.7 %
Eliminations and Other — — — —% —%
Total Adjusted EBIT 940 527 413 5.8 % 3.7%

Net revenues of Industrial Activities were €15,877 million in 2023, a 12.1% increase compared to the prior year, mainly due to positive price
realisation and higher volumes and mix.

Adjusted EBIT of Industrial Activities was €818 million, compared to €424 million in 2022, representing an Adjusted EBIT margin of 5.2%, up
220 basis points ("bps") compared to 2022. The increase was primarily attributable to positive price realisation throughout the year.
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Reconciliation of EBIT to Adjusted EBIT
The following tables summarize the reconciliation of Adjusted EBIT, a non-EU-IFRS financial measure, to EBIT, the most comparable EU-IFRS
financial measure, for 2023 and 2022.

2023
Unallocated
Commercial and items, Total
Specialty eliminations and Industrial Financial

(€ million) Vehicles  Powertrain other Activities Services  Eliminations Total
EBIT 749 241 (289) 701 136 — 837
Adjustments
Restructuring costs 24 11 — 35 — — 35
Other discrete items!" — — 82 82 (14) — 68
Adjusted EBIT 773 252 (207) 818 122 — 940

(1) This item mainly includes €43 million from the acquisition of full ownership of Nikola Iveco Europe GmbH (now renamed EVCO GmbH), €19 million costs related to certain claims
arising from the EU Commission’s 2016 antitrust settlement decision and FPT emissions investigation closure, as well as €8 million positive impact from the release of provisions
related to the Russia and Ukraine conflict, and €12 million separation costs related to the spin-off of the Iveco Group business.

2022
Unallocated
Commercial and items, Total
Specialty eliminations and Industrial Financial

(€ million) Vehicles  Powertrain other Activities Services  Eliminations Total
EBIT 373 186 (183) 376 90 — 466
Adjustments
Restructuring costs 7 1 7 15 — — 15
Other discrete items”) 35 — ) 33 13 — 46
Adjusted EBIT 415 187 (178) 424 103 — 527

(1) This item primarily included €44 million charge in connection with our Russian and Ukrainian operations, primarily due to the impairment of certain assets, €14 million related to the
first-time adoption of hyperinflationary accounting in Tiirkiye, €30 million spin-off costs, €40 million loss for the impairment of certain development costs and other assets, primarily
related to the bus business, as a consequence of the acceleration in emission-related technological transition, €4 million related to the impairment of certain assets held for sale,
€36 million gain on the final step of Chinese joint ventures’ restructuring, and €52 million gain from the disposal of certain fixed assets in Australia.
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Industrial Activities Performance

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles

Net revenues
The following table shows Commercial and Specialty Vehicles net revenues by geographic region in 2023 compared to 2022:

(€ million, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change
Europe 10,956 9,087 20.6
South America 1,214 1,625 -25.3
North America 131 122 74
Rest of World 1,477 1,266 16.7
Total 13,778 12,100 13.9

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles net revenues were €13,778 million in 2023, up 13.9% compared to 2022, primarily driven by positive price
realisation and higher volumes in truck and bus in Europe.

In 2023, the European truck market (GVW =3.5 tons), excluding U.K. and Ireland, increased 14% compared to 2022. The light-duty trucks
("LCV") market increased 13%, and the medium and heavy trucks ("M&H") market increased by 16%. In South America, new truck registrations
(GVW 23.5 tons) decreased 15% compared to 2022, with a decrease of 17% in Brazil and almost flat in Argentina. In Rest of World, new truck
registrations increased 21% compared with 2022. Bus registrations increased 20% in Europe and 25% in South America.

Iveco Group’s estimated market share in the European truck market (GVW =3.5 tons), excluding U.K. and Ireland, was 11.8%, down 0.7
percentage points ("p.p.") compared with 2022. The European market share decreased 1.4 p.p. to 13.7% in LCV and increased 0.7 p.p. to 8.7%
in M&H segment. In South America, in 2023, Iveco Group’s market share increased 0.7 p.p. to 12.6%.

During 2023, Commercial and Specialty Vehicles delivered approximately 177,800 vehicles (including buses and specialty vehicles), representing
a 1% increase from 2022. Volumes were 1% lower in LCV and 2% higher in M&H truck segments. Commercial and Specialty Vehicles deliveries
increased 8% in Europe and 2% in Rest of World, and decreased 34% in South America.

Order intake is continuing to shorten to healthier levels and to accommodate phase-in of new Model Year 2024, with 23 weeks of production
already sold for Light Commercial Vehicles ("LCV") and approximately 20 weeks for both medium and heavy-duty trucks ("M&H"). Worldwide
truck book-to-bill was 0.76 at 31 December 2023.

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles deliveries

(units in thousands) 2023 2022 % Change
France 24.1 24.6 2.0
Germany & Switzerland 20.3 18.7 8.6
UK. 12.1 10.1 19.8
Italy 33.2 31.9 41
Iberia (Spain & Portugal) 17.0 13.2 28.8
Rest of Europe 33.0 30.5 8.2
Europe 139.7 129.0 8.3
South America 17.4 26.5 -34.3
Rest of World 20.7 20.4 1.5
Total Sales 177.8 175.9 1.1

Commercial and Specialty Vehicles Deliveries— by product:

(units in thousands) 2023 2022 % Change
Medium & Heavy 57.2 56.1 2.0
Light 103.7 104.6 0.9
Buses 12.4 11.6 6.9
Specialty vehicles") 45 36 25.0
Total 177.8 175.9 11

(*) Defense and firefighting vehicles
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Adjusted EBIT
Adjusted EBIT was €773 million in 2023, a €358 million increase compared to 2022, driven by positive price realisation, partially offset by higher
product costs. The Adjusted EBIT margin was 5.6% in 2023 (3.4% in 2022).

Powertrain

Net revenues
Powertrain net revenues were €4,258 million in 2023, up 7.5% compared to 2022. The increase was mainly due to positive price realisation and
better mix. Sales to external customers accounted for 52% of total net revenues (55% in 2022).

During 2023, Powertrain sold approximately 460,700 engines, a decrease of 3% compared to 2022. In terms of customers, 40% of engines were
supplied to Commercial and Specialty Vehicles, and 60% to external customers. Additionally, Powertrain delivered approximately 64,800
transmissions, in line with 2022, and approximately 233,300 axles (of which 2,100 E-axles and 3,300 batteries), an increase of 15% compared to
2022.

Adjusted EBIT
Adjusted EBIT was €252 million in 2023, up €65 million compared to 2022, mainly driven by positive price realisation more than offsetting
increased raw material and energy costs. Adjusted EBIT margin was 5.9% in 2023 (4.7% in 2022).

Financial Services Performance

(€ million, except percentages) 2023 2022 Change
Net revenues 494 281 76%
Adjusted EBIT 122 103 19
Net revenues

Financial Services reported net revenues of €494 million in 2023, an increase of €213 million compared to 2022, mainly due to higher base rates
and higher receivables portfolio.

Adjusted EBIT
Adjusted EBIT was €122 million in 2023, a €19 million increase compared to 2022, primarily due to a higher receivables portfolio and better
collection performances on managed receivables.

In 2023, retail loan originations (including unconsolidated joint ventures) were €1,641 million, €337 million higher compared to 2022.

The Iveco Group managed portfolio (including unconsolidated joint ventures) was €8,341 million as of 31 December 2023 (of which retail was
36% and wholesale 64%), up €1,534 million compared to 31 December 2022.

At 31 December 2023, the receivable balance greater than 30 days past-due as a percentage of on-book portfolio was 2.0% (2.4% as of
31 December 2022).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BY ACTIVITY

The operations, and key financial measures and financial analysis, differ significantly for manufacturing and distribution businesses and Financial
Services business; therefore, for a better understanding of the financial position of Iveco Group, and in particular of the net cash/debt position,
the Company presents the following tables providing the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group, split between Industrial
Activities and Financial Services. Specific comments on the net cash/debt position of Iveco Group split by Industrial Activities and Financial
Services are included in section "Liquidity and Capital Resources".

At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
Industrial Financial Industrial Financial
(€ million) Activities'” Services  Eliminations Consolidated  Activities'” Services  Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Intangible assets 1,824 17 — 1,841 1,496 15 — 1,511
Property, plant and equipment 3,184 2 — 3,186 3,096 1 — 3,097
Investments and other non-current
financial assets: 49 161 — 210 84 153 — 237
Investments accounted for
using the equity method 18 148 - 166 10 140 - 150
Equity investments measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income 15 — — 15 62 — — 62
Other investments and financial
assets 16 13 — 29 12 13 — 25
Leased assets 16 59 — 75 19 51 — 70
Deferred tax assets 588 7 (1) (© 658 622 78 - 700
Total Non-current assets 5,661 310 (1) 5,970 5,317 298 — 5,615
Inventories 2,864 4 — 2,868 2,838 — — 2,838
Trade receivables 317 33 (24) 3 326 334 18 (1) @ 341
Receivables from financing 3 3
activities 1,041 6,183 (1,422) 5,802 772 4,758 (1,152) 4,378
Current tax receivables 167 4 (29 4 142 120 5 (30) 4 95
Other current receivables and (2 @
financial assets 245 140 (22) 363 267 92 (20) 339
Prepaid expenses and other
assets 109 21 — 130 58 10 — 68
Derivative assets 30 1 4) (9 27 51 2 (3) 50
Cash and cash equivalents 2,447 251 — 2,698 2,100 188 — 2,288
Total Current assets 7,220 6,637 (1,501) 12,356 6,540 5,073 (1,216) 10,397
Assets held for sale 59 — — 59 1 — — 1
TOTAL ASSETS 12,940 6,947 (1,502) 18,385 11,858 5,371 (1,216) 16,013
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Total Equity 1,548 842 — 2,390 1,623 768 — 2,391
Provisions: 2,265 115 — 2,380 2,000 108 — 2,108
Employee benefits 528 16 — 544 495 15 — 510
Other provisions 1,737 99 — 1,836 1,505 93 — 1,598
Debt: 1,624 5,898 (1,422) (3 6,100 1,173 4,412 (1,152) 3 4,433
Asset-backed financing — 3,860 — 3,860 — 3,149 — 3,149
Other debt 1,624 2,038 (1,422) (3 2,240 1,173 1,263 (1,152) 3 1,284
Derivative liabilities 42 3 4) 0 41 47 2 (3) 46
Trade payables 3918 34 (25 (3 3,927 3,660 32 (2 @ 3,690
Tax liabilities 122 27 (29 4 120 113 22 (28) (4 107
Deferred tax liabilities 29 — (1) (6 28 25 — — 25
Other current liabilities 3,333 28 (1) @ 3,340 3217 27 (31 @ 3213
Liabilities held for sale 59 — — 59 — — — —
Total Liabilities 11,392 6,105 (1,502) 15,995 10,235 4,603 (1,216) 13,622
TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES 12,940 6,947 (1,502) 18,385 11,858 5,371 (1,216) 16,013

(1) Industrial Activities represents the enterprise without Financial Services. Industrial Activities includes Commercial and Specialty Vehicles and Powertrain segments, as well as the
holding company Iveco Group N.V.
(2) This item includes the elimination of intercompany activity between Industrial Activities and Financial Services.
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(3) This item includes the elimination of receivables/payables between Industrial Activities and Financial Services.

(4) This item includes the elimination of tax receivables/payables between Industrial Activities and Financial Services and reclassifications needed for appropriate consolidated
presentation.

(5) This item includes the elimination of derivative assets/liabilities between Industrial Activities and Financial Services.

(6) This item includes the reclassification of deferred tax assets/liabilities in the same jurisdiction and reclassifications needed for appropriate consolidated presentation.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The following discussion of liquidity and capital resources primarily focuses on the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows and the Group’s

consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s operations are capital intensive and subject to seasonal variations in financing
requirements for dealer receivables and dealer and company inventories. Whenever necessary, funds from operating activities are supplemented
from external sources. Iveco Group, focusing on cash preservation and leveraging its good access to funding, continues to maintain solid
financial strength and liquidity. See sections "Risk Factors" and "Industry Overview", for additional information concerning risks related to the
Group’s business, strategy and operations.

Cash Flow Analysis
The following table presents the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities by activity for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.
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2023 2022

Industrial Financial Industrial Financial
(€ million) Activities Services  Eliminations Consolidated Activities ™ Services Eliminations Consolidated

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,100 188 - 2,288 726 17 - 897

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED
IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit/(loss) 135 99 — 234 89 70 — 159

Amortization and depreciation

(excluding vehicles sold under

buy-back commitments and

operating leases) 596 3 — 599 558 2 — 560

(Gains)/losses on disposal of
non-current assets (excluding
vehicles sold under buy-back
commitments) (10) — — (10) (96) — — (96)

Other non-cash items 5 (31) — (26) 7 11 — 18
Dividends received 55 — 41 @ 14 75 — 7 @ 4
Change in provisions 264 6 — 270 264 13 — 217

Change in deferred income
taxes 23 7 - 30 ©) @ - (11)

Change in items due to buy-
back commitments® (29) @) — (33) 5 13 — 18

Change in operating lease
items® (5) (26) — (31) — (29) — (29)

Change in working capital 353 (64) — 289 505 2 — 507
TOTAL 1,387 (10) (41) 1,336 1,398 80 (1) 1,407

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED
IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Investments in:

Property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets

(excluding vehicles sold under

buy-back commitments and

operating leases) (967) (3) — (970) (775) 2) — (777)

Consolidated subsidiaries and 3 3
other equity investments (27) — 6 (21) (42) — 12 (30)

Proceeds from the sale of non-

current assets (excluding

vehicles sold under buy-back

commitments) 17 — — 17 75 — — 75

Change in receivables from
financing activities (20) (1,384) — (1,404) 50 (1,370) — (1,320)

Change in other current
financial assets (19) — — (19) 29 — — 29

Other changes (159) 332 — 173 237 446 — 683
TOTAL (1,175) (1,055) 6 (2,224) (426) (926) 12 (1,340)

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED
IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in debt and derivative
assets/liabilities 381 1,163 — 1,544 424 922 — 1,346

Capital increase — 6 6) — — 12 (12) 3 —
Dividends paid - (41) 41 (4 — (1) (71) 7 (4 (1)

Purchase of treasury shares (55) — — (55) — — — _
TOTAL 326 1,128 35 1,489 423 863 59 1,345

Translation exchange
differences (191) — - (191) (21) - - (1)

TOTAL CHANGE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 347 63 - 410 1,374 17 - 1,391

CASH AND CASH

TRUIVALENTS ATEND OF 2,447 251 — 2,698 2,100 188 — 2,288

(a) Cash generated from the sale of vehicles under buy-back commitments, net of amounts included in Profit/{loss), is recognised under operating activities in a single line item, which
includes changes in working capital, capital expenditure, depreciation and impairment losses.
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(b) Cash from operating lease is recognised under operating activities in a single line item, which includes capital expenditure, depreciation, write-downs and changes in inventory.

(1) Industrial Activities represents the enterprise without Financial Services. Industrial Activities includes Commercial and Specialty Vehicles and Powertrain segments as well as the
holding company Iveco Group N.V.

(2) This item includes the elimination of dividend from Financial Services to Industrial Activities.

(3) This item includes the elimination of paid capital from Industrial Activities to Financial Services.

(4)This item includes the elimination of dividends from Financial Services to Industrial Activities, which are included in Industrial Activities net cash provided by operating activities.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of €2,698 million, an increase of €410 million, or 17.9%, from €2,288 million at
31 December 2022. Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2023 included €104 million (€83 million at 31 December 2022) of restricted cash
that mainly consists in Central Bank deposits established for regulatory purposes by an affiliate benefiting from a banking license. At 31
December 2023, undrawn medium-term unsecured committed facilities were €2,000 million (€2,000 million at 31 December 2022) and other
current financial assets were €43 million at 31 December 2023 (€26 million at 31 December 2022).

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate of cash and cash equivalents, undrawn medium-term unsecured committed facilities and other current
financial assets, which the Group considers to constitute the Group’s principal liquid assets (or “Available liquidity”, a non-EU-IFRS financial
measure as defined in the section "Alternative performance measures (or “non-EU-IFRS financial measures”)" above), totalled €4,748 million at
31 December 2023 (€4,364 million at 31 December 2022). At 31 December 2023 this amount also included €7 million financial receivables
(€50 million at 31 December 2022) from CNH Industrial deriving from financing activities and the sale of trade receivables.

A reconciliation of Iveco Group's consolidated Cash and cash equivalents to Available liquidity is provided as follows:

(€ million) At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
Total Cash and cash equivalents 2,698 2,288
Undrawn committed facilities 2,000 2,000
Other current financial assets'” 43 26
Financial receivables from CNH Industrial® 7 50
Total Available liquidity 4,748 4,364

(1) This item includes short-term deposits and investments towards high-credit rating counterparties.
(2) This item includes financial receivables from CNH Industrial deriving from financing activities and sale of trade receivables.

Net Cash from Operating Activities
Cash provided by operating activities in 2023 totalled €1,336 million and primarily comprised the following elements:

= €234 million in profit;

= plus €599 million in non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization (net of commercial vehicles sold under buy-back commitments and
operating leases);

= change in working capital which generated €289 million;

plus €270 million change in provisions;

plus €30 million change in deferred income taxes;

minus €33 million for changes in items due to buy-back commitments;

= minus €31 million for changes in operating lease items;

= minus €26 million for other non-cash items;

= minus €10 million gains on disposal of non-current assets (excluding vehicles sold under buy-back commitments).

In 2022, cash generated by operating activities during the year was €1,407 million as a result of cash generated from income-related inflows
(calculated as profit plus amortization and depreciation, dividends, changes in provisions and deferred taxes, various items related to sales with
buy-back commitments and operating leases, net of gains/losses on disposals and other non-cash items) for a total amount of €300 million, and
of €507 million increase in cash resulting from changes in working capital.

Net Cash from Investing Activities
In 2023, cash used by investing activities was €2,224 million. The negative flows were primarily generated by:

= investments in tangible and intangible assets that used €970 million in cash, including €489 million in capitalized development costs.
Investments in tangible and intangible assets are net of investments in commercial vehicles for the Group’s long-term rental operations and of
investments relating to vehicles sold under buy-back commitments, which are reflected in cash flows relating to operating activities;

= the change in receivables from financing activities which used €1,404 million in cash primarily due to the wholesale portfolio, partially offset by

= cash generated by “Other changes” of €173 million.
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In 2022, cash used in investing activities totalled €1,340 million. Expenditures on tangible and intangible assets (including €390 million in
capitalized development costs) totalled €777 million. Change in receivables from financing activities used €1,320 million in cash, primarily due to
changes in the wholesale portfolio.

The following table summarises our investments in tangible assets (excluding assets sold with buy-back commitments and assets leased on
operating leases) by segment and investments in intangible assets for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

Years ended 31 December

(€ million) 2023 2022
Commercial and Specialty Vehicles 281 198
Powertrain 124 121
Total Industrial Activities investments in tangible assets 405 319
Industrial Activities investments in intangible assets 562 456
Total Industrial Activities capital expenditures 967 775
Financial Services investments in tangible assets — —
Financial Services investments in intangible assets 3 2
Total Capital expenditures 970 77

The Group incurred these capital expenditures in the regions in which the Group operates and principally related to initiatives to introduce new
products, enhance manufacturing efficiency and increase capacity, and for maintenance and engineering.

Net Cash from Financing Activities

In 2023, cash generated by financing activities totalled €1,489 million, primarily due to an increase in asset-backed financing and in bank debt
deriving from the higher portfolio of Financial Services, and to the signing of €450 million loan with the European Investment Bank as described in
the following section Capital Resources.

In 2022, cash generated by financing activities totalled €1,345 million, primarily due to the drawing of the €500 million term loans and to the
increase of third party debt on Financial Services mainly related to the financing of the receivable portfolio.

Capital Resources
The cash flows, funding requirements and liquidity of lveco Group are managed on a standard and centralized basis, in order to optimize the
efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s management of capital resources.

The Group’s subsidiaries participate in a company-wide cash management system, which the Group operates in a number of jurisdictions. Under
this system, the cash balances of the Group’s subsidiaries are aggregated at the end of each business day to central pooling accounts. The
centralized treasury management offers financial and systems expertise in managing these accounts, as well as providing related services and
consulting to the Group’s business segments.

The Group’s policy is to keep a high degree of flexibility with its funding and investment options in order to maintain the Group’s desired level of
liquidity to improve the Company’s capital structure over time.

A summary of the Group’s strategy is set forth below:

= Industrial Activities usually sells its receivables to Financial Services and relies on internal cash flows including managing working capital to
fund its near-term financing requirements. The Group will also supplement its short-term financing by drawing on existing or new facilities with
banks.

= To the extent funding needs of Industrial Activities are determined to be of a longer-term nature, the Group will access public debt markets as
well as private investors and banks, as appropriate, to refinance borrowings and replenish the Group’s liquidity.

= Financial Services’ funding strategy is to maintain a sufficient level of liquidity and flexible access to a wide variety of financial instruments.
While the Company expects factoring and securitization to continue to represent a material portion of the Group’s capital structure and
intersegment borrowings to remain a marginal source of funding, the Group will continue to diversify its funding sources including committed
asset-backed facilities, unsecured notes, bank facilities and commercial paper programs.

On a global level, the Group will continue to evaluate alternatives to ensure that Financial Services has access to capital on favourable terms to
support its business, including agreements with global or regional partners, new funding arrangements or a combination of the foregoing.

Financial Services, leveraging on its specific expertise, grants support to CNH Industrial financial services, by providing business process
services to their European activities, and receiving a fee for the services rendered.

As of 31 December 2023, the credit rating assigned by Fitch Ratings to Iveco Group N.V. is a Long-Term Issuer Default Rating (IDR) of ‘BBB-'.
The outlook is stable.
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The Group believes that the current investment grade rating allows it to access funding at better rates. A credit rating is not a recommendation to
buy, sell or hold securities. Ratings may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organisation, and each rating
should be evaluated independently of any other rating. A deterioration in our ratings could impair our ability to obtain debt financing and would
increase the cost of such financing. Ratings are influenced by a number of factors, including, among others: financial leverage on an absolute
basis or relative to peers, the composition of the balance sheet and/or capital structure, material changes in earnings trends and volatility, ability
to dividend monies from subsidiaries and our competitive position. Material deterioration in any single, or a combination, of these factors could
result in a downgrade of our rating, thus increasing the cost, and limiting the availability, of financing.

Consolidated Debt

The Group’s consolidated Debt at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as detailed in the following table:

At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022

Industrial Financial Industrial Financial

(€ million) Consolidated Activities Services  Consolidated Activities Services
Total Debt 6,100 1,624 5,898 4,433 1,173 4,412

Iveco Group believes that Net Cash (Debt), a non-EU-IFRS financial measure as defined in the section "Alternative performance measures (or
“Non-EU-IFRS financial measures”)" above, is a useful analytical metric for measuring the Group’s effective borrowing requirements. The Group
provides a separate analysis of Net Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities and Net Cash (Debt) of Financial Services to reflect the different cash flow
management practices in the two activities. Industrial Activities reflects the consolidation of all majority-owned subsidiaries, except for Financial
Services. Financial Services reflects the consolidation of the Financial Services’ legal entities.

The calculation of Net Cash (Debt) at 31 December 2023 and 2022, and the reconciliation of Total (Debt), the EU-IFRS financial measure that
the Group believes to be most directly comparable, to Net Cash (Debt), are shown below:

At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022

Industrial ~Financial Industrial ~Financial
(€ million) Consolidated  Activities Services Consolidated  Activities Services
Third party (debt) (5,768) (1191) (4,577 (4,156) (739)  (3417)
Intersegment notes (payable)” — (431) (991) — (432) (720)
(Debt) payable to CNH Industrial ? (332) 0) (330) (217) @) (275)
Total (Debt) (6,100) (1,624)  (5,898) (4,433) (1173)  (4,412)
Cash and cash equivalents 2,698 2,447 251 2,288 2,100 188
Intersegment financial receivables'”) — 991 431 — 720 432
Financial receivables from CNH Industrial® 133 7 126 146 50 96
Other current financial assets” 43 43 — 26 26 —
Derivative assets® 27 30 1 50 51 2
Derivative (liabilities)® @1 (42) 3) (46) 47) )
Net Cash (Debt)® (3,240) 1,852 (5,092) (1,969) 1,727 (3,696)

(1) As a result of the role played by the central treasury, debt for Industrial Activities also includes funding raised by the central treasury on behalf of Financial Services (included under
Intersegment financial receivables). Intersegment financial receivables for Financial Services, on the other hand, represent loans or advances to Industrial Activities — for receivables
sold to Financial Services that do not meet the derecognition requirements — as well as cash deposited temporarily with the central treasury. Total Debt of Industrial Activities includes
Intersegment notes payable to Financial Services of €431 million and €432 million as of 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively. Total Debt of Financial Services includes
Intersegment notes payable to Industrial Activities of €991 million and €720 million as of 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(2) This item includes payables related to purchases of receivables or collections with settlement in the following days.

(3) This item includes receivables related to sales of receivables or collections with settlement in the following days.

(4) This item includes short-term deposits and investments towards high-credit rating counterparties.

(5) Derivative assets and Derivative liabilities include, respectively, the positive and negative fair values of derivative financial instruments.

(6) The net intersegment receivable/(payable) balance recorded by Financial Services relating to Industrial Activities was €-560 million and €-288 million as of 31 December 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Net Debt at 31 December 2023 increased by €1,271 million compared to 31 December 2022, mainly reflecting higher Financial Services' third-
party debt due to higher portfolio, partially offset by a Free Cash Flow generation from Industrial Activities of €412 million during 2023.

The following table shows the change in Net Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:
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Years ended 31 December

(€ million) 2023 2022
Net Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities at beginning of period 1,727 1,063
Adjusted EBIT of Industrial Activities 818 424
Depreciation and amortization 596 558
Depreciation of assets under operating leases and assets sold with buy-back commitments 234 221
Cash interest and taxes (226) (150)
Changes in provisions and similar" (388) (160)
Change in working capital 353 505
Operating cash flow of Industrial Activities 1,387 1,398
Investments in property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets? (967) (775)
Other changes (8) 67
Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities 412 690
Capital increases, dividends and share buy-backs (55) —
Currency translation differences and other (232) (26)
Change in Net Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities 125 664
Net Cash (Debt) of Industrial Activities at end of period 1,852 1,727

(1) Including other cash flow items related to operating lease and buy-back activities.
(2) Excluding assets sold under buy-back commitments and assets under operating leases.

Iveco Group believes that Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities, a non-EU-IFRS financial measure as defined in the section "Alternative
performance measures (or “Non-EU-IFRS financial measures”)" above, is a useful analytical metric for measuring the cash generation ability of
the Group’s Industrial Activities. In 2023, Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities was positive for €412 million, primarily due to strong business
performance, partially offset by higher than expected Argentine peso devaluation in December 2023.

The reconciliation of Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities to Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities, the EU-IFRS financial measure
that Iveco Group believes to be most directly comparable, for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, is shown below:

Years ended 31 December

(€ million) 2023 2022
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities 1,336 1,407
Less: Cash flows from Operating Activities of Financial Services net of eliminations 51 (9)
Operating cash flow of Industrial Activities 1,387 1,398
Investments in property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets of Industrial Activities (967) (775)
Other changes'” ®) 67
Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities 412 690

(1) This item primarily includes change in intersegment financial receivables and capital increases in intersegment investments.

The non-EU-IFRS financial measures (Available liquidity, Net Cash (Debt) and Free Cash Flow of Industrial Activities), used in this section,
should neither be considered as a substitute for, nor superior to, measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with EU-IFRS. In
addition, these non-EU-IFRS financial measures may not be computed in the same manner as similarly titted measures used by other
companies.
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Industrial Activities
Third-party debt of Industrial Activities was €1.2 billion at 31 December 2023 and €0.7 billion at 31 December 2022 and primarily consisted of
bank debt and lease liabilities.

Bank Debt
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, Industrial Activities available committed unsecured facilities expiring after twelve months amounted to €1.7
billion.

On 4 January 2022, Iveco Group signed a €1.9 billion syndicated facility, which included a €1.4 billion committed revolving credit facility with a 5-
year tenor with two extension options of 1-year each (subject to the bank’s approval), as well as a €0.5 billion committed term facility with a 12-
months tenor, extendable for up to an additional 12 months at the Company’s sole option. In October 2022, Iveco Group signed a new
€400 million syndicated term facility with a 2-year tenor extendable for up to an additional 12 months at the Company’s sole option. The proceeds
have been used to refinance the existing term facility. The €1.4 billion revolving credit facility has been extended for two additional years with all
lenders, by exercising the first and the second one-year extension option. The facility is now due to mature in January 2029.

On 27 November 2023, Iveco Group signed a €450 million term loan facility with the European Investment Bank with an 8-year amortization
profile, which represents the first tranche of the €500 million total approved by the European Investment Bank. The proceeds of the loan facility,
which have been drawdown in full in December 2023, will be applied, over a period of three years, to enable Iveco Group to develop innovative
technologies and architectures in the field of electric propulsion and to increase efficiency, safety, driving comfort and productivity by further
developing solutions for autonomous driving, digitalization and vehicle connectivity.

The facilities above include the following covenants:

= customary covenants (including a negative pledge, a status (or pari passu) covenant and restrictions on the incurrence of indebtedness by
certain subsidiaries);

= customary events of default (some of which are subject to minimum thresholds and customary mitigants), including cross-default provisions,
failure to pay amounts due or to comply with certain provisions under the loan agreement and the occurrence of certain bankruptcy-related
events;

= mandatory prepayment obligations upon a change in control of lveco Group N.V,;
= afinancial covenant (Net debt/EBITDA ratio relating to Industrial Activities), not applicable in case of rating equal or higher than BBB/Baa2.
At 31 December 2023, Iveco Group was in compliance with the covenants of the above facilities.

Financial Services
Total third-party debt of Financial Services’ was €4.6 billion at 31 December 2023 (€3.4 billion at 31 December 2022), and included the following.

Bank Debt

Bank Debt of €660 million at 31 December 2023 (198 million at 31 December 2022) mainly consisted of bank loans; it also included €115 million
"Schuldschein" loan with a 3-year tenor. At 31 December 2023, Financial Services available committed, unsecured facilities expiring after twelve
months amounted to €300 million (€300 million at 31 December 2022).

Asset-Backed Financing
At 31 December 2023, Financial Services’ asset-backed facilities amounted to €1,025 million (€839 million at 31 December 2022), committed and
expiring after twelve months.

The sale of financial receivables is executed primarily through asset-backed securitization transactions and involves mainly accounts receivable
from wholesale customers and from the network of dealers (wholesale) previously sold from Industrial Activities subsidiaries to the Group’s
Financial Services subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2023, the Group'’s receivables from financing activities included receivables sold and financed through both asset-backed
securitization transactions and factoring transactions of €4.7 billion (€3.3 billion at 31 December 2022), which did not meet derecognition
requirements and therefore were recorded on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. These receivables are recognised as such
in the Group’s financial statements even though they have been legally sold; a corresponding financial liability is recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position as debt (see Note 24 “Debt” to the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2023).

Commercial Paper Programs

With the purpose of further diversifying its funding structure, Iveco Group has established a commercial paper program. IC Financial Services
S.A. in Europe issued commercial paper under the program which had an amount of €38 million outstanding at 31 December 2023 (€66 million
outstanding at 31 December 2022).
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FUTURE LIQUIDITY
The Group has adopted formal policies and decision-making processes designed to optimize the allocation of funds, cash management

processes and financial risk management. The Group’s liquidity needs could increase in the event of an extended economic slowdown or
recession that would reduce the Group’s cash flow from operations and impair the ability of the Group’s dealers and retail customers to meet their
payment obligations.

The Company believes that funds available under its current liquidity facilities, those realised under existing and planned asset-backed
securitization programs and possible issuances of debt securities and those expected from ordinary course refinancing of existing credit facilities,
together with cash provided by operating activities, will allow the Group to satisfy its debt service requirements for the coming year. At
31 December 2023, the Group had available committed, unsecured facilities expiring after twelve months of €2,000 million (€2,000 million at 31
December 2022).

Financial Services securitized debt is repaid with the cash generated by the underlying amortizing receivables. Accordingly, additional liquidity is
not normally necessary for the repayment of such debt. Financial Services has traditionally relied upon the asset-backed securitization and
committed asset-backed facilities as a primary source of funding and liquidity. At 31 December 2023, Financial Services’ asset-backed facilities
amounted to €1,025 million (€839 million at 31 December 2022).

Iveco Group continues to closely monitor its liquidity and capital resources for any potential impact that the challenging environment in which it
operates, including current macroeconomic and geopolitical issues, supply chain issues and global logistic constraints, energy and material
availability and relevant price variability, may have on its operations. Iveco Group believes that its cash and cash equivalents, access to credit
facilities and cash flows from future operations will be adequate to fund its known cash needs also in the context of that challenging environment.

If Financial Services were unable to obtain asset-backed securitization funding at competitive rates, its ability to conduct its financial services
activities would be limited.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Group uses off-balance sheet arrangements with unconsolidated third parties in the ordinary course of business, including financial

guarantees. The Group’s arrangements are described in more detail below. For additional information, see Note 27 “Commitments and
contingencies” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financial Guarantees

The Group’s financial guarantees require the Group to make contingent payments upon the occurrence of certain events or changes in an
underlying instrument that is related to an asset, a liability or the equity of the guaranteed party. These guarantees include arrangements that are
direct obligations, giving the party receiving the guarantee a direct claim against the Group, as well as indirect obligations, under which the Group
has agreed to provide the funds necessary for another party to satisfy an obligation.

Iveco Group provided guarantees on the debt or commitments of third parties and performance guarantees in the interest of non-consolidated
affiliates totalling €422 million as of 31 December 2023 (€409 million as of 31 December 2022).
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TABULAR DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table sets forth the Group’s contractual obligations and commercial commitments with definitive payment terms that will require

significant cash outlays in the future, as of 31 December 2023:

One to After
(€ million) Total Less than one year three years Three to five years five years
Debt obligations'”
Borrowings from banks 1,631 196 1,074 147 214
Asset-backed financing 3,860 3,282 578 —_ —_
Other debt 413 408 5 — —
Undiscounted lease payments 227 63 75 34 55
Purchase obligations 1,099 545 504 48 2
Total 7,230 4,494 2,236 229 271

(1) Amounts presented exclude the related interest expense that will be paid when due. The table above does not include obligations for pension plans, other post-employment benefits
and other employee benefits. The Group’s best estimate of expected contributions in 2024 to pension plans is approximately €6 million. Potential outflows in the years after 2024 are
subject to a number of uncertainties, including future asset performance and changes in assumptions, and therefore the Group is unable to make sufficiently reliable estimates of future

contributions beyond 2024.

Debt Obligations
For information on the Group’s debt obligations, see “Capital Resources” above and Note 24 “Debt’ to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The debt obligations reflected in the tables above can be reconciled to the amount in the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2023 as

follows:

(€ million) At 31 December 2023
Debt reflected in the consolidated balance sheet 6,100
Less:

Lease liabilities (196)
Total Debt obligations 5,904

The amount reported as debt obligations in the table above consists of the Group’s borrowings from banks, asset-backed financing and other debt
(excluding undiscounted lease payments, which are reported in a separate line item in the table above).

Undiscounted Lease Payments
The Group’s assets under lease agreements consist mainly of industrial buildings and plant, machinery and equipment used in the Group’s
businesses. The amounts reported above include the minimum future lease payments and payment commitments due under such leases.

Purchase Obligations
The Group’s purchase obligations at 31 December 2023 were the following:

= the repurchase price guaranteed to customers on sales with a buy-back commitment which is included in the line item “Other liabilities” in the
Group's consolidated balance sheets in an aggregate amount of €936 million; and

= commitments to purchase tangible fixed assets, largely in connection with planned capital expenditures, in an aggregate amount of
approximately €163 million.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM

Effective risk management is a key factor in maintaining the Group’s value over time. In this regard, lveco Group (hereafter also referred as “IVG”)
Risk management and Internal Control System is consistent and compliant with the provisions of Principle 1.2 of the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code (2022 edition) and, more generally, with international best practices.

The Board of Directors is tasked with defining the general guidelines of the Risk management and Internal Control System, so that the main risks
pertaining to IVG are properly identified and managed, associated with the Company's strategy activities. The Board of Directors is aware that the
control processes cannot provide absolute assurance that the Company objectives will be achieved, and the intrinsic risks of business prevented.
However, it believes that the Risk management and Internal Control System shall reduce and mitigate the likelihood and impact of risk events
associated with wrong decisions, human errors, frauds, violations of laws, regulations and Company procedures, as well as unexpected events.

The Risk management and Internal Control System is therefore subject to regular monitoring and update, taking account of developments in the
Company’s operations and reference context, as well as international best practices.

The Board of Directors has identified the main corporate committees/functions relevant for risk management purposes, by defining their
respective duties and responsibilities within the Risk management and Internal Control System scope. More specifically:

= the Audit Committee, the ESG Committee, the Human Capital and Compensation Committee, tasked with supporting the Board of Directors
on, among others, internal control, risk management, remuneration and sustainability matters;

= the Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM”) Committee is responsible for supervising and reviewing risk assessment results, reviewing reports
for the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, supporting in the identification of risk owners that will be accountable for executing risk
mitigation plans and advocating for risk management at all levels of the organisation, including the Senior Leadership team;

= the Head/Chief of Risk Management, tasked with spreading an effective risk-based organisational culture, defining, implementing, and
maintaining appropriate guidelines, processes and tools as well as supporting the management with a methodological approach, in the risks
identification, adequate measurement and monitoring as well as proposing the Risk Appetite Framework's content and ensuring the
integration of Risk Management process within a governance system consistent with strategic objectives.

Risks are monitored at managerial meetings held on periodical basis (e.g. Monthly Operating Review ("MOR") and other committees), where
results, opportunities and risks are analysed also considering business unit and/or geographical area impacted. The meetings also focus on
determining the actions required to mitigate any risks.

IVG Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") deploys the risk management guidelines based on principles of prevention, cost effectiveness and ongoing
improvement, as monitored by the Board of Directors, in order to provide the organisation with the instruments for defining the risk categories to
which attention should be drawn.

[VECO GROUP INTERNAL AUDIT and INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Internal Control System is made up of the set of organisational functions, committees, IT support, administrative and management systems,
policies, regulations, operating procedures and practices, and managerial behaviour as well, which exercise various types of control on business
management, and on the risks that could compromise the shareholder's objective of long-term sustainable value creation.

Direct permanent controls are carried out by the people who manage and coordinate the operational activities (e.g.: purchases, logistics,
production, sales), governed by the principles of separation of duties and delegation of authority. Monitoring controls are ensured by corporate
functions — such as Finance, IT and HR, Legal and Compliance, ERM, among others — also through accounting and reporting systems, personnel
development, proxies and authorization profiles, policies and procedures updating. The Internal Audit function carries out a further level of control,
which operates independently of the previous ones. The task of the internal audit function is to assess the design and operation of the internal risk
management and System of Internal Control, to ensure the Board of Directors that the overall set of the aforementioned controls works effectively.

The Internal Audit function evaluates the effectiveness and efficiency of the overall Internal Control and Risk Management System on a regular
basis and reports the results to the CEO, the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Bodies of lveco Group N.V. and its Italian subsidiaries, with
reference to specific risks connected with compliance with Legislative Decree No. 231/2001. At least on an annual basis, it also reports to the
Company Board of Directors.

The IVG Internal Audit ("IA") performs its duties - specified within a Charter, approved by the Board of Directors - with the independence required,

in accordance with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, the Company's corporate governance, the International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and best practices.

The |A mission is to protect and enhance the IVG long-term value creation by providing independent risk-based and objective assurance, and
advice. The aim of A is to improve the effectiveness and the efficiency of operations, assisting management in accomplishing its strategy and
goals through a systematic professional approach oriented to verify, evaluate, and improve the governance, risk management, and control
processes.

The IA objective is to evaluate the internal control and risk management system adequacy, encouraging effective controls at reasonable costs,
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referred to:

. Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, plans, and internal procedures.

= Efficiency and effectiveness of the operations.

= Tangible and intangible asset value safeguarding.

= Reliability, timeliness, transparency, and integrity of the financial and non-financial reporting.

The Chief Risk and Internal Audit Officer ("CRIAQ") directly reports to the CEO and functionally to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
oversees their activities and reviews their responsibilities, budget, organisation, and operations.

|A is authorized to:

. Have full, free, and unconditional access to all documents, contracts, records, transactions, files, data, physical properties, including access
to management information systems and records, and the IVG personnel relevant to carrying out any audit engagement. IA will be
accountable for the confidentiality and safeguarding of such information.

= Consult, meet, request information, and obtain assistance from the necessary IVG personnel, as well as other collaborators, third parties,
and specialised services, to complete the audit engagements.

The CRIAO will report to the CEO and the Audit Committee on a regular basis:
= The audit activities and results of the period, compared to the approved audit plan and reporting scope limitations, if any, and

. Significant risks exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other matters requiring the attention of, or
requested by, the Audit Committee.

Based on the audit activities executed for the year 2023, Internal Audit believes that the Company’s Internal Control and Risk Management
system was effective.

PRINCIPAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

IVG has in place a system of risk management and internal control over financial reporting based on the model provided by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission ("COSQ"), according to which the internal control system is defined as a set of rules,
procedures and tools designed to provide reasonable assurance of the achievement of corporate objectives. In relation to the financial reporting
process, reliability, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the information contribute to the achievement of such corporate objectives. Risk
management is an integral part of the internal control system. A periodic evaluation of the system of internal control over financial reporting is
designed to ensure the overall effectiveness of the components of the COSO Framework in achieving those objectives.

Identification and evaluation of the risk of misstatements which could have material effects on financial reporting is carried out through a risk
assessment process that uses a top-down approach to identify the organisational entities, processes and the related accounts, in addition to
specific activities, which could potentially generate significant errors. Under the methodology adopted by IVG, risks and related controls are
associated with the accounting and business processes upon which accounting information is based.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2023, using the criteria set
forth in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. Based on that assessment, management believes that, as of 31
December 2023, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.

IVECO GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

In the course of its business, IVG is exposed, like all organisations of any type and size, to internal and external challenges that make both the
market and the achievement of strategic and business objectives uncertain. In order to effectively manage IVG business risks and achieve its
strategic goals in an increasingly unpredictable environment, IVG has adopted an ERM system - in line with the main national and international
best practices. This system enables the systematic identification, assessment, management, and monitoring of business risks (including
environmental, social, and governance); it is combined with the coordinated and balanced application of resources, so as to minimise, monitor,
and control the probability or impact of adverse events or to optimise the realisation of opportunities. Risk management is an important
component of IVG’s overall corporate culture and is integral to the achievement of its long-term goals.

The ERM function is headed by the Chief Risk and Internal Audit Officer, who reports hierarchically to the CEO and functionally to the Audit
Committee, so ensuring independence from the business units. The function helps the Company effectively manage and implement the risk
management framework through facilitation, coordination, monitoring, and methodological support.

The ERM process is also integrated with the strategic sustainability targets of VG Sustainability Plan, the aspirational goals set out in the
Strategic Business Plan, and employee and customer safety goals. These targets and goals provide a framework to address the long-term
challenges of creating value for stakeholders and proactively mitigating associated risks.

IVG’s ERM process is based on the framework published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COS0”),
as well as on the principles of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code (DCGC) and adapted for specific business requirements by incorporating
Company management expertise and best practices.

A risk assessment is a detailed evaluation of the risk events that could impact IVG's strategic and management objectives, it takes into account
changes in the business and organisational model and Group processes and procedures, developments in the external environment (from a
political, economic, social, technological, and legal perspective), and the relevant industry and competitors. The process follows an integrated top-
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down and bottom-up approach, evaluating the residual exposure to current and emerging risks associated with the ongoing and evolving internal
and external context.

Although risk assessment is a process that is ongoing throughout the year, a dedicated report on Group current risk exposure is submitted at least
twice yearly (usually in July and December) to the Audit Committee, which in turn is required to provide a review of the report. Furthermore, all
Company levels involved in ERM receive periodic updates and training during the year on ERM activities and processes. For example, in 2023,
management and control bodies received regular information on so-called ‘black swan’ analysis, cyber risks, the impacts of climate change, ERM
Policy, and Risk Appetite Framework.

The 2023 ERM process identified 76 risks, several of which related to significant risk areas such as business strategies and operations,
competitive factors, social responsibility, environmental issues, and regulatory compliance (better detailed in the Risk Factors section of the 2023
Annual Report).

According to their likelihood of occurrence and the evaluation of their potential impacts, risks are categorised as Top 1, Top 2, or Other Risks, as
illustrated in the following matrix:

RISK MANAGEMENT

According to its category (Top 1, Top 2 or Other),
each risk is then prioritised in terms of:

e risk quantification and/or in-depth analysis
e risk treatment.

> IMPACT

KEY
R 4 CRITICAL o TOP 1 risks

O 1o 2visks
—3 HIGH O O () Otherrisks

3 4 > LIKELIHOOD

MEDIUM HIGH
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Direct feedback received from each Company level, up to and including the Board of Directors, is then used to identify and develop risk mitigation
activities as necessary within the business or functional area in question, activities that are subsequently executed by management. These
activities are designed to mitigate adverse impacts on IVG's strategic goals and financial and operational performance.

Despite the risk management process and internal control system in place, it is not possible to predict, identify or eliminate all risks and
uncertainties that could impact IVG business.

EMERGING RISKS

The ERM process also monitors emerging risks, defined as new risks or risks for which the impacts are unknown or evolving, and which may
therefore be incorporated into risk assessment and mitigation activities when appropriate. In 2023, the key emerging risks with the potential for
significant impact on Iveco Group over the long term (more than 3 years) were those associated with the mass availability of generative Al and
with possible geopolitical developments (as described in the Risk Factors section of the 2023 Annual Report).

Despite the significant opportunities offered by Al, it also presents several potential challenges, including: increasing and ever-more sophisticated
cyberattacks, issues over data privacy and sensitive information, intellectual property issues, and difficulties in keeping pace with evolving
regulations, which may affect a significant part of the Company’s operations and require the company to adapt its strategy. The potential unique
competitive advantage and industry disruption offered by new generative Al products and business models will require investments in
transformational use cases, resulting in greater costs, complexity, and risk. This in turn will demand a higher risk tolerance, as well as new
investment criteria that prioritise strategic value over task- or process-specific productivity benefits. In order to minimise risk exposure, IVG has
started to implement specific mitigating measures, including the provision of adequate training, policy development, and solutions/tools, and the
continuous monitoring of regulatory changes.

The evolving expectations of possible geopolitical developments increase geopolitical risk, particularly regarding: political and financial instability
(e.g., in Africa and the Middle East); the exacerbation of military conflicts (e.g., Russia-Ukraine, Israel-Palestine); and difficult relations between
the USA and China. The second and third of these may potentially lead to trade tensions that may escalate into further decoupling, which in turn
may directly or indirectly affect countries where the Group operates. The main consequences arising from instability or the exacerbation of
existing conflicts and geopolitical risk may include supply chain disruption, oil and gas price volatility, terrorist attacks, cyberattacks, and lower
sales due to sanctions and trade restrictions, which could have an adverse effect on IVG’s business model, operating results, and financial
situation. Our mitigation activities include maintaining relations with local authorities, ensuring regular negotiations, and avoiding operations in
countries under sanctions.

RISK APPETITE

In 2023, IVG adopted a Risk Appetite Framework as a comprehensive and structured approach to proactively managing risks while pursuing its
strategic objectives. This framework clearly and concisely outlines the Group’s approach to risk, supporting the Company in navigating
uncertainties and opportunities with confidence, fostering sustainable growth, and ensuring the protection of stakeholders' interests.

IVG's risk appetite is set within risk taking and risk acceptance parameters driven by its Strategic Business Plan, Code of Conduct, core principles
and Values, policies, and applicable laws. To protect the interest of IVG'’s stakeholders, the group has defined the following levels of risk appetite:
= tolerant: high tolerance to risk occurrence, meaning Iveco Group is willing to accept risk exposure in pursuing its business objectives

= moderately tolerant: moderate tolerance to risk occurrence, meaning Iveco Group is comfortable with risk within certain limits

= moderately averse: aversion to risk occurrence, meaning lveco Group seeks to minimise the occurrence and consequences of unforeseen
risks

= adverse: no acceptance of risks, meaning Iveco Group’s priority is to avoid risk occurrence.

The Risk Appetite Framework considers, among other things, risk dimensions, i.e., key areas where the Group’s risk appetite is explicitly defined.
These are identified based on a comprehensive analysis of industry challenges, IVG's business model, Values, strategic objectives, and ERM risk
assessment outcomes. For the following risk dimensions, an adverse risk appetite has been approved:

= ethics and integrity

= lawsuits and litigation

= environment, health, and safety (EHS)

= compliance with corporate law and regulations

= product safety

= human rights.

Other main risks dimensions are classified with a risk appetite from moderately adverse to moderately tolerant.

ENHANCEMENTS TO THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The development and implementation of an effective and robust Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process requires ongoing evaluation and

improvement. For this reason, IVG continuously enhance its risk management process in compliance with Company principles and international

best practices. The evolving ERM model comprises the following spheres:

= risk governance: which provides a general framework as regards roles, responsibilities, and information flows for managing the Company’s
main risks
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= process: which covers all groups of activities implemented by the various actors involved to identify, measure, manage, and monitor the
main risks that could affect IVG’s ability to achieve its objectives

= reporting: which represents the results of the risk assessment and risk monitoring activities, highlighting the most significant risks in terms of
likelihood and potential impact, as well as the plans for dealing with them.

In 2023, in order to strengthen the ERM process, the ERM function issued the first IVG ERM Policy and the Risk Appetite Framework, while the
risk assessment was carried out in parallel with the development of the 2024-28 Strategic Business Plan, by integrating a bottom-up risk
assessment approach into the latter starting from the existing risk portfolio, which is based on an assessment of black swan, emerging risks, and
residual exposure to current risks. 2023 risk assessment also includes main outcome of climate change risk management project by the
implementation of specific rules established to integrate both physical and transitional risks into ERM catalogue.

Approximately 20 new risks have been identified through this approach (main changes from previous year outcome is better detailed in the Risk
Factors section of the 2023 Annual Report).

As further ERM process development, IVG aims for a more in-depth quantification of risks based on the forecasts of our Strategic Business Plan,
and for a direct link with the sustainability objectives and the Company’s value.

RISK TRANSFER

In order to mitigate the unpredictability and financial impact of any detrimental event that is insurable, lveco Group has transferred the respective
residual risk exposure to the insurance market. Over the years, IVG's changing needs have been clearly reflected in its insurance coverage,
which has been regularly optimised to decrease the Company’s exposure to intrinsic risks related to the type of activities carried out. Global
insurance programmes ensure that all IVG companies currently have key risk insurance coverage. The latter includes property (all risks), general
liability and umbrella excess liability, directors’ and officers’ liability, public offering of securities, cyber risk and potential fraud, and environmental
liability.

Additional coverage has been arranged locally based on the specific requirements of local legislation or of collective labour agreements and/or
corporate agreements or regulations, such as coverage of product liability, employment practices or general third-party liability. Insurance analysis
and the transfer of Iveco Group’s risk exposure are conducted in collaboration with highly respected insurance brokers, which support this
process internationally and are responsible for the compliance and management of Group insurance programmes at global level.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCTION

The Company is a public limited liability company (naamloze vennootschap), incorporated and organised under the laws of the Netherlands. Its
corporate seat is in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, while the principal place of business and effective management is in Turin, Italy. The
Company’s Common Shares are listed on Euronext Milan, managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

Iveco Group’s governance is built on a set of rules and practices that the Company has adopted (and intends to improve throughout time) to
manage its operations in an ethical and transparent way, according to its purpose and values, that are the groundwork of its culture. The
Company believes that a robust governance model is pivotal to doing business in the pursuit of true sustainable long-term value creation, duly
balancing the interests of all its stakeholders. In this governance statement, lveco Group summarises its overall corporate governance structure
as it applied to the Company as of 31 December 2023, providing the information required by Dutch law and the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code, which applies, on a comply or explain basis, to Dutch companies whose shares have been admitted to trading on a regulated market or
comparable system (the “DCGC’); deviations from the DCGC are described in the present section, too. Other parts of the Board Report (and/or
the Company’s 2023 Sustainability Report, which is available on the Company website and the Board adopted and submitted to Shareholders for
discussion, in the same meeting called to discuss and adopt the annual financial statements) complement the description of how Iveco Group
complies with the principles and best practice provisions recommended by the DCGC, by addressing the strategy, values and culture of lveco
Group in furtherance of sustainable long-term value creation (see the Sustainability Report and section “Our Commitment to Sustainability” of the
Board Report), the remuneration of the Company’s Board members and management (see section “Remuneration Report” of the Board Report),
the Company’s approach to risk management, its risk assessment, and the design and operation of the internal risk management and control
system (see sections “Risk Factors” and “Risk Management and Internal Control System” of the Board Report). Disclosure due in accordance with
the Dutch Decree on establishing further rules regarding the content of the Annual Report (Besluit van 23 december 2004 tot vaststelling van
nadere voorschriften omtrent de inhoud van het jaarverslag) is published on the Company website at www.ivecogroup.com.

Upon the Demerger and in connection with the start of the trading of its Common Shares on Euronext Milan, the Company adopted the DCGC, as
existing and in force from time to time, as a guide for its corporate structure. The Company is aware of the invitation the Italian Corporate
Governance Committee has addressed to issuers with a non-Italian home country, but listed in Italy, to evaluate and consider the adoption of the
corporate governance code sponsored by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (which manages Euronext Milan, where the Common Shares are listed) and
compliance with its recommendations. For the time being, Iveco Group believes that compliance with the recommendations of the DCGC
(including in terms of disclosure) enables Iveco Group to fully respond to investors’ demands for high corporate governance standards,
consistency with international best practice, and transparency. On the other hand, the DCGC addresses substantially the same concerns as the
Italian corporate governance code, whilst better fitting with the Company’s Dutch legal structure and corporate operation.

In this Report, reference to the DCGC is to its December 2022 version, effective as from the financial year starting on 1 January 2023.

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Consistently with the DCGC, shareholders through their general meeting (the “General Meeting”) play a fully-fledged role in the system of checks
and balances of the Company. In addition, Iveco Group is committed to maintaining an open and constructive dialogue with its shareholders (and
potential shareholders) even outside the context of a formal General Meeting, and an ad-hoc policy (posted on the corporate website) has been
adopted to this end.

At least one General Meeting shall be held every year, within six months after the close of the prior financial year. General Meetings shall also be
held in the situations referred to in Dutch law (including at the request of shareholders solely or jointly representing at least 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital) and as often as the Board of Directors, the Chairperson, the Senior Non-Executive Director or the Chief Executive Officer
deems it necessary to hold them. General Meetings shall be held in Amsterdam or Haarlemmermeer (Schiphol Airport) and shall be called in such
manner as is required to comply with the law and the applicable stock exchange regulations, not later than on the forty-second day prior to the
meeting. All convocations of meetings of shareholders and all announcements, notifications, and communications to Company shareholders shall
be made by means of an announcement on the Company’s website and such announcement shall remain accessible until the relevant meeting of
shareholders. The notice shall state the place, date, and hour of the meeting and the agenda of the meeting as well as the other information
required by law. Any communication to be addressed to the General Meeting by virtue of law or the Articles of Association may be either included
in the notice or, to the extent provided for in such notice, on the Company’s website and/or in a document made available for inspection at the
office of the Company and such other place(s) as the Board of Directors shall determine.

The agenda of the General Meeting shall contain, inter alia, the following items:

a. the adoption of the Company’s annual accounts;

b.  the policy of the Company on additions to reserves and on dividends, if any;
c. ifapplicable, the proposal to pay a dividend;
d

the granting of discharge to the members of the Board of Directors in respect of the performance of their duties in the relevant financial
year;

the annual appointment of Directors and the external auditors;

@

f.  an advisory vote in respect of the remuneration report;
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g. every four years, the Company's Remuneration Policy;
h.  discussion of any substantial change in the corporate governance structure of the Company;

i.  any matters decided upon by the person(s) convening the meeting and any matters placed on the agenda with due observance of
applicable Dutch laws.

An item proposed in writing by one or more shareholders representing solely or jointly at least 3% of the Company’s share capital shall be
included in the agenda, provided that the Company has received the relevant shareholder’s request, including the reasons for putting the relevant
item on the agenda, no later than the sixtieth day before the day of the General Meeting.

Persons with the right to vote or attend General Meetings shall be considered those persons who have these rights at the twenty-eighth day prior
to the day of the meeting (the “Record Date”), irrespective of whether they will have these rights at the date of the meeting. In addition to the
Record Date, the notice of the meeting shall state how Company shareholders and other parties with meeting rights may have themselves
registered and how those rights can be exercised, either directly or through a proxy duly authorized in writing. For the avoidance of doubt, such an
attorney is also authorized in writing if the proxy is documented electronically.

Each share (whether common or special voting) shall confer the right to cast one vote. Votes can be cast at the meeting in person or through
proxies or in advance of the meeting via the web procedure made available on the Company’s website. All resolutions shall be passed with an
absolute majority of the votes validly cast unless otherwise specified; blank votes shall not be counted as votes cast. Shares in respect of which
the law determines that no votes may be cast shall be disregarded for the purposes of determining the proportion of shareholders voting, present
or represented, or the proportion of the share capital present or represented. No voting rights shall be exercised in the General Meeting for shares
owned by the Company or by a subsidiary of the Company.

The General Meeting shall be presided over by the Senior Non-Executive Director or, in their absence, by the person chosen by the Board of
Directors to act as chair for such meeting. The chair of the meeting shall decide on the admittance of persons other than those who are entitled to
attend and may determine the time for which those who are permitted to attend may speak, if they consider this desirable with a view to the
orderly conduct of the meeting. The Board shall provide the General Meeting with all requested information, unless this would be contrary to an
overriding interest of the Company; in case, the Board must provide shareholders with details of the overriding interest.

One of the persons present and designated for that purpose by the chair of the meeting shall act as secretary and take minutes of the business
transacted. The minutes shall be made available to the shareholders no later than three months after the end of the meeting, after which the
shareholders shall have the opportunity to react in the following three months. The minutes shall then be adopted and confirmed by the chair of
the meeting and the secretary, and signed by them in witness thereof. If an official notarial record is made of the business transacted at the
shareholders’ meeting, then minutes need not be drawn up and it shall suffice that the official notarial record is signed by the notary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has a one-tier board structure comprising executive and non-executive directors (the "Executive Directors” and "Non-Executive
Directors" and each of them a "Director"). The Executive Directors are primarily responsible for all day-to-day operations of the Company. The
Non-Executive Directors supervise (i) the Executive Directors’ policy and performance of duties and (ii) the Company’s general affairs and its
business, and render (solicited or unsolicited) advice and direction to the Executive Directors. The Board of Directors as a whole is responsible for
the strategy and the continuity of the Company and the business affiliated with it. Each Director has a duty to the Company to properly perform
the duties assigned under or pursuant to the law or the Articles of Association and to act in the Company’s corporate interest, which extends to
the interests of all its stakeholders, including its shareholders, creditors, and employees.

Responsibilities and composition

The Board is accountable for the performance of its duties to the General Meeting, that appoints all members of the Board for a period of
approximately one year, such period expiring on the day the first annual general meeting ("AGM") is held in the following calendar year. The
General Meeting has the power to suspend or dismiss any member of the Board at any time.

The Board may perform all acts necessary or useful for achieving the Company’s objectives, with the exception of those acts that are prohibited
by law or by the Articles of Association; Dutch law provides that resolutions of the Board involving major changes in the Company’s identity or
character are subject to the approval of the General Meeting. The Board’s responsibilities include, among other things, developing a view on long-
term value creation by the Company, determining the Company’s strategy and risk management policy, ensuring compliance with legislation and
regulations and the corporate governance structure of the Company, as well as publishing the information required under applicable law and the
DCGC. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board may allocate its duties and powers among the Directors pursuant to the Board
Regulations (see below), provided that the following duties and powers may not be allocated to the Executive Directors: (i) supervising the
performance of the Executive Directors, (i) making a nomination for the appointment of Directors, (iii) determining an Executive Director's
remuneration and (iv) recommending to the General Meeting the appointment of an auditor to audit the financial statements. Regardless of any
allocation of tasks, all members of the Board remain collectively responsible for the proper management and strategy of the Company (including
supervision thereof in case of Non-Executive Directors).

The chair of the Board of Directors as referred to by law and the DCGC is a Non-Executive Director, with the title Senior Non-Executive Director,
while the title of Chairperson as referred to by the Articles of Association is reserved to an Executive Director. The general authority to represent
the Company is vested in the Board, as well as in each of the Executive Directors to whom the title Chairperson or Chief Executive Officer has
been granted. Accordingly, the Board appointed Lorenzo Simonelli as Senior Non-Executive Director, Suzanne Heywood as Chairperson, and
Gerrit Marx as Chief Executive Officer.
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The Board shall consist of three or more Directors, appointed individually and on an annual basis, and the number of Executive Directors and the
number of Non-Executive Directors shall be determined by the Board, ensuring an appropriate balance between their respective numbers. The
composition of the Non-Executive Directors is such that they will be able to operate independently and critically with respect to one another, the
Executive Directors, and any other particular interest involved. Moreover, out of the Non-Executive Directors independent ones have an essential
role in protecting the interests of all stakeholders: in the assessment of its members’ independence, the Board abides by the criteria set forth by
the DCGC. The independent Directors’ contribution is welcome and necessary for the proper composition and functioning of the Board
committees, too, whose advisory functions include preliminary examination and formulation of proposals relating to areas of potential risk.

According the guidelines on its composition (available on the Company website at www.ivecogroup.com), and in full consistency with the
Company’s overall Policy on Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (see below), the Board of Directors is composed of individuals who bring the
appropriate skills and experience needed for a company of IVG size, geographic distribution and business focus, as the Company believes that
bringing different perspectives into the Boardroom creates more effective discussions. The profile aims for an appropriate combination of
knowledge and experience among the members of the Board, encompassing general and industry-specific management, international business,
ESG, quality and regulatory, finance and accounting, human resources, information technology and digital (namely cybersecurity), marketing, and
governmental and public affairs, all in relation to [VG'’s business mission. Appropriate diversity criteria (considering age, gender, identity, and
cultural and professional background) are followed for the purpose, to ensure that the Board has sufficient diversity of views and the expertise
needed for a good understanding of current affairs and longer-term risks and opportunities related to the Company’s business, taking into account
the social and environmental context in which the Company operates. Similar drivers govern the choice of the members of the Senior Leadership
Team (the “SLT", as further described and defined below), provided that in the composition of the Board and the SLT competence and merit are
key. With reference to the required setting of gender diversity targets for the Board of Directors and the senior management (that the Company
identifies in the SLT), according to applicable Dutch law, the Company believes that women and men should each represent at least one-third of
the members of the Board of Directors and the SLT. This goal is presently achieved with the Board (the goal here is maintaining — and possibly
improving — this gender diversity rate while managing retirement and vacancies) whereas IVG aims at attaining the same result for the SLT by
2028. To this end, appropriate measures are in place, to ensure the achievement of targets (which resulted in an immediate year-on-year
improvement in the gender balance at the SLT level). Moreover, the Diversity Equity & Inclusion ("DEI") strategy ensures our general processes
have the DEI principles integrated (e.g. talent review, succession plans, and development nominations). Further details are provided below, under
“Senior Leadership Team” and “Diversity, Equity and Inclusion”.

On 31 December 2023, the Board was made up of nine members (66% men and 33% women, the same percentages as on 31 December 2022),
out of which two Executive Directors (male and female genders equally represented) and seven Non-executive Directors (7 men and 2 women:
71% and 28% respectively), all of them appointed for a term ending at the AGM of the Company to be held in 2024. Their skills and relevant
personal details are summarised below. No member of the Board exceeds the maximum number of positions allowed by Dutch law for Dutch
large companies.

Board Report Corporate Governance 87



IVECO GROUP BOARD OF DIRECTORS SKILLS MATRIX AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

® SKILLS CATEGORIES
E E
= S z H 4
£ 5ss H 2 23 g8 3 z
Q o}
BORN GENDER  GEOGRAPHIC INITIAL a e 00 ﬁ ¢
DIRECTORS IN IDENTITY®  DIVERSITY EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENCE APPOINTMENT o
SUZANNE 1969 F UK yes no 2022 [ ) [ ] [ o o [ ] [ ] [ ]
HEYWOOD
GERRIT 1975 M DE yes no 2022 [ ] [ ] ( J o ® [ ] [ ] [ ]
MARX
LORENZO 1973 M CH no yes 2022 [ J [ ] ([ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
SIMONELLI IT
UK
USA
TUFAN 1959 M TR no yes 2022 [ ] [ ] @ [ o [ ) [ ]
ERGINBILGIC UK
ESSIMARI 1966 F DE no yes 2022 @ ([ ] [ ] [ ] ® [ ] [ ]
KAIRISTO FIN
LINDA 1960 F USA no no 2022 [ ) [ ) [ ) [ ] ( ] [ ] @
KNOLL
ALESSANDRO 1974 M IT no no 2022 [ ] [ ) [ ] [ ) [ J [ ] [ ) [ ]
NASI
OLOF 1964 M SE no yes 2022 o [ ] o @ @ o [ ) [ J
PERSSON
BENOIT 1972 M FR no no 2022 [ ] [ ] o [ ® [ )
RIBADEAU
-DUMAS
SKILLS
@ Full Director possesses extensive skill/knowledge/experience

Director has received significant formal training and guidance and is able to provide same to colleagues
@ Medium Director has proved skill/knowledge/experience
Director has received formal training
Basic Director has foundational level of skill/knowledge/experience
Director has received basic induction

O Gender identity is defined as individual’s internal sense of being male (M), female (F), both (B), neither (N), or something else (SE).
@ |veco Group activities related to 2 sub-industry groups, as per MSC| and Standard & Poor's Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS):
Construction Machinery & Heavy Trucks, classified under the sector Industrials; and Automobiles, classified under the sector Consumer Discretionary.

Biographical Details of the Executive Directors

Suzanne Heywood (Chairperson)
Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022
Born in 1969, British citizenship.

Suzanne Heywood became a Managing Director of Exor in 2016 and was appointed as its Chief Operating Officer in November 2022.
Prior to that she worked at McKinsey & Company which she joined as an associate in 1997 and left as a Senior Partner (Director) in
2016. Suzanne co-led McKinsey's global service line on organisation design for several years and also worked extensively on strategic
issues with clients across different sectors. Suzanne started her career in the U.K. Government as a Civil Servant in the U.K. Treasury. At
the Treasury she worked as Private Secretary to the Financial Secretary (who is responsible for all direct taxation issues) as well as
leading thinking on the Government's privatization policy and supporting the Chancellor in his negotiations at ECOFIN (the meeting of
European Finance Ministers) in Brussels. Lady Heywood is Chair of CNH Industrial N.V. and of Shang Xia. She is also a non-executive
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Director of Louboutin and The Economist, and a member of the UK Investment Council. She has published a book, “Reorg” and multiple
articles on these topics, and she is Chair of Quartz, a small consultancy that works on these topics based on the thinking in that book.
She grew up sailing around the world for ten years on a yacht with her family. She studied science at Oxford University (BA) and then at
Cambridge University (PhD). In 2023 she achieved a specialization certificate in Google Cybersecurity.

External directorships in publicly listed companies (as of 31 December 2023):
+ CNH Industrial N.V.

= Gerrit Marx (Chief Executive Officer)

Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022
Born in 1975, German citizenship.

Gerrit Marx has more than 20 years of experience in roles of increasing importance in different locations around the world and in a variety
of industrial segments, with a specific in-depth focus on automotive industries. He holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering (“Diplom
Ingenieur”) and an MBA (“Diplom Kaufmann”) from RWTH Aachen University, and a Doctorate in Business Administration from Cologne
University. From 1999 to 2007, Mr. Marx worked at the global consulting firm McKinsey & Company, focusing on operational improvement
programmes in the automotive and aerospace industries in Europe, Brazil, and Japan. He joined Daimler AG in 2007 to head the global
controlling function for vehicle and powertrain component projects, as well as market-entry / mergers and acquisitions for three truck
brands in North America, Europe, and Asia. This led him to the role of President and Chief Executive Officer at Daimler Trucks China in
2009 and subsequently, President of Skoda China with Volkswagen AG, overseeing imports and joint venture business relations in both
roles. In 2012 Mr. Marx joined the European leadership team of Bain Capital as a member of their portfolio group, driving and leading
transformational change programs. This role also encompassed due diligence and merger and acquisition activities, with specific focus on
automotive and industrial assets, and also included interim roles such as Chief Executive Officer of Wittur Group, a global Tier-1 supplier
to the elevator industry. Gerrit Marx joined CNH Industrial in January 2019 as President of Commercial and Specialty Vehicles. Since the
spin-off of Iveco Group from CNH Industrial on 1 January 2022, Mr. Marx has served as Chief Executive Officer of the newly formed
Company.

External directorships in publicly listed companies (as of 31 December 2023):

+ None.

Biographical Details of the Non-Executive Directors

Lorenzo Simonelli (Senior Non-Executive Director - independent), Member of the Audit Committee
Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022
Born in 1973, Italian, British, Swiss and American citizenship.

Lorenzo Simonelli is the Chairman, President and CEO of Baker Hughes, an energy technology company that combines innovation,
expertise and scale to provide solutions for energy and industrial customers worldwide. In October 2017 he was named Chairman of the
Board of Baker Hughes, and has been President and CEO since the Company’s creation in 2017, where he oversaw the successful
merger of GE Qil & Gas with Baker Hughes Inc. In 2013 he was appointed President and CEO of GE Oil & Gas. Previously, Mr. Simonelli
served as President and CEO of GE Transportation, a global transportation leader in the rail, mining, marine and energy storage
industries. During his five-year tenure, he expanded and diversified GE Transportation by focusing on advanced technology
manufacturing, intelligent control systems and a diverse approach to new propulsion solutions. He served as Chief Financial Officer for
the Americas for GE Consumer & Industrial, as well as General Manager, Product Management for GE Appliances, Lighting, Electrical
Distribution and Motors. Lorenzo Simonelli joined GE's Financial Management Program in 1994, where he worked on assignments in GE
International, GE Shared Services, GE Oil & Gas and Consolidated Financial Insurance. Mr. Simonelli also served on the Board of C3.ai,
Inc. (from 2020 - 2021) and on the Board of CNH Industrial N.V. (from 2019 - 2021). He graduated in Business & Economics from Cardiff
University, Wales and received a master's degree honoris causa in Chemical Sciences from the University of Florence, Italy.

External directorships in publicly listed companies (as of 31 December 2023):

+ Baker Hughes Company.

Tufan Erginbilgic (Non-Executive Director - independent), Member of the ESG Committee, Member of the Human Capital and
Compensation Committee

Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022

Born in 1959, British and Turkish citizenship.

Tufan Erginbilgic has a background in engineering and has built his career in international business with over 20 years with BP, five years
as part of its executive team. He held a number of senior roles at BP, including CEO of Lubricants, BP and Castrol; Chief of Staff to the
Group CEO; and Chief Operating Officer of the downstream business, becoming its CEQ in 2014 until 2020. Mr. Erginbilgic held several
non-executive directorships in heavy industry and manufacturing. These include aerospace technology group GKN; energy, healthcare
technology group DCC pic; and energy company Turkiye Petrol Rafinerileri A.S (Tupras). He stepped down as a partner in Global
Infrastructure Partners, a private equity firm focused on large-scale investments in infrastructure businesses, however, remained a Senior
Adviser. On 1 January 2023, Mr. Erginbilgic was appointed Group Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce. He has a BSc in engineering, a
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Master of Business Administration degree and an MA in economics.
External directorships in publicly listed companies (as of 31 December 2023):
+ Roll-Royce plc.

Essimari Kairisto (Non-Executive Director - independent), Chair of the Audit Committee
Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022
Born in 1966, Finnish and German citizenship.

Essimari Kairisto has a diploma in Business Administration from the University of Fachhochschule Bielefeld (Germany). Ms. Kairisto was
the Chief Financial Officer and a Board Director for Hochtief Solutions AG until 2016 after which she has taken on independent consulting
roles. Prior to her move to Hochtief Solutions AG in 2013, Ms. Kairisto had several high profile roles in finance and general management
including at Sasol, RWE and Schlumberger. Presently Ms. Kairisto is Vice Chair of TenneT Holding B.V. (a Dutch state-owned leading
European electricity transmission system operator with its main activities in the Netherlands and Germany) and Chair of its Audit
Committee, Vice Chair of Fortum Oyj (a clean energy generation and distribution company listed on the Helsinki stock exchange, with the
Finnish State as majority shareholder) and Chair of its Audit and Risk Committee, Supervisory Board Member and member of the Audit
Committee of Freudenberg SE (the privately owned German technology company), director and member of the Audit Committee of
Applus+ Services S.A. (a Spanish company, listed on the Madrid Stock Exchange, that is a worldwide leader in the testing, inspection and
certification sector), member of the Supervisory Board and Chair of the Audit Committee of Fugro N.V. (a world leading Geo-data
specialist that supports clients in mitigating risks during design, construction and operation of their assets).

External directorships in publicly listed companies (as of 31 December 2023):

+ Applus+ Services S.A.
+ Fortum Oyj.
+ FugroN.V.

Linda Knoll (Non-Executive Director), Member of the ESG Committee, Chair of the Human Capital and Compensation Committee
Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022
Born in 1960, American citizenship.

Linda Knoll holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from Central Michigan University. After a career in the land
systems division of General Dynamics, Linda Knoll honed her career in the predecessor companies to Fiat Chrysler Automobiles (FCA)
and CNH Industrial through numerous operational assignments, accumulating a wealth of relevant industrial industry experience spanning
more than 25 years (including Vice-President and General Manager of the Crop Production Global Product Line, Vice-President North
America Agricultural Industrial Operations, Executive Vice-President Agricultural Product Development, President Parts and Service (ad
interim) and Executive Vice-President Worldwide Agricultural Manufacturing). Linda Knoll has been CHRO in CNH Industrial (from 2007
to 2019) and FCA (from 2011 to March 2021). Linda Knoll currently serves as director at Schneider Electric SE, and Astec Industries.

External directorships in publicly listed companies (as of 31 December 2023):
+ Astec Industries Inc.
+ Schneider Electric SE.

Alessandro Nasi (Non-Executive Director), Chair of the ESG Committee, Member of the Human Capital and Compensation Committee
Date of first appointment: 1 January 2022
Born in 1974, Italian citizenship.

Alessandro Nasi started his career as a financial analyst in several banks, gaining experience at Europlus Asset Management, a division
of Unicredit in Dublin, Ireland, PricewaterhouseCoopers in Turin, Italy, Merrill Lynch and JP Morgan in New York, U.S. He also worked as
an Associate in the Private Equity Division of JP Morgan Partners in New York, U.S. Mr. Nasi joined the Fiat Group in 2005 as manager
of Corporate and Business Development, heading the APAC division and supporting Fiat Group sectors in Asia Pacific. In 2007, Mr. Nasi
was appointed Vice President of Business Development and a member of the Steering Committee of Fiat Powertrain Technologies. In
2008, he joined CNH in the role of Senior Vice President of Business Development and from 2009 to 2011 he also served as Senior Vice
President of Network Development. In January 2011, he was also appointed Secretary of the Industrial Executive Council of Fiat
Industrial, continuing in the role of Executive Coordinator to the successor Group Executive Council of CNH Industrial until January 2019.
In 2013 he was appointed President Specialty Vehicles, a role he held until January 2019. Mr. Nasi is a Director of Exor N.V., Chairman
of Comau, Cha